NOTICE is hereby given that the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of ICICI Bank Limited (the Bank/
Company) will be held on Monday, June 24, 2013 at 1.15 p.m. at Sir Sayajirao Nagargruh, Vadodara Mahanagar Seva
Sadan, Near GEB Colony, Old Padra Road, Akota, Vadodara 390 020, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Profit and Loss Account for the financial year ended March 31, 2013 and
Balance Sheet as at that date together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors.

To declare dividend on preference shares.
To declare dividend on equity shares.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. K. V. Kamath, who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

To appoint a director in place of Dr. Tushaar Shah, who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal, who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 224, 225 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and subject to approval of Reserve Bank of India, S. R.
Batliboi & Co. Limited Liability Partnership, Chartered Accountants (registration No. 301003E), formerly known
as S. R. Batliboi & Co, Chartered Accountants be appointed as statutory auditors of the Company, to hold office
from the conclusion of this Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company,
on a remuneration (including terms of payment) to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company, based on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, plus service tax and such other tax(es), as may be applicable, and
reimbursement of all out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company for the
year ending March 31, 2014.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 228 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and subject to such regulatory approvals and consents as may be
required, the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to appoint branch auditors, as and
when required, in consultation with the statutory auditors, to audit the accounts in respect of the Company’s
branches/offices in India and abroad and to fix their terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration, based
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, plus service tax and such other tax(es), as may be applicable, and
reimbursement of all out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the audit of the accounts of the branches/offices
in India and abroad for the year ending March 31, 2014.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

9.

10.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

RESOLVED that Mr. Dileep Choksi in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing along with
deposit of ¥ 500, from a Member proposing him as a candidate for the office of director under the provisions of
Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, and who is eligible for appointment to the office of director, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

RESOLVED that Mr. K. V. Kamath in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing along with
deposit of ¥ 500, from a Member proposing him as a candidate for the office of director under the provisions of
Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, and who is eligible for appointment to the office of director, be appointed
as a Director of the Company on conclusion of his term on April 30, 2014.

RESOLVED FURTHER that pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation Act,
1949, Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of Reserve Bank of India and approvals
of such other authorities to the extent required and subject to such terms and conditions as may be prescribed
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while granting such approvals, Mr. K. V. Kamath, be re-appointed as non-executive Chairman of the Company for
a period of five years, effective May 1, 2014 upto April 30, 2019 and be paid a remuneration of upto ¥ 5,000,000
per annum. He will also be entitled to payment of sitting fees, maintaining of a Chairman’s office at the Bank'’s
expense, bearing of expenses by the Bank for travel on official visits and participation in various forums (both in
India and abroad) as Chairman of the Bank and bearing of travel/halting/other expenses & allowances by the Bank
for attending to his duties as Chairman of the Bank.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and to
execute any document or instruction etc. as may be required to give effect to this Resolution.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

RESOLVED that subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949
and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the approval of Reserve Bank of
India, Ms. Chanda Kochhar, Managing Director & CEO, be paid the following revised remuneration effective April
1,2013:

Salary:
In the range of X 1,350,000 - ¥ 2,600,000 per month.

Perquisites:

Perquisites (evaluated as per Income-tax rules wherever applicable and otherwise at actual cost to the Bank)
such as the benefit of the Bank’s furnished accommodation, gas, electricity, water and furnishings, club fees,
group insurance, use of car and telephone at residence or reimbursement of expenses in lieu thereof; medical
reimbursement, leave and leave travel concession, education benefits, provident fund, superannuation fund and
gratuity, in accordance with the scheme(s) and rule(s) applicable from time to time. In line with the staff loan policy
applicable to specified grades of employees who fulfill prescribed eligibility criteria to avail loans for purchase of
residential property, the wholetime Directors are also eligible for housing loans subject to approval of RBI.

Supplementary Allowance:
In the range of ¥ 1,000,000 - ¥ 1,800,000 per month.

Bonus:

An amount upto the maximum limit permitted under the Reserve Bank of India guidelines or any modifications
thereof, as may be determined by the Board or any Committee thereof, based on achievement of such performance
parameters as may be laid down by the Board or any Committee thereof, and subject to such other approvals as
may be necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Ms. Chanda Kochhar in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
along with deposit of ¥ 500, from a Member proposing her as a candidate for the office of director under the
provisions of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, and who is eligible for appointment to the office of director,
be appointed as a Director of the Company on conclusion of her term on March 31, 2014.

RESOLVED FURTHER that subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949 and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the approval of Reserve
Bank of India, Ms. Chanda Kochhar, be re-appointed as the Managing Director & CEO of the Company, effective
April 1, 2014 upto March 31, 2019.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board or any Committee thereof, be and is hereby authorised to decide the
remuneration (salary, perquisites and bonus) payable to Ms. Chanda Kochhar and her designation during her
tenure as a Managing Director & CEO of the Company, within the terms mentioned above, subject to the approval
of Reserve Bank of India where applicable, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER that in the event of absence or inadequacy of net profit in any financial year, the remuneration
payable to Ms. Chanda Kochhar shall be governed by Section Il of Part Il of Schedule XllI of the Companies Act,
1956, or any modification(s) thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Ms. Chanda Kochhar shall not be subject to retirement by rotation during her tenure as
the Managing Director & CEO.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and to
execute any document or instruction etc. as may be required to give effect to this Resolution.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
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RESOLVED that subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949
and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the approval of Reserve Bank of
India, Mr. N. S. Kannan, Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer, be paid the following revised remuneration
effective April 1, 2013:

Salary:
In the range of 3 950,000 - X 1,700,000 per month.

Perquisites:

Perquisites (evaluated as per Income-tax rules wherever applicable and otherwise at actual cost to the Bank)
such as the benefit of the Bank’s furnished accommodation, gas, electricity, water and furnishings, club fees,
group insurance, use of car and telephone at residence or reimbursement of expenses in lieu thereof; medical
reimbursement, leave and leave travel concession, education benefits, provident fund, superannuation fund and
gratuity, in accordance with the scheme(s) and rule(s) applicable from time to time. In line with the staff loan policy
applicable to specified grades of employees who fulfill prescribed eligibility criteria to avail loans for purchase of
residential property, the wholetime Directors are also eligible for housing loans subject to approval of RBI.

Supplementary Allowance:
In the range of X 675,000 - 31,225,000 per month.

Bonus:

An amount upto the maximum limit permitted under the Reserve Bank of India guidelines or any modifications
thereof, as may be determined by the Board or any Committee thereof, based on achievement of such performance
parameters as may be laid down by the Board or any Committee thereof, and subject to such other approvals as
may be necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. N. S. Kannan in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
along with deposit of ¥ 500, from a Member proposing him as a candidate for the office of director under the
provisions of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, and who is eligible for appointment to the office of director,
be appointed as a Director of the Company on conclusion of his term on April 30, 2014.

RESOLVED FURTHER that subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949 and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the approval of Reserve
Bank of India, Mr. N. S. Kannan, be re-appointed as a wholetime Director (designated as Executive Director & Chief
Financial Officer) of the Company, effective May 1, 2014 upto April 30, 2019.

RESOLVED FURTHER that in the event of absence or inadequacy of net profit in any financial year, the remuneration
payable to Mr. N. S. Kannan shall be governed by Section Il of Part Il of Schedule XlII of the Companies Act, 1956,
or any modification(s) thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. N. S. Kannan shall not be subject to retirement by rotation during his tenure as
wholetime Director. However, in order to comply with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Companies Act, 1956, he shall be liable to retire by rotation, if, at any time, the number of non-rotational
Directors exceed one-third of the total number of Directors. If he is re-appointed as Director immediately on
retirement by rotation, he shall continue to hold office of wholetime Director and the retirement by rotation and
re-appointment shall not be deemed to constitute a break in his appointment as wholetime Director.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board or any Committee thereof, be and is hereby authorised to decide the
remuneration (salary, perquisites and bonus) payable to Mr. N. S. Kannan and his designation during his tenure as
a wholetime Director of the Company, within the terms mentioned above, subject to the approval of Reserve Bank
of India where applicable, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and to
execute any document or instruction etc. as may be required to give effect to this Resolution.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

RESOLVED that subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949
and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the approval of Reserve Bank of
India, Mr. K. Ramkumar, Executive Director of the Company be paid the following revised remuneration effective
April 1, 2013:

Salary:
In the range of ¥ 950,000 - X 1,700,000 per month.
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Perquisites:

Perquisites (evaluated as per Income-tax rules wherever applicable and otherwise at actual cost to the Bank)
such as the benefit of the Bank’s furnished accommodation, gas, electricity, water and furnishings, club fees,
group insurance, use of car and telephone at residence or reimbursement of expenses in lieu thereof; medical
reimbursement, leave and leave travel concession, education benefits, provident fund, superannuation fund and
gratuity, in accordance with the scheme(s) and rule(s) applicable from time to time. In line with the staff loan policy
applicable to specified grades of employees who fulfill prescribed eligibility criteria to avail loans for purchase of
residential property, the wholetime Directors are also eligible for housing loans subject to approval of RBI.

Supplementary Allowance:
In the range of X 675,000 - 31,225,000 per month.

Bonus:

An amount upto the maximum limit permitted under the Reserve Bank of India guidelines or any modifications
thereof, as may be determined by the Board or any Committee thereof, based on achievement of such performance
parameters as may be laid down by the Board or any Committee thereof, and subject to such other approvals as
may be necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. K. Ramkumar in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
along with deposit of ¥ 500, from a Member proposing him as a candidate for the office of director under the
provisions of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, and who is eligible for appointment to the office of director,
be appointed as a Director of the Company on conclusion of his term on January 31, 2014.

RESOLVED FURTHER that subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949 and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the approval of Reserve
Bank of India, Mr. K. Ramkumar, be re-appointed as a wholetime Director (designated as Executive Director) of the
Company, effective February 1, 2014 upto January 31, 2019.

RESOLVED FURTHER that in the event of absence or inadequacy of net profit in any financial year, the remuneration
payable to Mr. K. Ramkumar shall be governed by Section Il of Part Il of Schedule XlIl of the Companies Act, 1956,
or any modification(s) thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. K. Ramkumar shall not be subject to retirement by rotation during his tenure as
wholetime Director. However, in order to comply with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Companies Act, 1956, he shall be liable to retire by rotation, if, at any time, the number of non-rotational
Directors exceed one-third of the total number of Directors. If he is re-appointed as Director immediately on
retirement by rotation, he shall continue to hold office of wholetime Director and the retirement by rotation and
re-appointment shall not be deemed to constitute a break in his appointment as wholetime Director.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board or any Committee thereof, be and is hereby authorised to decide the
remuneration (salary, perquisites and bonus) payable to Mr. K. Ramkumar and his designation during his tenure as
a wholetime Director of the Company, within the terms mentioned above, subject to the approval of Reserve Bank
of India where applicable, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and to
execute any document or instruction etc. as may be required to give effect to this Resolution.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

RESOLVED that subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949
and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the approval of Reserve Bank of
India, Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal, Executive Director be paid the following revised remuneration effective April 1, 2013:

Salary:
In the range of ¥ 900,000 - X 1,600,000 per month.

Perquisites:

Perquisites (evaluated as per Income-tax rules wherever applicable and otherwise at actual cost to the Bank)
such as the benefit of the Bank’s furnished accommodation, gas, electricity, water and furnishings, club fees,
group insurance, use of car and telephone at residence or reimbursement of expenses in lieu thereof; medical
reimbursement, leave and leave travel concession, education benefits, provident fund, superannuation fund and
gratuity, in accordance with the scheme(s) and rule(s) applicable from time to time. In line with the staff loan policy
applicable to specified grades of employees who fulfill prescribed eligibility criteria to avail loans for purchase of
residential property, the wholetime Directors are also eligible for housing loans subject to approval of RBI.



Supplementary Allowance:
In the range of ¥ 650,000 - 31,200,000 per month.

Bonus:

An amount upto the maximum limit permitted under the Reserve Bank of India guidelines or any modifications
thereof, as may be determined by the Board or any Committee thereof, based on achievement of such performance
parameters as may be laid down by the Board or any Committee thereof, and subject to such other approvals as
may be necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER that in the event of absence or inadequacy of net profit in any financial year, the remuneration
payable to Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal shall be governed by Section Il of Part Il of Schedule Xlll of the Companies Act,
1956, or any modification(s) thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board or any Committee thereof, be and is hereby authorised to decide the
remuneration (salary, perquisites and bonus) payable to Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal and his designation during his tenure
as a wholetime Director of the Company, within the terms mentioned above, subject to the approval of Reserve
Bank of India where applicable, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and to
execute any document or instruction etc. as may be required to give effect to this Resolution.

NOTES:

a.

b.

The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, in respect of ltem Nos.
7,9 to 14 set out in the Notice is annexed hereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND, ON A POLL,
TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELFE. SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN
ORDER TO BE VALID AND EFFECTIVE, MUST BE DELIVERED AT THE REGISTERED/CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY NOT LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

Members are requested to note that the Company’s equity shares are under compulsory demat trading for all
investors, subject to the provisions of SEBI Circular No.21/99 dated July 8, 1999. Members are, therefore, requested
to dematerialise their shareholding to avoid inconvenience.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from June 1, 2013 to
June 24, 2013 (both days inclusive). Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2013, at the rate of X 20/- per fully paid-
up equity share, if declared at the Meeting, will be paid on and from Tuesday, June 25, 2013:

(i) to those Members, holding shares in physical form, whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company, at the close of business hours on Monday, June 24, 2013 after giving effect to all valid transfers in
physical form lodged on or before May 31, 2013 with the Company and/or its Registrar and Transfer Agent; and

(ii) in respect of shares held in electronic form, to all beneficial owners as per the details furnished by National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) at the close of
business hours on May 31, 2013.

In terms of the directives of Securities and Exchange Board of India, shares issued by companies should rank
pari passu in all respects, including dividend entitlement, and accordingly the equity shares allotted/to be allotted
by the Company upto May 31, 2013 under the ICIClI Bank Employees Stock Option Scheme will be entitled for
full dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2013, if declared at the Meeting. The dividend proposed is in
accordance with applicable RBI guidelines and the dividend policy of the Bank.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to immediately notify change in their address, to the
Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, viz. 3i Infotech Limited, International Infotech Park, Tower 5, 3rd
Floor, Vashi Railway Station Complex, Vashi, Navi Mumbai 400 703, quoting their Folio Number(s).

In order to avoid fraudulent encashment of dividend warrants, Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to send to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, at the above mentioned address, on or
before May 31, 2013 a Bank Mandate (providing details of name and address of banker, branch, PIN code and
particulars of the bank account) or changes therein, if not provided earlier, under the signature of the Sole/First
holder quoting their Folio Number. This information will be printed on the dividend warrants. Members may also
avail of the Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) mandate facility provided by the Company.

Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank
details, ECS mandates, email addresses, nominations, power of attorney, change of address/name etc. to their
Depository Participant (DP) only and not to the Company or its Registrar and Transfer Agent. Any such changes
effected by the DPs will automatically reflect in the Company’s subsequent records.
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, the amounts of dividend remaining
unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of its transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Accounts of the Company
and erstwhile The Bank of Rajasthan Limited are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government and, thereafter, no payments shall be made by the Company or
by the IEPF in respect of such amounts. Therefore, the amount of unclaimed dividend upto the financial year ended
March 31, 2005 has been transferred and for the financial year ended March 31, 2006 would be transferred to the
IEPF. As such, Members who have not yet encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the financial year ended March
31, 2006 and/or subsequent years are requested to submit their claims to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the
Company without any delay.

Members may avail of the nomination facility as provided under Section 109A of the Companies Act, 1956.

Pursuant to the requirements on corporate governance under Clause 49 of listing agreements entered into with
stock exchanges, the information about the Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is given in the
Annexure to the Notice.

The annual report of the Company circulated to the Members of the Company, will be made available on the
Company’s website at www.icicibank.com.

Members desirous of getting any information about the accounts and/or operations of the Company are requested
to write to the Company at least seven days before the date of the Meeting to enable the Company to keep the
information ready at the Meeting.

All the documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement will be available for inspection by the
Members at the Registered/Corporate Office of the Company between 10.30 a.m. and 12.30 p.m. on all working
days from the date hereof upto the date of the Meeting.

The Bank has implemented the ‘Green Initiative’ circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide their
Circular Nos.17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and April 29, 2011 respectively and effected electronic
delivery of Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report previously to those shareholders whose email
ids were registered with the respective Depository Participants and downloaded from the depositories viz. National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)/Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) have also in line with the MCA circulars and as provided in Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement
executed with the stock exchanges, permitted listed entities to supply soft copies of full annual reports to all those
shareholders who have registered their email addresses for the purpose. In terms of the Circular No. NSDL/CIR/
11/10/2012 dated March 9, 2012 issued by National Securities Depository Limited, email addresses made available by
the Depository for your respective Depository Participant accounts as part of the beneficiary position downloaded
from the Depositories from time to time will be deemed to be your registered email address for serving notices/
documents including those covered under Section 219 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Section 53 of the
Companies Act, 1956. In light of the requirements prescribed by the aforesaid circulars, for those shareholders
whose Depository Participant accounts do not contain the details of their email address, printed copies of the
Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the year ended March 31, 2013 would be despatched.
The Notice of Annual General Meeting and the copies of audited financial statements, directors’ report, auditors’
report, business responsibility report etc. will also be displayed on the website www.icicibank.com of the Bank
and the other requirements of the aforesaid MCA circulars will be duly complied with. Members holding shares
in electronic mode are therefore requested to ensure to keep their email addresses updated with the Depository
Participants. Members holding shares in physical mode are also requested to update their email addresses by
writing to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company at the address mentioned in (e) above quoting their
folio number(s).

By Order of the Board

Sandeep Batra
Group Compliance Officer
& Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 13, 2013

Registered Office: Corporate Office:
Landmark ICICI Bank Towers
Race Course Circle Bandra-Kurla Complex
Vadodara 390 007 Mumbai 400 051
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Item No. 7

Although not required, the Explanatory Statement is being given in respect of ltem No. 7 of the Notice. S. R. Batliboi & Co,
Chartered Accountants were appointed as auditors by the Members at their Sixteenth Annual General Meeting held on
June 28, 2010 and were last re-appointed by the Members at their Eighteenth Annual General Meeting held on June 25,
2012. S. R. Batliboi & Co. have intimated the Company vide their letter dated April 5, 2013 about the change in the name
of the firm pursuant to its conversion as a Limited Liability Partnership and the consequent change in their name to S. R.
Batliboi & Co. LLP. This Explanatory Statement is intended to inform the Members only about the change in the name of
the auditor firm and would not have any effect on the letters, agreements, instruments, deeds, documents and writings
executed by and between the Company and the audit firm and the same would continue to be in full force and effect in
accordance with their terms, as if S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP were a party to it instead of S. R. Batliboi & Co.

S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP have forwarded a certificate to the Company stating that the appointment, if made, will be within
the limit specified in sub-section (1B) of Section 224 of the Companies Act, 1956. Further, they have confirmed that they
are not disqualified to be appointed as auditors under Section 226 of the Companies Act, 1956. Their appointment is
subject to the approval of RBI.

The Directors recommend the adoption of the Resolution at Item No. 7 of the Notice.
No Director is in any way concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item No. 7 of the Notice.

Item No. 9

Mr. Dileep Choksi has been appointed as an additional Director effective April 26, 2013 pursuant to Section 260 of the
Companies Act, 1956, read with Article 135 of the Articles of Association of the Company, and holds office upto the date of
the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company as provided under the said Article but is eligible for appointment.
In terms of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has received a notice in writing along with deposit of
% 500, from a Member signifying the intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Dileep Choksi for the office of Director.

The Directors recommend the adoption of the Resolution at Item No. 9 of the Notice.

No Director is in any way concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item No. 9 of the Notice except Mr. Dileep Choksi.

Item No. 10

The Members of the Company by way of postal ballot in February 2009, approved the appointment of Mr. K. V. Kamath as
non-executive Chairman of the Bank effective May 1, 2009 upto April 30, 2014 at a remuneration of ¥ 2,000,000 per annum
as well as payment of sitting fees, maintaining of a Chairman’s office at the Bank’s expense, bearing of expenses by the
Bank for travel on official visits and participation in various forums (both in India and abroad) as Chairman of the Bank and
bearing of travel/halting/other expenses & allowances by the Bank for attending to his duties as Chairman of the Bank.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide its letter dated March 12, 2009 approved the appointment of Mr. K. V. Kamath as a
non- executive Chairman effective May 1, 2009 upto April 30, 2012 and further approved his re-appointment vide its letter
dated April 19, 2012 for a further period of two years effective May 1, 2012 upto April 30, 2014.

As the tenure of Mr. Kamath as approved by the shareholders as well as RBI would conclude before the AGM in 2014,
the Board at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 considered the re-appointment of Mr. K. V. Kamath as Chairman for
a further period of five years from May 1, 2014 to April 30, 2019. Mr. K. V. Kamath has been associated as a Director
with the ICICI Group (Group) since 1996 and under his leadership and guidance, the Group transformed itself into a
diversified, technology driven financial services group having leadership positions across banking, insurance and asset
management in India as well as a growing international presence. He has made an immense contribution to the growth
and development of the Bank and the Board felt it imperative that the benefit of his expert guidance continue to be
available to the executive management as well as to the Board in terms of strategic leadership and governance.

Hence, the Board of Directors, at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 (based on the recommendation of the Board
Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee) subject to the approval of RBI, shareholders and such other
consents or permissions as may be required to be taken approved the re-appointment of Mr. K. V. Kamath as non-
executive Chairman of the Bank for a period of five years effective May 1, 2014 upto April 30, 2019. Mr. K. V. Kamath
would attain the age of 70 years on December 2, 2017. Pursuant to the RBI guidelines a non-executive Chairman of a
bank shall retire at the age of 70 years. As the approval of members is being sought upto April 30, 2019, the Bank would
seek the approval of RBI for the above period and also specifically seek approval of RBI for extension of his term beyond
attainment of 70 years of age and upto April 30, 2019.
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In terms of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has received a notice in writing along with deposit of
500, from a Member signifying the intention to propose the candidature of Mr. K. V. Kamath for the office of director on
conclusion of his term on April 30, 2014.

The Board at the same Meeting also considered the remuneration being paid to the Chairman where the amounts currently
approved by both Members as well as RBI is as mentioned in Para 1 of this Explanatory Statement. The Board noted that
the remuneration of ¥ 2,000,000 per annum was being paid to Mr. K. V. Kamath since 2009 and considering his continuing
contribution to the Bank in his role as Chairman of the Board and several Board Committees and his stature in the country
and in the financial sector globally, the remuneration for the next five years may need to be revised from time to time to
be commensurate with his contribution. The Board felt that it would be appropriate to decide on a maximum scale for the
next five years within which the annual remuneration can be revised.

The Board accordingly, subject to other approvals as already highlighted earlier, approved a revised remuneration
threshold of upto ¥ 5,000,000 per annum within which remuneration as approved by the Board from time to time may be
paid to Mr. K. V. Kamath with effect from May 1, 2014. Any revision in remuneration even within this limit would require
the prior approval of RBI. The other facilities which are approved by RBI vide its letter dated March 12, 2009 and as
mentioned in Para 1 of the Explanatory Statement would continue to remain the same.

The Directors recommend the adoption of the Resolution at Item No. 10 of the Notice.

No Director is in any way concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item No. 10 of the Notice except Mr. K. V. Kamath.

Item Nos. 11-13

The Members/RBI during the period 2009-2012 approved the appointments/re-appointments as well as remuneration
terms payable to the following directors:

The Members by way of postal ballot in February 2009, approved the re-appointment of Ms. Chanda Kochhar as Joint
Managing Director & CFO effective April 1, 2009 upto April 30, 2009 and appointment as Managing Director & CEO
effective May 1, 2009 upto March 31, 2014. RBI vide its letter dated March 12, 2009 approved the re-appointment of
Ms. Chanda Kochhar as Joint Managing Director & CFO effective April 1, 2009 upto April 30, 2009 and appointment as
Managing Director and CEO effective May 1, 2009 upto April 30, 2012. RBI further vide its letter dated April 19, 2012
approved re-appointment of the Managing Director & CEO for a further period of two years effective May 1, 2012 upto
April 30, 2014.

The Members at the Annual General Meeting held on June 29, 2009 approved the appointment of Mr. N. S. Kannan as
Executive Director & CFO for a period of five years effective May 1, 2009 upto April 30, 2014 and Mr. K. Ramkumar as
Executive Director for a period of five years effective February 1, 2009 upto January 31, 2014. RBI vide its letter dated
June 16, 2009 approved the appointments of Mr. N. S. Kannan and Mr. K. Ramkumar as Executive Directors effective May
1, 2009 to April 30, 2012 and effective February 1, 2009 to January 31, 2012 respectively. RBI further vide its letter dated
January 3, 2012 approved the re-appointment of Mr. K. Ramkumar as Executive Director effective February 1, 2012 upto
January 31, 2014 and vide its letter dated April 19, 2012 approved the re-appointment of Mr. N. S. Kannan as Executive
Director effective May 1, 2012 upto April 30, 2014.

As the terms approved by the shareholders as well as RBI for the above Directors would conclude during the period
January — April 2014 which would be before the convening of the AGM in 2014, the Board at its Meeting held on April 26,
2013 considered the re-appointments of these Directors for a further period of five years as well as remuneration terms
payable to these directors in the light of their valuable contribution to the Bank.

Ms. Kochhar began her career with erstwhile ICICI Limited in 1984 and was elevated to the Board of the Bank in 2001. She
was instrumental in establishing ICICI Bank during the 1990s, as well as steering the Bank towards a leadership position
in its retail business with strong focus on technology, innovation, process re-engineering and expansion of distribution
and scale. From 2007 to 2009, she was the Joint Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer during a critical period of
rapid change in the global financial landscape. She was elevated as Managing Director & CEO of ICICI Bank in 2009
and is currently responsible for the Bank’s diverse operations in India and overseas. She also chairs the boards of the
Bank’s principal subsidiaries, which include India’s leading private sector life and general insurance companies. She was
conferred with the Padma Bhushan, one of India’s highest civilian honours, in 2011.

Mr. N. S. Kannan, Executive Director & CFO has been with the ICICI Group for about 22 years. He joined the Group as a
project officer. During his tenure at the ICICI Group he has also handled infrastructure financing, structured finance and
treasury operations. He also served in the positions of Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of ICICI Bank and Executive



Director of ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company. He was designated as Executive Director & CFO on May 1, 2009
and currently heads the critical functions including finance, treasury and risk management. In 2013, Mr. Kannan was
named the Best CFO in the Indian banking/financial services sector at the CNBC TV 18 CFO Awards for the second
consecutive year.

Mr. K. Ramkumar joined the Bank in 2001 with rich experience of having served in leading companies like Hindustan
Aeronautics, Brookebond Lipton India Limited (merged with Hindustan Unilever Limited) and ICl India Limited in the areas
of Human Resources Management and Manufacturing. He was elevated to the Board in February 2009 as an Executive
Director and is responsible for Human Resources, Customer Service & Operations. He is responsible for nurturing key
institutions such as The Institute for Finance, Banking & Insurance and ICICI Manipal Academy for Banking & Insurance.

The Board was of the view that the vast experience of the above Directors across the Bank’s and the Group'’s businesses
and functions would be invaluable in providing stability while at the same time charting the Bank’s future strategic course
in the emerging global environment.

Hence, the Board of Directors, at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 (based on the recommendation of the Board Governance,
Remuneration & Nomination Committee) approved the re-appointments of the above Directors as detailed below:

{1 Re-appointment of Ms. Chanda Kochhar as Managing Director & CEO for a period of five years effective April 1,
2014 to March 31, 2019.

25 Re-appointment of Mr. N. S. Kannan as Executive Director (designated as Executive Director & CFO) for a period of
five years effective May 1, 2014 to April 30, 2019.

& Re-appointment of Mr. K. Ramkumar as Executive Director for a period of five years effective February 1, 2014 to

January 31, 2019.

In terms of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 the Company has received notices in writing from some Members
alongwith a deposit of ¥ 500 for each Director as mentioned above signifying their intention to propose the candidature
of the above Directors on the conclusion of their respective terms in the respective designations with which they are
conferred with currently.

The Board at its above Meeting also noted that the salary range within which the remuneration was being paid to Directors
had been approved by the shareholders at the time of their respective appointments in the year 2009. The current salary
ranges for the positions of Managing Director & CEO and Executive Directors have remained the same since 2007 when
the salary range for the Managing Director & CEO was set as ¥ 700,000-X 1,350,000 per month and the salary range for an
Executive Director was set as ¥ 300,000-% 1,000,000 per month. The Bank follows the practice of seeking approval of the
shareholders for a minimum and maximum salary range within which the Board is conferred with the authority to approve
the monthly salary as well as decide the annual increments to be given to the Directors. On an average the level of annual
increments recommended by the Board in the basic salary is in the range of 15% over the last two years.

The Bank being governed by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as RBI guidelines is subject to a stringent regulatory
framework whereby any benefit conferred whether in monetary or non-monetary form would be subject to approval
of RBI. The Bank accordingly seeks the approval of RBlI as and when the Board recommends increments, allowances,
performance bonus, stock options and any other remuneration component, even within the ranges already approved by
the shareholders.

Considering the time period of almost six years since 2007 when the salary ranges were last revised, the Board (on the
basis of the recommendation of the Board Governance Remuneration & Nomination Committee) at its Meeting held
on April 26, 2013 had recommended a revision in the remuneration (including supplementary allowance) payable to
Ms. Chanda Kochhar, Mr. N. S. Kannan and Mr. K. Ramkumar effective April 1, 2013 as per the details given below:

Amounts in X per month

Name and Designation Existing Proposed Present Proposed monthly
salary range | salary range | monthly salary salary effective
April 1, 2013

Ms. Chanda Kochhar, Managing Director & CEO 700,000- 1,350,000- 1,270,750 1,461,370
1,350,000 2,600,000

Mr. N. S. Kannan, Executive Director & CFO 300,000- 950,000- 839,500 965,430
1,000,000 1,700,000

Mr. K. Ramkumar, Executive Director 300,000- 950,000- 839,500 965,430
1,000,000 1,700,000
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The Board or any Committee thereof, may in its absolute discretion and from time to time, fix within the above ranges, the
salary payable to Ms. Chanda Kochhar, Mr. N. S. Kannan and Mr. K. Ramkumar, subject to the approval of RBI.

The present supplementary allowance being paid to the above Directors is in the nature of a fixed amount. The Board
at its above Meeting also approved a minimum and maximum range of supplementary allowance within which monthly
supplementary allowance as determined by the Board from time to time may be paid to the Directors subject to the
approval of RBI.

The details of the existing and proposed supplementary allowance effective April 1, 2013 are given below:

Amounts in X per month

Name and Designation Proposed range Current Proposed
for supplementary | supplementary supplementary
allowance allowance allowance effective
April 1, 2013
Ms. Chanda Kochhar, Managing Director & CEO 1,000,000 - 1,800,000 870,862 1,001,500
Mr. N. S. Kannan, Executive Director & CFO 675,000 - 1,225,000 596,037 685,500
Mr. K. Ramkumar, Executive Director 675,000 - 1,225,000 596,037 685,500

The Bank’s approach to compensation is intended to drive meritocracy within the framework of prudent risk management.
Compensation is linked to corporate performance, business performance and individual performance considering also
the developments in the operating environment. The structure of remuneration for wholetime Directors seeks to ensure
that fixed pay is reasonable, taking into account all factors including industry practice, and remuneration is reflective of
risk outcomes. The fixed cash compensation levels are also benchmarked with other Indian private sector banks. The
above revisions are in line with the compensation for comparable positions in other Indian private sector banks and are
significantly moderate relative to the compensation for comparators in the non-banking industry and for directors in
similar positions.

The Directors recommend the adoption of the Resolutions at ltem Nos. 11-13 of the Notice. The information contained
in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement appended thereto may be treated as an abstract under Section 302 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

No Director is in any way concerned or interested in the Resolutions at ltem Nos. 11-13 of the Notice except Ms. Chanda
Kochhar, Mr. N. S. Kannan and Mr. K. Ramkumar.

Item No. 14

The Members of the Company vide Resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on June 28, 2010 approved
the appointment and remuneration of Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal as a wholetime Director (designated as Executive Director) of
the Bank effective from the date of receipt of approval from RBI i.e. June 24, 2010 upto June 23, 2015. RBI, vide its letter
dated June 24, 2010 approved the appointment of Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal as an Executive Director effective June 24, 2010
upto June 23, 2013. The Bank has made an application to RBI seeking approval for re-appointment of Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal
for a further period of two years effective June 24, 2013 upto June 23, 2015.

The Explanatory Statement to Item Nos. 11-13 already details the framework within which the structure of remuneration
for wholetime Directors is fixed and the fact that the Board (based on the recommendations of the Board Governance,
Remuneration & Nomination Committee) at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 recommended a revision in the remuneration
(including supplementary allowance) payable to wholetime Directors.

On the same lines, the remuneration for Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal has been revised from the existing range of ¥ 300,000 -
¥ 1,000,000 per month to ¥ 900,000 - ¥ 1,600,000 per month with the proposed monthly salary effective April 1, 2013
being ¥ 912,530 per month as against the present monthly salary of ¥ 793,500. As per the revision in the supplementary
allowance, Mr. Sabharwal would be entitled to a supplementary allowance within the proposed range of ¥ 650,000 -
< 1,200,000 per month effective April 1, 2013 with the supplementary allowance effective April 1, 2013 being ¥ 663,500
per month as against the present fixed amount of ¥ 576,713 per month.
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The Board or any Committee thereof, may in its absolute discretion and from time to time, fix within the above ranges,
the salary (including supplementary allowance) payable to Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal, subject to the approval of RBI. The
information contained in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement appended thereto may be treated as an abstract under
Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Directors recommend the adoption of the Resolution at Item No. 14 of the Notice.

No Director is in any way concerned or interested in the Resolution at tem No. 14 of the Notice except Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal.

By Order of the Board

Sandeep Batra
Group Compliance Officer
& Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 13, 2013

Registered Office: Corporate Office:
Landmark ICICI Bank Towers
Race Course Circle Bandra-Kurla Complex
Vadodara 390 007 Mumbai 400 051
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Pursuant to Clause 49 of the listing agreements with the stock exchanges, following information is
furnished about the Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed

1

12

Mr. Dileep Choksi is a qualified chartered accountant and has over 35 years of professional experience. He was
formerly the Joint Managing Partner of Deloitte in India. In addition to tax and commercial law, his areas of practice
have included the audit & assurance functions. In the field of banking, he has held the positions of director and
member of advisory boards. He has dealt with multinational corporations and leading national enterprises. He is
presently a non-executive Director of three subsidiary companies of ICICI Bank - ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company Limited, ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited and ICICI Home Finance Company
Limited. Mr. Choksi held 500 shares of the Company as on May 3, 2013.

Other Directorships

Committee Memberships

Name of Company

Name of Committee

ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company Limited

NSE IT Limited

ICICI Prudential Asset Management
Company Limited

Reliance GeneMedix Plc

ICICI Bank Limited

Audit Committee, Alternate Chairman
Risk Committee

Fraud Monitoring Committee

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited
Audit Committee, Chairman

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited

Audit Committee
3i Infotech Limited
NSE IT Limited
ICICI Home Finance Company Audit Committee, Chairman
Limited
Reliance GeneMedix Plc
ACE Derivatives and Commodity Audit Committee, Chairman
Exchange Limited
3i Infotech Limited
Datamatics Global Services Limited Audit Committee, Chairman
Lupin Limited ICICI Home Finance Company Limited
Audit Committee

Mafatlal Cipherspace Private Limited
ACE Derivatives and Commodity Exchange Limited
Audit Committee

Lupin Limited
Audit Committee

Mr. K. V. Kamath is the non-executive Chairman of the Board of Directors of ICICI Bank and Infosys Limited. He
has a degree in mechanical engineering and did his management studies at The Indian Institute of Management,
Ahmedabad. Mr. Kamath started his career in 1971 at ICICI, an Indian financial institution that founded ICICI Bank
and merged with it in 2002. In 1988, he moved to the Asian Development Bank and spent several years in South-
East Asia before returning to ICICI as its Managing Director & CEO in 1996. Under his leadership, the ICICI Group
transformed itself into a diversified, technology-driven financial services group that has leadership positions across
banking, insurance and asset management in India, and an international presence. He retired as Managing Director
& CEO in April 2009, and took up his present position as non-executive Chairman. Mr. Kamath joined the Board of
Infosys in May 2009 and took over as Chairman of the Board in August 2011. Mr. Kamath held 4,90,000 shares of
the Company as on May 3, 2013.



Other Directorships Committee Memberships

Name of Company Name of Committee
Infosys Limited, Chairman ICICI Bank Limited

Credit Committee, Chairman
Schlumberger Limited Customer Service Committee, Chairman

Risk Committee, Chairman

Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee, Chairman
Fraud Monitoring Committee

Information Technology Strategy Committee

Schlumberger Limited
Audit Committee
Finance Committee, Chairman

Dr. Tushaar Shah was first appointed on the Board of ICICI Bank Limited effective May 3, 2010. Dr. Shah is a
Senior Fellow of the Colombo-based International Water Management Institute and works out of Anand in Gujarat,
western India. He is an economist and public policy specialist and was formerly the Director of the Institute of
Rural Management at Anand in India. He has over 30 years of experience and has done extensive research in
water institutions and policies. He was honoured with the Outstanding Scientist award of the Consultative Group
of International Agricultural Research (CGIAR) in 2002. His most recent publication is “Taming the Anarchy:
Groundwater Governance in South Asia” published by the Resources for the Future Press, Washington. Dr. Shah
does not hold any shares of the Company as on May 3, 2013.

Other Directorships Committee Memberships
Name of Company Name of Committee
Nil ICICI Bank Limited
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal is an Executive Director on the Board of ICICI Bank. He is responsible for retail and rural
banking. He is also the non-executive Chairman of ICICI Home Finance Company Limited. Mr. Sabharwal has a
degree in mechanical engineering from the Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi and did his management studies
at Indian Institute of Management, Lucknow. He has over 20 years of experience in the banking & financial services
industry. He has been with the ICICI Group since 1998 (apart from a brief period during 2009-2010) and has held
leadership positions in various areas of the retail and rural banking businesses. His contribution in the growth of
ICICI Bank’s mortgage and retail business is widely acknowledged. He was elevated to the Board of Directors of
ICICI Bank in 2010. Mr. Sabharwal does not hold any shares of the Company as on May 3, 2013.

Other Directorships Committee Memberships

Name of Company Name of Committee

ICICI Home Finance Company ICICI Bank Limited

Limited, Chairman Fraud Monitoring Committee
Asset Liability Management Committee

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Committee of Executive Directors

Company Limited Committee for Identification of Wilful Defaulters
Grievance Redressal Committee for Borrowers Identified as Wilful
Defaulters

Committee of Senior Management

ICICI Home Finance Company Limited
Asset Liability Management Committee
Committee of Directors

Management Committee
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Ms. Chanda Kochhar is the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of ICICI Bank. She is widely recognised
for her role in shaping the retail banking sector in India and for her leadership of the ICICI Group, as well as her
contributions to various forums in India and globally.

Ms. Kochhar began her career with erstwhile ICICI Limited in 1984 and was elevated to the Board of Directors of
ICICI Bank in 2001. She was instrumental in establishing ICICI Bank during the 1990s, and subsequently headed
the infrastructure finance and corporate banking business in ICICI Limited. In 2000, she took on the challenge of
building the nascent retail business, with strong focus on technology, innovation, process re-engineering and
expansion of distribution and scale. The Bank achieved a leadership position in this business. During 2006-2007,
she successfully led the Bank’s corporate and international banking businesses during a period of heightened
activity and global expansion by Indian companies. From 2007 to 2009, she was the Joint Managing Director &
Chief Financial Officer during a critical period of rapid change in the global financial landscape. She was elevated
as Managing Director & CEO of ICICI Bank in 2009 and is responsible for the Bank’s diverse operations in India
and overseas. She also chairs the boards of the Bank's principal subsidiaries, which include India’s leading private
sector life and general insurance companies.

In addition to her responsibilities at the ICICI Group, Ms. Kochhar is a member of the Prime Minister’s Council
on Trade & Industry, the Board of Trade, High-Level Committee on Financing Infrastructure, US-India CEO Forum
and UK-India CEO Forum. She is Deputy Chairperson of the Indian Banks’ Association, and a member of the
boards of the Indian Council for Research on International Economic Relations, National Institute of Securities
Markets, Institute of International Finance, Inc and International Monetary Conference. She was co-chair of the
World Economic Forum’s Annual Meeting in 2011.

She was conferred with the Padma Bhushan, one of India’s highest civilian honours, in 2011. Ms. Kochhar held
3,28,925 shares of the Company as on May 3, 2013.

Other Directorships Committee Memberships
Name of Company Name of Committee
ICICI Bank UK Plc, Chairperson ICICI Bank Limited
Committee of Executive Directors, Chairperson
ICICI Bank Canada, Chairperson Grievance Redressal Committee for Borrowers ldentified as Wilful

Defaulters, Chairperson
ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Company, Chairperson Credit Committee
Customer Service Committee
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Fraud Monitoring Committee
Company Limited, Chairperson Risk Committee
Information Technology Strategy Committee
ICICI Lombard General Insurance Committee of Senior Management

Company Limited, Chairperson
ICICI Bank UK Plc

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Board Governance & Ethics Committee
Company Limited, Chairperson
ICICI Bank Canada

ICICI Securities Limited, Chairperson | Board Governance and Remuneration Committee, Chairperson

ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company
Governance Committee, Chairperson

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited
Board Governance Committee

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited
Governance Committee, Chairperson

ICICI Securities Limited
Governance Committee, Chairperson




Mr. N. S. Kannanis the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of ICICI Bank. His responsibilities include Finance,
Treasury, Commercial Banking, Corporate Legal, Risk Management, Secretarial, Corporate Communications and
Corporate Branding. Prior to his current assignment at ICICI Bank, Mr. Kannan was the Executive Director of ICICI
Prudential Life Insurance Company. Earlier, Mr. Kannan was the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of ICICI Bank.

Mr. N. S. Kannan has been with the ICICI Group for about 22 years. He joined the Group as a project officer.
During his tenure at the ICICI Group he has also handled infrastructure financing, structured finance and treasury
operations. He was designated as Executive Director & CFO on May 1, 2009 and currently heads critical functions
including finance, treasury and risk management. In 2013, Mr. Kannan was named the Best CFO in the Indian
banking/financial services sector at the CNBC TV 18 CFO Awards for the second consecutive year.

Mr. Kannan is a postgraduate in management from the Indian Institute of Management, Bangalore with a gold
medal for best all-round performance. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst from the Institute of Chartered
Financial Analysts of India and an Honours graduate in mechanical engineering. Mr. Kannan held 77,725 shares of
the Company as on May 3, 2013.

Other Directorships

Committee Memberships

Name of Company

Name of Committee

ICICI Bank UK Plc

ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability
Company

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company Limited

ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company Limited

ICICI Prudential Asset Management
Company Limited

ICICI Securities Primary Dealership
Limited, Chairman

ICICI Bank Limited

Asset Liability Management Committee, Chairman

Committee of Executive Directors

Committee for Identification of Wilful Defaulters

Grievance Redressal Committee for Borrowers ldentified as Wilful
Defaulters

Share Transfer & Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee
Committee of Senior Management

ICICI Bank UK Plc
Board Governance & Ethics Committee

ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company
Audit Committee, Chairman
Risk Committee, Chairman

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited
Board Investment Committee
Board Risk Management Committee

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited
Investment Committee

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited
Committee of Directors, Chairman
Investment Committee

ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited
Audit Committee

Nomination Committee

Governance Committee

15



0ICICI Bank

7 Mr. K. Ramkumar is the Executive Director of ICICI Bank. Mr. Ramkumar joined the Bank in 2001 with rich
experience of having served in leading companies like Hindustan Aeronautics, Brookebond Lipton India Limited
(merged with Hindustan Unilever Limited) and ICl India Limited in the areas of Human Resources Management and
Manufacturing. He is responsible for Human Resources, Customer Service & Operations. He joined the Board of
Directors with effect from February 1, 2009 and is responsible for nurturing key institutions such as The Institute
for Finance, Banking & Insurance and ICICI Manipal Academy for Banking & Insurance.

Mr. Ramkumar has completed his Post Graduate Diploma in Personnel Management from Madras School of
Social Work in 1984 and B.Sc Chemistry in 1982. Mr. Ramkumar does not hold any shares of the Company as on

May 3, 2013.

Other Directorships Committee Memberships

Name of Company Name of Committee

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance ICICI Bank Limited

Company Limited Committee of Executive Directors
Asset Liability Management Committee

ICICI Venture Funds Management Committee for Identification of Wilful Defaulters

Company Limited Grievance Redressal Committee for Borrowers Identified as Wilful
Defaulters

Committee of Senior Management

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited

Board Audit Committee

Board Customer Service & Policyholders’ Protection Committee
Board Compensation and Nomination Committee

ICICI Venture Funds Management Company Limited
Compensation and Corporate Governance Committee
Employee Co-Invest Committee

By Order of the Board

Sandeep Batra
Group Compliance Officer
& Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 13, 2013

Registered Office: Corporate Office:
Landmark ICICI Bank Towers
Race Course Circle Bandra-Kurla Complex
Vadodara 390 007 Mumbai 400 051
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A network that spans Fostering savings and
the rural hinterland building rural wealth

Promoting Inclusive Growth

Inclusive growth has to encompass all segments
of the population not only by income but by
where they live — be it urban India or rural India.
The penetration of financial services is low in rural
India, and enhancing access to financial services
Is an important pillar of inclusive growth.

Today, rural India is evolving rapidly and is
changing in character. It has diversified from just
agriculture to manufacturing and services sectors.
Rural India has demonstrated the potential to be a
sustainable growth engine for the economy.

Our rural and inclusive banking strategy is to
rapidly expand in the rural markets, leverage
our strengths in technology and deliver relevant
products and services to the rural and unbanked
population through a multi-channel network.
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Message
from the Chairman

Fiscal 2013 has been a challenging year for the Indian
economy. Growth has slowed to levels lower than we
have seen in a long time. The current account deficit
has increased substantially, which along with other
factors has put pressure on the currency. Credit and
deposit growth have moderated, and interest rates
remain high, albeit lower than a year ago. While policy
measures by the Government during the second
half of the year, most notably the reining in of the
fiscal deficit, have begun to address the economic
challenges, there continues to be widespread
pessimism about India’s future economic prospects
and our ability to get back to 8% GDP growth. In my
view, we do have the ability to get back on a high
growth path, if we understand the causes of the
current slowdown and address them appropriately.

Economic growth has been impacted by a slowdown
in investment activity. This is largely attributable
to delays in execution and cash flow generation in
existing projects under implementation, primarily
arising out of issues around access to land and natural
resources, and administrative and environmental
clearances. The hectic pace of investment activity
in earlier years has led to concerns that interests of
local stakeholders and environmental issues have
not been given due attention. There is indeed a need
to have a robust policy framework that balances the
priorities of investment with other considerations.
What is important is for us to put this in place quickly
and maintain its stability so that the rules of doing
business are clear and are consistently followed.

Consumption demand and consumer-related sectors
have also been impacted by inflation and high
interest rates. The moderation in core inflation and
the progress on fiscal consolidation have given the
monetary authorities the space to reduce interest
rates, and this process has commenced. Going

K.V. KAMATH Chairman

forward, one would hope for a continued reduction
in interest rates to help create conditions for growth.

Both the manufacturing and domestic services
sectors will benefit from the above sets of measures,
given the close inter-linkages across various parts
of the economy. The rural economy has already
made significant gains in terms of diversification of
activity and increase in incomes, and continues to
have the potential for robust growth. The export-
oriented knowledge-based services sector will need
to continue to evolve to meet the changing needs of
the global consumers of their services, focusing on
value addition and building capabilities in emerging
areas of information technology. This sector has
demonstrated its ability to capitalise on new
opportunities in the past, and | believe will continue
to do so.

Further, a number of long-term measures are under
consideration or implementation that will boost
the efficiency and productivity of the economy.
These include the rollout of Aadhaar, the introduction
of direct benefit transfers to beneficiaries’
bank accounts and the introduction of goods &
services tax.




In summary, the Indian economy continues to have
the potential for sustained high growth. There has
been positive movementin some areas, with the fiscal
deficit being contained and inflation moderating,
though the current account deficit continues to be
high. Creating the right policy framework for capital
formation and further easing of interest rates would
be the immediate priorities, even as long-term
policy initiatives are taken to enhance economic
efficiency. With these enablers in place, the natural
entrepreneurial mindset and aspirational energy
of the country will move us quickly back to a high
growth path.

Even as we in India focus on addressing the domestic
issues at hand, we must not lose sight of the
transformational changes taking place globally and
the opportunities they create for us. These changes
are being driven by technology, which has already
in just the last decade changed the way we live and
work. The increasing computing power and dropping
costs of mobile devices, and expanding access to
affordable bandwidth, means that an ever-growing
number of people have in their hands a device with
great functionality that they can use to access and
share information as well as transact business. And
thisis not a one-way street —each person is becoming
an information node that feeds into a global data
pool. Increasingly sophisticated techniques are being
developed to mine this data pool for a diverse range
of applications — designing products & services,
increasing sales, improving the quality of education,
preventing disease, protecting the environment,
enhancing economic empowerment, solving
unanswered scientific questions — the list is long.
India already has the fifth largest smartphone user
base globally, mobile internet access has overtaken
desktop access in terms of share of traffic and the
number of mobile internet users is almost doubling

every year. These trends, coupled with dropping costs
and the rollout of Aadhaar, offer the opportunity for
new paradigms in business, education, healthcare
and other areas.

The ICICI Group under its able executive management
team is focused on strengthening its franchise,
capitalising on new opportunities and investing in
growth while exercising prudence where required
in the context of challenges in the environment. |
believe this strategic approach will drive continued
strong performance in the years ahead.

With best wishes,

K- Vanter Kond

-

K.V. Kamath
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Message from
the Managing Director
& CEO

In fiscal 2013, we followed a three-pronged
strategy of balancing growth, profitability and risk
management. Through this approach, we achieved
several key milestones, thereby further strengthening
our platform for profitable growth.

The vyear witnessed several challenges in the
operating and business environment. Even as
the global economic environment continued to
be subdued, we saw a significant slowdown in
economic growth in India. While India’s long-term
economic fundamentals and growth potential are
strong, the current challenges have had implications
for business sentiment, corporate profitability and
banking sector growth & asset quality. | am happy
to report that despite these developments, our
strategy of balancing growth, profitability and risk
management has enabled us to make continued
progress on our strategic path.

Let me take this opportunity to share with you some
of our key achievements during fiscal 2013:

e |n fiscal 2013 was the first full year where ICICI
Bank achieved full year net interest margins of
above 3.0%. This is the result of our consistent
efforts to improve our funding profile as well as
spreads in both our domestic and international
businesses. Our strong deposit franchise is
reflected in our current & savings account (CASA)
ratio of about 42% at March 31, 2013, despite the
low growth in demand deposits for the system.

* The focus on operating efficiency continued into
fiscal 2013, with equal emphasis on controlling
costs and generating higher revenues. This
resulted in a reduction in the cost-to-income ratio
for the Bank from 42.9% in fiscal 2012 to 40.5% in
fiscal 2013.

* The trends in asset quality for the banking sector
have not been encouraging in fiscal 2013. The
banking sector has seen significant additions to
non-performing assets (NPA) and restructured
loans during the year. Despite these systemic
trends, ICIClI Bank's asset quality continued to

CHANDA KOCHHAR Managing Director & CEO

remain stable. Our net NPA ratio at March 31, 2013
was 0.64% compared to 0.62% at March 31, 2012.
In fiscal 2013, we restructured loans aggregating
about X 17.00 billion - significantly lower than the
loan restructuring of about ¥ 36.00 billion in the
previous financial year. As a result of the above,
we were able to contain total provisions as a
percentage of average loans at 66 basis points in
fiscal 2013 - marginally lower than the levels seen
in fiscal 2012.

* Fiscal 2013 also saw a significant improvement in
our retail lending growth — a key target that we had
set for ourselves since fiscal 2012. Our organic
retail loan growth reached 25% on a year-on-year
basis at March 31, 2013. This sets the base for
continued momentum in this area going forward.
On an overall basis, our domestic loan growth of
18% year-on-year at March 31, 2013 was ahead of
overall banking system credit growth.

¢ Thecombined effect ofimprovementin profitability
parameters and growth in business volumes was
reflected in a 29% growth in ICICI Bank's profit
after tax to ¥ 83.25 billion in fiscal 2013. This
translates into an increase of over 20 basis points
in the Bank's return on assets to 1.66%.

e During fiscal 2013, we continued to see healthy
improvement in our consolidated profit after



tax, with a growth of 26% to ¥ 96.04 billion. The
consolidated return on equity (RoE) improved
from 13.0% in fiscal 2012 to 14.7% in fiscal 2013.

* We continued to maintain a very strong capital
position that will support growth in the coming
years. We are focused on further enhancing RoE
by evaluating capital deployment across our
businesses to enhance the efficiency of capital
utilization, and pursuing profitable growth. As part
of this process, ICIClI Bank received aggregate
capital repatriation of USD 100 million from its UK
subsidiary in fiscal 2013.

While achieving improved financial performance, we
continued our efforts to strengthen our franchise and
build capabilities for future growth. During the year,
we continued to focus on enhancing our customer
proposition through a combination of physical &
technology platforms and innovative product offerings.
In fiscal 2013, we added 348 branches and 1,475
ATMs to our network, taking our branch and ATM
network to 3,100 and 10,481 respectively at March
31, 2013. We also focused on increasing convenience
for customers by expanding our technology-based
offerings, including 24x7 electronic branches and tab
banking. We introduced innovative product features
such as the “MySavings Rewards” programme and the
“iIWish” flexible recurring deposit product. With over
2.0 million fans at March 31, 2013, our Facebook page
not only had the largest fan base, but also the highest
engagement rates in comparison to other Indian banks.
Our endeavour, going forward, will be to continue to
build on these improvements and leverage our strong
capital base and franchise to further enhance the
returns that we generate for our shareholders.

We also continued to play a proactive role in nation
building. The ICICI Group's current activities in this
regard range from financial inclusion to working in
the areas of education, healthcare and sustainable
livelihoods. During fiscal 2013, we substantially
expanded our presence in rural markets through a
combination of branches and business correspondent
channels. We established 152 rural branches
(including 127 low cost branches in unbanked

villages), representing over 40% of our total branch
additions during the year. At March 31, 2013, we
had about 14.9 million financial inclusion accounts
with over 13,5600 villages under the coverage of our
financial inclusion plan. Our strategy is to provide a
comprehensive product suite encompassing savings,
credit and remittances to customers in rural India,
through a multi-channel network.

Ourinitiatives in education, healthcare and livelihoods
are delivered through the ICICI Foundation for
Inclusive Growth. In the area of elementary education,
we have partnered with the state governments of
Rajasthan and Chhattisgarh to improve teaching
and learning outcomes in the state-run schools.
This includes designing syllabi, developing new
textbooks and providing teacher training modules
for the state-run schools. In the area of healthcare,
we achieved success in our pilot programme to
provide insured outpatient care to the poor. The
Government has therefore decided in principle to
incorporate outpatient care into the flagship Rashtriya
Swasthya Bima Yojana. In the area of livelihoods, we
strengthened the functioning and reach of our rural
self-employment training institutes in Rajasthan. We
have identified skill building among the youth as a
key priority, and are working on creating a large-scale
initiative in this area.

Going forward, we will continue to strengthen our
franchise to position ourselves to take advantage
of the long-term growth opportunities arising
out of India's economic growth, while navigating
the short term economic cycles. The milestones
that we achieved in fiscal 2013 are reflective of
this approach. Our focus will be to build on these
achievements and deliver sustainable value creation
for all our stakeholders. As always, | look forward to
your continued support in this endeavour.

With best wishes,

Aot

Chanda Kochhar
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Directors’ Report

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Nineteenth Annual Report of ICICI Bank Limited along with
the audited statement of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2013.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The financial performance for fiscal 2013 is summarised in the following table:

% billion, except percentages Fiscal 2012 | Fiscal 2013 % change
Netinterest income and other income . et 82238 22212 ... 21.8%,
OPEIAUNG BXDONSES | et 7890 9013 14.8%
Provisions & contiNGenCies! e 19.83 e 18.02 e 13.8%
O IO o e 8803 ....M1897 29.5%

Profit after tax 64.65 83.25 28.8%

1. Excludes provision for taxes.

Consolidated profit after tax 76.43 96.04 25.7%

Appropriations

The profit after tax of the Bank for fiscal 2013 is ¥ 83.25 billion after provisions and contingencies of
T 18.02 billion, provision for taxes of ¥ 30.72 billion and all expenses. The disposable profit is ¥ 153.79
billion, taking into account the balance of ¥ 70.54 billion brought forward from the previous year. In
accordance with the guidelines prescribed by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and the dividend policy adopted
by the Bank, your Directors have recommended a dividend at the rate of ¥ 20.00 per equity share of face
value X 10 for the year and have appropriated the disposable profit as follows:

To Statutory Reserve, making in all ¥ 110.74 billion 16.17 20.82
Tospec|a|Reservecreatedandmamtamedmtermsofsect|on36(1)(v||,)650760

of the Income-tax Act, 1961, making in all ¥ 45.79 billion
Tocap|ta|Reservemakmgmanfzzwb”hon038033
ToRevenueandotherreservesmak|ng|na||?4990b||||on1002003

— On equity shares @ X 20.00 per share (@ X 16.50 per share for 19.02 23.07
fiscal 2012)?
_OnpreferenceShareS(?) ................................................................................................................... 35000 ................... 35000
_Corporated,v,dendtax220292
LeavmgbalancetobecamedforwardmtheneXtyear ............................................................. 7 054 ..................... 9 902

1. Includes transfer to Reserve Fund and Investment Fund account X 27.8 million for fiscal 2013 (X 10.7 million for
fiscal 2012) in accordance with regulations applicable to Sri Lanka branch. No amount was transferred to General
Reserve in fiscal 2013 (X 3.2 million for fiscal 2012).

2. Includes dividend for the prior year paid on shares issued after the balance sheet date and prior to the
record date.
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A network that spans the rural hinterland

In order to support the growth of the rural markets, it is imperative that we are
present at the heart of rural India. We have therefore expanded our reach and
access through a strong network of rural branches and Business Correspondents.

Today we have 464 rural branches including 131 Gramin branches in unbanked
villages. ICICI Bank's Gramin branches are specially designed to offer services
which are required in these unbanked areas. Through these branches, the Bank
facilitates banking services to customers in the villages and also facilitates payment
of government benefits to beneficiaries.

To further reach out to the rural population, ICICI Bank has also tied up with over
25 business correspondents and has a network of over 7,500 customer service
points (CSPs). Through its network of branches and business corespondents, the
Bank covers over 13,500 villages. Going forward, we will continue to expand our
rural network.



Directors’ Report

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

At March 31, 2013, ICICI Bank had 17 subsidiaries as listed in the
following table:

Domestic Subsidiaries International Subsidiaries

|CICI Prudential Life Insurance |CICI Bank UK PLC
Company Limited

ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company Limited

ICICI Prudential Asset ICICI Bank Eurasia
Management Limited Liability Company
LOmpaNy LI g e

ICICI Securities Primary
Dealership Limited

ICICI Venture Funds Management
Company Limited

ICICI Home Finance Company

L
ICICI Investment Management
Company Limited

ICICI Prudential Pension Funds
Management Company Limited'

1. Subsidiary of ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited.
2. Subsidiary of ICICI Securities Limited.
3. Subsidiary of ICICI Securities Holdings Inc.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its Circular No.51/12/2007-
CL-Ill dated February 8, 2011 has granted general exemption under
Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956 to companies from
attaching the accounts of their subsidiaries in their annual reports
subject to fulfilment of certain conditions prescribed. Pursuant to the
requirements of the above Circular, the Board of Directors of the Bank
at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 passed the necessary resolution
granting the requisite approvals for not attaching the balance sheet,
profit & loss account, report of the board of directors and report of
the auditors of each of the subsidiary companies to the accounts of
the Bank. The Bank will make available these documents/details upon
request by any Member of the Bank. These documents/details will be

“During fiscal 2013, we
continued to focus on
enhancing our financial
performance through

an improvement in net
interest margins, better
treasury performance,
reduction in cost ratios
and stability in asset
quality trends. We
leveraged opportunities
for growth in the
domestic market with
increasing growth
momentum in retail
lending, while maintaining
our low cost funding
profile. We have
continued to invest in
expanding our network
and customer offerings
& servicing capabilities,
which combined with
our strong capital base,
position us well for future
growth and for delivering
improved returns to our
shareholders.”

N. S. KANNAN
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
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“In our continuing
endeavour to make
Khayaal Aapka come
alive to our customers,
we have rolled out 24x7
fully electronic branches
and electronic lobbies.
They are the first of
their kind in India. They
give our customers the
convenience and freedom
to transact around the
clock. In addition, our
segmented approach
to business has been
designed to offer the
best in class experience
in banking, across
customer segments.

All our employees have
internalised the Khayaal
Aapka spirit. They look
forward to making
every engagement

with our customers an
enriching and satisfying
experience.”

K. RAMKUMAR
Executive Director
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available on the Bank’s website (www.icicibank.com) and will also be
available for inspection by any Member of the Bank at its Registered
Office and Corporate Office and also at the registered offices of the
concerned subsidiaries. As required by Accounting Standard-21 (AS-
21) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the
Bank’s consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report
incorporate the accounts of its subsidiaries and other consolidating
entities. A summary of key financials of the Bank's subsidiaries is also
included in this Annual Report.

During fiscal 2013, ICICI Bank formed a joint venture with Bank of
Baroda, Citicorp Finance and Life Insurance Corporation of India, to
incorporate India Infradebt Limited, India’s first infrastructure debt fund
structured as a non-banking finance company.

DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, Sridar
lyengar retired from the Board effective April 30, 2013 on completion
of eight years as a non-executive Director. The Board placed on record
its deep appreciation and gratitude for his guidance and contribution
to the Bank.

The Board, at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013, appointed Dileep
Choksi, a chartered accountant and former Joint Managing Partner of
Deloitte in India as an additional Director effective April 26, 2013. Dileep
Choksi holds office upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting (AGM) and is eligible for appointment.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
Articles of Association of the Bank, K. V. Kamath, Tushaar Shah and
Rajiv Sabharwal would retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and
are eligible for re-appointment. K. V. Kamath, Tushaar Shah and Rajiv
Sabharwal have offered themselves for re-appointment.

The Members of the Company previously by way of postal ballot in
February 2009, approved the appointment of K. V. Kamath as non-
executive Chairman of the Bank effective May 1, 2009 upto April 30,
2014 and the re-appointment of Chanda Kochhar as Joint Managing
Director & CFO effective April 1, 2009 upto April 30, 2009 and her
appointment as Managing Director & CEO effective May 1, 2009 upto
March 31, 2014.



Fostering savings and building rural wealth

Easier access to financial services for the rural population will empower them to attain their full
income potential and plan for their future. This will also help them benefit from and contribute
to the nation’s growth.

ICICI Bank through its rural and Gramin branches and business correspondents has facilitated
the opening of about 14.9 million basic savings bank deposit accounts. Our branches partner

with business correspondents to deliver savings related services to our low-income customers.

We offer micro-savings accounts, recurring deposits, insurance policies and electronic benefit
transfer for Social Security Pension (SSP) and the Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment
Guarantee Scheme (MGNREGS).

These products are specially designed to combine convenience with security along with
minimal paperwork. Our rural customers can make frequent deposits in small variable amounts

with easy access.

As savings grow, the aspirations of the rural population will also rise giving a further boost to
India’s economic and social development.
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Credit services for strengthening
the value chain

The rural value chain, which extends from ‘farm to fork’, involves multiple stakeholders that
straddle across villages and towns, comprising large companies, small agricultural enterprises
and individuals such as farmers, agricultural traders, processors and rural entrepreneurs.

The efficiency and success of this value chain depends on each of the stakeholders being given
adequate support and relevant credit facilities. This support will help them utilise agricultural
inputs in a better manner, improve their farm production and make better use of the marketing
infrastructure to sell their products.

To support sustainable growth of different stakeholders in the value chain, ICICI Bank offers a
wide gamut of services and products to these entities. These offerings include working capital for
farmers (Kisan Credit Card), agriculture term loans for purchase of cattle and irrigation equipment,
loans against gold jewellery, finance against agricultural produce, credit facilities to rural
entrepreneurs, finance for farm mechanisation and for transportation of agricultural produce.

The benefits that will accrue to the stakeholders from these solutions and services will contribute
to their growth as well as to the holistic growth of the rural economy.



Directors’ Report

The Members at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on June
29, 2009 approved the appointment of N. S. Kannan as Executive
Director (designated as Executive Director & CFO) for a period of five
years effective May 1, 2009 upto April 30, 2014 and K. Ramkumar as
Executive Director for a period of five years effective February 1, 2009
upto January 31, 2014.

The requisite approvals have been received from RBI for all the aforesaid
appointments.

The Board at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 (based on the
recommendations of the Board Governance, Remuneration &
Nomination Committee) approved the re-appointment of the following
Directors of the Bank subject to the approval of Members and RBI for a
further period of five years as given below:

[. K. V. Kamath as non-executive Chairman of the Bank for a period of
five years effective May 1, 2014 upto April 30, 2019,

[I. Chanda Kochhar as Managing Director & CEO of the Bank for a
period of five years effective April 1, 2014 upto March 31, 2019,

[ll. N. S. Kannan as Executive Director (designated as Executive Director
& CFO) of the Bank for a period of five years effective May 1, 2014
upto April 30, 2019 and

V. K. Ramkumar as Executive Director of the Bank for a period of five
years effective February 1, 2014 upto January 31, 2019.

The resolution for the re-appointments are proposed to the Members in
the Notice of the current AGM vide item nos. 10-13 and the explanatory
statements for these items include the duration and terms of re-
appointment as well as remuneration. You are requested to consider
the re-appointment of the above Directors.

The Members approved the appointment of Rajiv Sabharwal as
Executive Director for a period of five years effective June 24, 2010 upto
June 23, 2015 at the AGM held on June 28, 2010. RBI has approved the
appointment of Rajiv Sabharwal as an Executive Director for a period of
three years effective June 24, 2010 upto June 23, 2013. An application
has been made to RBI seeking approval for re-appointment of Rajiv
Sabharwal as an Executive Director for a further period of two years
effective June 24, 2013 upto June 23, 2015.

AUDITORS

The Members are informed that while the registration number of the
statutory auditors continues to remain the same, the name of the

“We will continue to
innovate and leverage
technology to meet
the changing needs

of our customers. Our
products and services
will address customers

across age groups, as
we strive to remain their
preferred bank for life.
Our various channels of
branch banking, mobile
banking, internet, ATMs
and social media will
continue to offer the
best in class experience.
We will further increase
our commitment to rural
India by increasing our
branch footprint and
business correspondent
network.”

RAJIV SABHARWAL
Executive Director
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statutory auditors which was formerly S. R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants has been changed to
S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants with effect from April 1, 2013 consequent to their
conversion into a limited liability partnership.

The auditors, S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants will retire at the ensuing AGM. As
recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board has proposed the appointment of S. R. Batliboi &
Co. LLP Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors for fiscal 2014. Their appointment is subject to
the approval of RBI. The appointment of the auditors is proposed to the Members in the Notice of the
current AGM vide item no.7. The explanatory statement to the notice sets out the facts with respect to
the change in name. You are requested to consider their appointment.

PERSONNEL

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956 and the rules hereunder is given in an Annexure and forms part of this report. In terms of
Section 219(1)(iv) of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding the
aforesaid Annexure. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the Annexure may write to the
Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Bank.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORTING

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) through a circular dated August 13, 2012 has mandated the
inclusion of Business Responsibility (BR) Report as part of the Annual Report for the top 100 listed entities
based on their market capitalisation on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange at March
31, 2012. The SEBI circular is effective from financial year ending on or after December 31, 2012. In line
with the press release and FAQ's dated May 10, 2013 issued by SEBI, the BR Report has been hosted
on the website of the Bank http://www.icicibank.com/aboutus/annual.html. Any shareholder interested
in obtaining a physical copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of
the Bank.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Bank's risk management strategy is based on a clear understanding of various risks, disciplined
risk assessment and measurement procedures and continuous monitoring. The policies and procedures
established for this purpose are continuously benchmarked with international best practices. The Board of
Directors has oversight on all the risks assumed by the Bank. Specific Committees have been constituted
to facilitate focused oversight of various risks, as follows:

® The Risk Committee of the Board reviews risk management policies of the Bank pertaining to credit,
market, liquidity, operational, outsourcing and reputation risks, business continuity plan and disaster
recovery plan. The Committee also reviews the risk management framework with respect to Enterprise
Risk Management and risk appetite, Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and stress
testing. The stress testing framework includes a wide range of Bank-specific and market (systemic)
scenarios. Linkage of macroeconomic factors to stress test scenarios is also documented as a part
of the ICAAP. The ICAAP exercise covers the domestic and overseas operations of the Bank, banking
subsidiaries and material non-banking subsidiaries. The Committee reviews migration to the advanced
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Facilitating remittances in rural areas

An economist once said that it is not just the volume of money, but also the timeliness and
accuracy of its movement that are equally important for spurring the growth of an economy.

Following RBI's regulations permitting domestic remittances for non-account holders,

ICICI Bank was among the first banks to commence its ‘cash to account’ transfer facility through
its Business Correspondents. Within six months of its launch, the Bank was able to service
1,00,000 customers for transferring over X 1 billion to their family members in an instant,
convenient and secure manner.

We have innovated on different platforms that facilitate remittance services. Our ‘Mobile Money'
platform offered in conjunction with leading telecom providers enables customers to transfer
money safely through their mobile phones.

Further, through Mobile Money, a gamut of financial services such as deposits and cash
withdrawals, money transfer to third parties, prepaid mobile recharge and various utility bill

payments are offered.

This platform is a big step forward towards making financial inclusion a reality across India.
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approaches under Basel Il and implementation of Basel lll, risk return profile of the Bank, outsourcing
activities, compliance with RBI guidelines pertaining to credit, market and operational risk management
systems and the activities of the Asset Liability Management Committee. The Committee reviews
the level and direction of major risks pertaining to credit, market, liquidity, operational, compliance,
group, management and capital at risk as part of risk profile templates. In addition, the Committee has
oversight on risks of subsidiaries covered under the Group Risk Management Framework. The Risk
Committee also reviews the Liquidity Contingency Plan (LCP) for the Bank and the threshold limits.

® Apart from sanctioning credit proposals, the Credit Committee of the Board reviews developments in
key industrial sectors and the Bank’s exposure to these sectors as well as to large borrower accounts
and borrower groups. The Credit Committee also reviews the major credit portfolios, non-performing
loans, accounts under watch, overdues and incremental sanctions.

* The Audit Committee of the Board provides direction to and monitors the quality of the internal audit
function and also monitors compliance with inspection and audit reports of Reserve Bank of India,
other regulators and statutory auditors.

® The Asset Liability Management Committee is responsible for managing liquidity and interest rate risk
and reviewing the asset-liability position of the Bank.

Summaries of reviews conducted by these Committees are reported to the Board on a regular basis.

Policies approved from time to time by the Board of Directors/Committees of the Board form the
governing framework for each type of risk. The business activities are undertaken within this policy
framework. Independent groups and sub-groups have been constituted across the Bank to facilitate
independent evaluation, monitoring and reporting of various risks. These groups function independently
of the business groups/sub-groups.

The Bank has dedicated groups, namely, the Risk Management Group, Compliance Group, Corporate
Legal Group, Internal Audit Group and the Financial Crime Prevention & Reputation Risk Management
Group, with a mandate to identify, assess and monitor all of the Bank's principal risks in accordance with
well-defined policies and procedures. The Risk Management Group is further organised into the Credit
Risk Management Group, Market Risk Management Group and Operational Risk Management Group.
These groups are completely independent of all business operations and coordinate with representatives
of the business units to implement ICICI Bank’s risk management policies and methodologies. The
internal audit and compliance groups are responsible to the Audit Committee of the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance framework at ICICI Bank is based on an effective independent Board, the
separation of the Board's supervisory role from the executive management and the constitution of Board
Committees, generally comprising a majority of independent Directors and chaired by independent
Directors, to oversee critical areas.

l. Philosophy of Corporate Governance

ICICI Bank’s corporate governance philosophy encompasses regulatory and legal requirements, such
as the terms of listing agreements with stock exchanges which aims at a high level of business ethics,
effective supervision and enhancement of value for all stakeholders. The corporate governance framework
adopted by the Bank already encompasses a significant portion of the recommendations contained
in the ‘Corporate Governance Voluntary Guidelines 2009’ issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India.
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Whistle Blower Policy

ICICI Bank has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy comprehensively provides an opportunity
for any employee of the Bank to raise any issue concerning breaches of law, accounting policies or any
act resulting in financial or reputation loss and misuse of office or suspected or actual fraud. The policy
provides for a mechanism to report such concerns to the Audit Committee through specified channels.
The policy has been periodically communicated to the employees and also posted on the Bank's intranet.

ICICI Bank Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, ICICI Bank has instituted a comprehensive code of conduct for
prevention of insider trading.

Group Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Group Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and employees of the ICICI Group aims at
ensuring consistent standards of conduct and ethical business practices across the constituents of the
ICICI Group. This Code is reviewed on an annual basis and the latest Code is available on the website of
the Bank (www.icicibank.com). Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a confirmation from the
Managing Director & CEO regarding compliance with the Code by all the Directors and senior management
forms part of the Annual Report.

CEO/CFO Certification

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the certification by the Managing Director & CEO and
Executive Director & CFO on the financial statements and internal controls relating to financial reporting
has been obtained.

Covering letter of annual audit report to be filed with stock exchanges

In terms of Clause 31(a) of the Listing Agreement, the covering letter of the annual audit report to be
filed with the stock exchanges (Form A) duly signed by the Managing Director & CEO, Executive Director
& CFO, Auditors of the company and Chairman of the Audit Committee would be filed with the stock
exchanges alongwith the copies of the Annual Reports.

Board of Directors

ICICI Bank has a broad-based Board of Directors, constituted in compliance with the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949, the Companies Act, 1956 and listing agreements entered into with stock exchanges, and in
accordance with good corporate governance practices. The Board functions either as a full Board or
through various committees constituted to oversee specific operational areas. The Board has constituted
ten committees, namely, Audit Committee, Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Credit Committee, Customer Service Committee, Fraud
Monitoring Committee, Information Technology Strategy Committee, Risk Committee, Share Transfer
& Shareholders'/Investors’ Grievance Committee and Committee of Executive Directors. These Board
Committees other than the Committee of Executive Directors currently comprise majority of independent
Directors and are chaired by independent Directors.

At March 31, 2013, the Board of Directors consisted of 12 members. There were five Meetings of the

Board during fiscal 2013 - on April 27, July 27, and October 26 in 2012 and January 31 and February 22
in 2013. The names of the Directors, their attendance at Board Meetings during the year, attendance at
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the last AGM and the number of other directorships and board committee memberships held by them at
March 31, 2013 are set out in the following table:

Number of other
Board [Attendance directorships Number

Name of Director Meetings | at last Of Indian | Of other

of other
public |companies?| committee?
limited memberships
companies'

attended AGM
during (June 25,
the year 2012)

Independent Directors

K. V. Kamath, Chairman 5/5 Present 1 1 -
(Non-executive Director upto April 30,

2012 and Independent Director w.e.f.

May 1, 2012)

Sridar lyengar 5/5 Present 5 4(2)

L i —— s ik
L D e e Ei
e i — s e
e G — e e o
L e
e i —— o s 4(2) ...............
L
B i —— e fr———
g i r——— o
L ip—— e o
Raquabharvval .......................................................... i — e

(a) Nominee of Government of India.

1. Comprises public limited companies incorporated in India.

2. Comprises private limited companies incorporated in India and foreign companies but excludes Section 25
companies and not for profit foreign companies.

3. Comprises only Audit Committee and Share Transfer & Shareholders'/Investors’ Grievance Committee of Indian
public limited companies. Figures in parentheses indicate committee chairpersonships.

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the number of Committees (Audit Committee and Share
Transfer & Shareholders'/Investors’ Grievance Committee) of public limited companies in which a Director
is a member/chairman were within the limits provided under Clause 49, for all the Directors of the Bank.

The terms of reference of the ten Board Committees as mentioned earlier, their composition, and
attendance of the respective Members at the various Committee Meetings held during fiscal 2013 are
set out below. Pursuant to the appointment of Dileep Choksi as a non-executive Director on the Board of
the Bank effective April 26, 2013 and in anticipation of the completion of tenure of Sridar lyengar effective
April 30, 2013, certain Committees have been re-constituted by the Board at its Meeting held on April 26,
2013. The re-constitution of the said Committees is effective April 30, 2013 and the details of the same
are mentioned in the sections relating to the respective Committees.
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II. Audit Committee
Terms of Reference

The Audit Committee provides direction to the audit function and monitors the quality of internal and
statutory audit. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include overseeing the financial reporting
process to ensure fairness, sufficiency and credibility of financial statements, recommendation of
appointment and removal of central and branch statutory auditors and chief internal auditor and fixation
of their remuneration, approval of payment to statutory auditors for other permitted services rendered
by them, review of functioning of Whistle Blower Policy, review of the quarterly and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board, review of the adequacy of internal control systems and the
internal audit function, review of compliance with inspection and audit reports and reports of statutory
auditors, review of the findings of internal investigations, review of statement of significant related party
transactions, review of management letters/letters on internal control weaknesses issued by statutory
auditors, reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for the
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted
by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take steps in this matter, discussion on the scope of
audit with external auditors and examination of reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in payment to
stakeholders. The Audit Committee is also empowered to appoint/oversee the work of any registered
public accounting firm, establish procedures for receipt and treatment of complaints received regarding
accounting and auditing matters and engage independent counsel as also provide for appropriate funding
for compensation to be paid to any firm/advisors. In addition, the Audit Committee also exercises oversight
on the regulatory compliance function of the Bank. The Audit Committee is also empowered to approve
the appointment of the CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc.
of the candidate.

Composition

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent Directors and at March 31, 2013 was chaired
by Sridar lyengar, an independent Director. There were eight Meetings of the Committee during the year.

The details of the composition of the Committee and attendance at its Meetings are set out in the
following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

Sridar lyengar, Chairman (upto April 29, 2013) || oo 818 .
Homi Khusrokhan, A6ate CRAIMMEN .. e 818 e )

S RO N A e LB e )
V. Sridar 7/8

The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 re-constituted the Audit Committee effective
April 30, 2013 pursuant to which Homi Khusrokhan was appointed as Chairman of the Committee in place
of Sridar lyengar and Dileep Choksi was appointed as a Member as well as the Alternate Chairman of the
Committee.

Ill. Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee
Terms of Reference

The functions of the Committee include recommendation of appointments to the Board, evaluation of the
performance of the Managing Director & CEO and wholetime Directors on predetermined parameters,
recommendation to the Board of the remuneration (including performance bonus and perquisites) to
wholetime Directors, approval of the policy for and quantum of bonus payable to the members of the
staff, framing of guidelines for the Employees Stock Option Scheme and recommendation of grant of
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ICICI Bank stock options to the employees and wholetime Directors of ICICI Bank and its subsidiary
companies.

Composition

The Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent
Directors and at March 31, 2013 was chaired by Sridar lyengar, an independent Director. There were
three Meetings of the Committee during the year. The details of the composition of the Committee and
attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

Sridar lyengar, Chairman (upto April 29, 2013) 3/3
K. V. Kamath 3/3
Homi Khusrokhan 3/3

The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 re-constituted the Board Governance
Remuneration & Nomination Committee effective April 30, 2013 pursuant to which K. V. Kamath was
appointed as Chairman of the Committee in place of Sridar lyengar and M. S. Ramachandran was
appointed as a Member of the Committee.

Remuneration policy

The Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee determines and recommends to
the Board the amount of remuneration, including performance bonus and perquisites, payable to the
wholetime Directors.

The following table sets out the details of remuneration (including perquisites and retiral benefits) paid to
wholetime Directors for fiscal 20183.

Details of Remuneration (3)

Chanda Rajiv
Kochhar Sabharwal

BaSIC e 15,249,000 10,074,000 10,074,000 . 9522000
Performance bonus for fiscal 2013' 17,989,541 12058511 12,088,511 .10.358810
Allowances and perquisites® 14882587 . 9881711 ... 10,001,345 . .8773530
Contribution to providentfund 1829880 1208880 1208880 1142640
Contribution to superannuationfund 211,000 1,511,700 ..1.428,300
Contribution to gratuity fund 1270242 839,164 ... 839,164 . 793,183
Stock options (NUMberS ) e )

Fiscal 2018, e 250,000 125000 125000 125,000
Fiscal 2012 e 210,000 105000 105000 105,000
Fiscal 2011 210,000 105,000 105,000 105,000

1. Subject to RBI approval. Bonus will be deferred in line with RBI's guidelines on compensation with only 60% of
the bonus paid on approval and the balance deferred equally over three years.

2. Allowances and perquisites exclude valuation of the employee stock options exercised during fiscal 2013 as it
does not constitute remuneration for the purposes of Companies Act, 1956.

3. Excludes special grant of stock options approved by RBI on January 17, 2011 aggregating to 250,000 for Chanda
Kochhar and 150,000 each for N. S. Kannan, K. Ramkumar and Rajiv Sabharwal.

Perquisites (evaluated as per Income-tax rules wherever applicable and otherwise at actual cost to the

Bank) such as the benefit of the Bank’s furnished accommodation, gas, electricity, water and furnishings,
club fees, group insurance, use of car and telephone at residence or reimbursement of expenses in lieu
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thereof, medical reimbursement, leave and leave travel concession, education benefits, provident fund,
superannuation fund and gratuity, were provided in accordance with the scheme(s) and rule(s) applicable
from time to time. In line with the staff loan policy applicable to specified grades of employees who fulfill
prescribed eligibility criteria to avail loans for purchase of residential property, the wholetime Directors are
also eligible for housing loans subject to approval of RBI.

The Board, at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013, approved a revision in the remuneration payable to
wholetime Directors subject to the approval of the Members. In terms of the revised remuneration terms,
the monthly basic salary for Chanda Kochhar, Managing Director & CEO would be within the range of
31,350,000 — X 2,600,000, N. S. Kannan, Executive Director & CFO and K. Ramkumar, Executive Director
would be within the range of ¥ 950,000 — X 1,700,000 and Rajiv Sabharwal, Executive Director would be
within the range of ¥ 900,000 — X 1,600,000 effective April 1, 2013. The Board would from time to time
within the above ranges determine the monthly salary to be paid to the Directors subject to approval
of RBI.

The present supplementary allowance being paid to the above Directors is in the nature of a fixed amount.
The Board at its above Meeting also approved a minimum and maximum range of monthly supplementary
allowance within which supplementary allowance as determined by the Board from time to time may be paid
to the Directors subject to the approval of RBI. Consequently the monthly supplementary allowances for
the Managing Director & CEO, would be within the range of ¥ 1,000,000 - ¥ 1,800,000, for
N. S. Kannan, Executive Director & CFO and K. Ramkumar, Executive Director would be within the range
of ¥ 675,000 - X 1,225,000 and for Rajiv Sabharwal, Executive Director would be within the range of
¥ 650,000 - 1,200,000 effective April 1, 2013.

The resolution for the revision in remuneration is proposed to the Members in the Notice of the current
AGM vide item nos. 11-14 and the explanatory statement for these items includes the terms of re-
appointment where applicable as well as remuneration of the aforesaid Directors. You are requested to
consider the revision in remuneration terms of the above Directors.

As provided under Article 132 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, the fees payable to a Director
(other than to the nominee of Government of India) for attending a Meeting of the Board or Committee
thereof are decided by the Board of Directors from time to time within the limits prescribed by the
Companies Act, 1956 or the Central Government. The Board of Directors has approved the payment of
320,000 as sitting fees for each Meeting of Board or Committee attended. This amount is within the limits
prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its Notification dated July 24, 2003. Approval of the
Members for payment of sitting fees to the Directors was obtained at the AGM held on August 20, 2005.
The Board of Directors has approved payment of remuneration of ¥ 2,000,000 per annum to K. V. Kamath
plus payment of sitting fees, maintaining a Chairman’s office at the Bank's expense, bearing expenses
for travel on official visits and participation in various forums (both in India and abroad) as Chairman of the
Bank and bearing travel/halting/other expenses and allowances for attending to his duties as Chairman
of the Bank. The Members of the Company vide Resolution passed by way of postal ballot the result
of which was declared on February 13, 2009 had approved the above payment of remuneration for a
period of five years from May 1, 2009. RBI and the Central Government have vide their letters dated
March 12, 2009 and January 8, 2010 respectively approved the payment of the above remuneration.
RBI while approving the re-appointment of Chairman for a further period of two years from May 1, 2012
upto April 30, 2014 has confirmed the terms and conditions of re-appointment which includes the above
payment. In line with the above approvals K. V. Kamath was paid a remuneration of ¥ 2,000,000 per annum
for fiscal 2013.

The Board at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 based on the recommendations of the Board Governance,
Remuneration & Nomination Committee and subject to the approval of the Members, RBI and such other
approvals as may be necessary, approved a revision in the remuneration payable to K. V. Kamath. In terms
of the revised remuneration, K. V. Kamath is entitled to be paid a remuneration of upto ¥ 5,000,000 per
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annum subject to necessary approvals as mentioned earlier. This remuneration limit will be effective,
May 1, 2014 — April 30, 2019, being the period for which K. V. Kamath is proposed to be re-appointed
as Chairman. The re-appointment as well as revised remuneration is proposed to the Members in the
Notice of the current AGM vide item no. 10 alongwith an explanatory statement detailing the terms of
remuneration. You are requested to consider the revision in remuneration terms of the Chairman.

Information on the total sitting fees paid to each non-executive Director during fiscal 2013 for attending
Meetings of the Board and its Committees is set out in the following table:

Amount 0

K. V. Kamath 920,000

Sridar lyengar

3,880,000

The details of shares and convertible instruments of the Bank, held by the non-executive Directors as on
March 31, 2013 are set out in the following table:

Name of Director Instrument No. of shares held
K. V. Kamath Equity 490,000
sr|dar|yengar_ ......................................................................... e
Holehuerkhan ................................................................................................. E quny ................................................................. 7781
Arvdeumarf*

Swati Piramal — —

M. S. Ramachandran Equity 375
Tushaar Shah — —
V. Sridar — —

1. 778 shares held jointly with relatives.

RBIvide its Circular DBOD No. BC. 72/29.67.001/2011-12 dated January 13, 2012 has issued guidelines on
“Compensation of Whole Time Directors/Chief Executive Officers/Risk takers and Control function staff
etc.” for implementation by private sector banks and foreign banks from the financial year 2012-13. In
terms of the requirement of the said circular the Bank adopted a Compensation Policy as required by RBI
in January 2012. The said circular also requires the Bank to make following disclosures on remuneration
on an annual basis in their Annual Report:

COMPENSATION POLICY AND PRACTICES

(A) Qualitative disclosures

a) Information relating to the composition and mandate of the Remuneration Committee

The Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee (BGRNC) comprises three independent
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Directors. The functions of the Committee include recommendation of appointments of Directors to the
Board, evaluation of the performance of the wholetime Directors (including the Managing Director & CEO)
on predetermined parameters, recommendation to the Board of the remuneration (including performance
bonus and perquisites) to wholetime Directors, approval of the policy for and quantum of bonus payable
to the members of the staff, framing of guidelines for the Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) and
recommendation of grant of the Bank's stock options to employees and wholetime Directors of the Bank
and its subsidiary companies.

b) Information relating to design and structure of remuneration processes and the key features and
objectives of remuneration policy

The Bank has under the guidance of the Board and the BGRNC, followed compensation practices
intended to drive meritocracy within the framework of prudent risk management. This approach has been
incorporated in the Compensation Policy approved by the Board on January 31, 2012, pursuant to the
guidelines issued by RBI.

The key elements of the Bank’'s compensation practices are:

* Effective governance of compensation: The BGRNC has oversight over compensation. The Committee
defines Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for wholetime Directors and equivalent positions and the
organisational performance norms for bonus based on the financial and strategic plan approved
by the Board. The KPIs include both quantitative and qualitative aspects. The BGRNC assesses
organisational performance as well as the individual performance for wholetime Directors and
equivalent positions. Based on its assessment, it makes recommendations to the Board regarding
compensation for wholetime Directors and equivalent positions and bonus for employees.

* Alignment of compensation philosophy with prudent risk taking: The Bank seeks to achieve a
prudent mix of fixed and variable pay, with a higher proportion of variable pay at senior levels and
no guaranteed bonuses. Compensation is sought to be aligned to both financial and non-financial
indicators of performance including aspects like risk management and customer service. In addition,
the Bank has an employee stock option scheme aimed at aligning compensation to long term
performance through stock option grants that vest over a period of time. Compensation of staff in
financial and risk control functions is independent of the business areas they oversee and depends
on their performance assessment.

c) Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the
remuneration processes including the nature and type of the key measures used to take account
of these risks

The Board approves the risk framework for the Bank and the business activities of the Bank are
undertaken within this framework to achieve the financial plan. The risk framework includes the Bank’s
risk appetite, limits framework and policies and procedures governing various types of risk. KPIs of
wholetime Directors & equivalent positions, as well as employees, incorporate relevant risk management
related aspects. For example, in addition to performance targets in areas such as growth and profits,
performance indicators include aspects such as the desired funding profile and asset quality. The BGRNC
takes into consideration all the above aspects while assessing organisational and individual performance
and making compensation-related recommendations to the Board.

d) Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks to link performance during a performance
measurement period with levels of remuneration

The level of performance bonus, increments in salary and allowances and grant of stock options are
determined based on the assessment of performance as described above.
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e) Discussion of the Bank’s policy on deferral and vesting of variable remuneration and the Bank’s
policy and criteria for adjusting deferred remuneration before vesting and after vesting

The quantum of bonus for an employee does not exceed a certain percentage (as stipulated in the
compensation policy) of the total fixed pay in a year. Within this percentage, if the quantum of bonus
exceeds a predefined threshold percentage of the total fixed pay, a part of the bonus is deferred and paid
over a period.The deferred portion is subject to malus, under which the Bank would prevent vesting of all
or part of the variable pay in the event of an enquiry determining gross negligence or breach of integrity.
In such cases, variable pay already paid out is subject to clawback arrangements.

f) Description of the different forms of variable remuneration that the Bank utilises and the rationale
for using these different forms

The Bank pays performance linked retention pay (PLRP) to its front-line staff and junior management
and performance bonus to its middle and senior management. PLRP aims to reward front line and junior
managers, mainly on the basis of skill maturity attained through experience and continuity in role which is
a key differentiator for customer service. The Bank also pays variable pay to sales officers and relationship
managers in wealth management roles. The Bank ensures higher variable pay at senior levels and lower
variable pay for front-line staff and junior management levels.

(B) Quantitative disclosures

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the details of quantitative disclosure for
remuneration of wholetime Directors and equivalent positions.
< in million except numbers

Year ended
March 31, 2013

Number of meetings held by the BGRNC 3
Remuneration paid to its members (sitting fees) 0.2
Number of employees having received a variable remunerationaward /

Number and total amount of sign-on awards made Nil

Details of guaranteed bonus paid as joining/sign on bonus Nil
Details of severance pay, in addition to accrued benefits . Nil

Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration at March 31, 2013

Cash 54.7

Shares Nil

Shares-linked instruments' (nos.) 2,533,000

Other forms Nil

i Nil

Breakdown of amount of remuneration awards

Fixed? 133.8

Variable® 74.6

Deferred* 29.9

Non-deferred 44.8

Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and retained remuneration 54.7

exposed to ex-post explicit and/or implicit adjustments at March 3.1"1.2013

i Nil
Total amount of reductions due to ex-post implicit adjustments Nil

1. Pursuant to grant of options under ESOS. Of these options, 75,000 options granted to a President who retired
subsequently, will vest fully in one year from April 27, 2012.
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2. Fixed pay includes basic salary, supplementary allowances, superannuation, contribution to provident fund and
gratuity fund by the Bank.

3. Variable pay for the year ended March 31, 2013 was awarded in the month of April 2013 and is subject to
approval from RBI.

4. Inline with the Bank’s compensation policy, the stipulated percentage of performance bonus is deferred.

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Terms of Reference

The functions of the Committee include review of corporate social responsibility initiatives undertaken
by the ICICI Group and the ICICI Foundation for Inclusive Growth, making recommendations to the Board
with respect to the corporate social responsibility initiatives, policies and practices of the ICICI Group and
to review and implement, if required, any other matter related to corporate social responsibility initiatives
as recommended/suggested by RBI or any other body.

Composition

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee currently comprises four Directors including three
independent Directors and the Managing Director& CEO. The Committeeis chaired by M. S. Ramachandran,
an independent Director. Two Meetings of the Committee were held during fiscal 2013. The details of the
composition of the Committee and attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

M. S. Ramachandran, Chairman 2/2
L g
B g
L g

V. Credit Committee
Terms of Reference

The functions of the Committee include review of developments in key industrial sectors, major credit
portfolios and approval of credit proposals as per the authorisation approved by the Board.

Composition

The Credit Committee currently comprises four Directors including three independent Directors and the
Managing Director & CEO. The Committee is chaired by K. V. Kamath, an independent Director. There were
eighteen Meetings of the Committee during the year. The details of the composition of the Committee
and attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

K. V. Kamath, Chairman’ 1718
L T
B i
e e

1. Participated in one Meeting through tele-conference.

VI. Customer Service Committee
Terms of Reference

The functions of this Committee include review of customer service initiatives, overseeing the functioning
of the Customer Service Council and evolving innovative measures for enhancing the quality of customer
service and improvement in the overall satisfaction level of customers.
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Composition

The Customer Service Committee currently comprises four Directors including three independent
Directors and the Managing Director & CEO. It is chaired by K. V. Kamath, an independent Director. There
were six Meetings of the Committee during the year. The details of the composition of the Committee
and attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

K. V. Kamath, Chairman 6/6
e s
R i
L p—————

VII. Fraud Monitoring Committee
Terms of Reference

The Committee monitors and reviews all the frauds involving an amount of ¥ 10.0 million and above
with the objective of identifying the systemic lacunae, if any, that facilitated perpetration of the fraud
and put in place measures to rectify the same. The Committee is also empowered to identify the reasons
for delay in detection, if any, and report to top management of the Bank and RBI on the same. The
progress of investigation and recovery position is also monitored by the Committee. The Committee also
ensures that staff accountability is examined at all levels in all the cases of frauds and action, if required,
is completed quickly without loss of time. The role of the Committee is also to review the efficacy of
the remedial action taken to prevent recurrence of frauds, such as strengthening of internal controls
and put in place other measures as may be considered relevant to strengthen preventive measures
against frauds.

Composition

The Fraud Monitoring Committee at March 31, 2013 comprised six Directors including four independent
Directors. The Committee is chaired by V. Sridar, an independent Director. There were six Meetings of
the Committee during the year. The details of the composition of the Committee and attendance at its
Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

\. Sridar, Chairman

Rajiv Sabharwal

The Fraud Monitoring Committee currently comprises seven Directors including the Managing Director &
CEQO as the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 re-constituted the Fraud Monitoring
Committee effective April 30, 2013 pursuant to which Dileep Choksi has been appointed as a Member of
the Committee effective April 30, 2013.

VIII. Information Technology Strategy Committee
Terms of Reference

The Committee is empowered to approve strategy for Information Technology (IT) and policy documents,
ensuring that IT strategy is aligned with business strategy, review IT risks, ensure proper balance of IT
investments for sustaining the Bank's growth, oversee the aggregate funding of IT at a Bank-level and
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ascertain if the management has resources to ensure the proper management of IT risks and review
contribution of IT to businesses.

Composition

The IT Strategy Committee currently comprises four Directors including three independent Directors and
the Managing Director & CEO. The Committee is chaired by Homi Khusrokhan, an independent Director.
Four Meetings of the Committee were held during fiscal 2013. The details of the composition of the
Committee and attendance at its Meeting is set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

Homi Khusrokhan, Chairman 4/4
R ———
SrldarIyengar(uptoApr//292073) .................................................................................................. g———
L fi———

The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 re-constituted the Information Technology
Strategy Committee effective April 30, 2013 pursuant to which V. Sridar has been appointed as a Member
of the Committee effective April 30, 2013 in place of Sridar lyengar.

IX. Risk Committee
Terms of Reference

The Committee is empowered to review ICICI Bank’'s risk management policies pertaining to credit,
market, liquidity, operational, outsourcing, reputation risks, business continuity and disaster recovery
plan. The Committee is also empowered to review the Enterprise Risk Management framework of the
Bank, risk appetite, stress testing framework, Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and
framework for capital allocation. The Committee is empowered to review the status of Basel Il and Basel
[ll implementation, risk return profile of the Bank, outsourcing activities, compliance with RBI guidelines
pertaining to credit, market and operational risk management systems and the activities of Asset Liability
Management Committee. The Committee also reviews the risk profile template and key risk indicators
pertaining to various risks. In addition, the Committee has oversight on risks of subsidiaries covered
under the Group Risk Management Framework.

Composition

The Risk Committee at March 31, 2013 comprised five Directors including four independent Directors
and the Managing Director & CEQ. It is chaired by K. V. Kamath, an independent Director. There were
seven Meetings of the Committee during the year. The details of the composition of the Committee and
attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

K. V. Kamath, Chairman

V. Sridar

Chanda Kochhar

1. Participated in two Meetings through tele-conference.

The Risk Committee currently comprises six Directors including the Managing Director & CEO as the
Board of Directors at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 re-constituted the Risk Committee effective April
30, 2013 pursuant to which Homi Khusrokhan and Dileep Choksi (in place of Sridar lyengar) have been
appointed as Members of the Committee effective April 30, 2013.
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X. Share Transfer & Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee
Terms of Reference

The functions and powers of the Committee include approval and rejection of transfer or transmission
of equity shares, preference shares, bonds, debentures and securities, issue of duplicate certificates,
allotment of shares and securities issued from time to time, review and redressal of shareholders’ and
investors’ complaints, delegation of authority for opening and operation of bank accounts for payment of
interest, dividend and redemption of securities and the listing of securities on stock exchanges.

Composition

The Share Transfer & Shareholders'/Investors’ Grievance Committee currently comprises three Directors
including two independent Directors. It is chaired by Homi Khusrokhan, an independent Director. There
were four Meetings of the Committee during the year. The details of the composition of the Committee
and attendance at its Meetings are set out in the following table:

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

JHomi KhusroKhan, CRaiman e A
L A A e
N. S. Kannan 3/4

Sandeep Batra, Senior General Manger is the Group Compliance Officer & Company Secretary. 127 shareholder
complaints received in fiscal 2013 were processed. At March 31, 2013, no complaints were pending.

Xl. Committee of Executive Directors
Terms of reference

The powers of the Committee include approval/renewal of credit proposals, restructuring and settlement
as per authorisation approved by the Board, approvals of detailed credit norms related to individual
business groups, approvals to facilitate introduction of new products and product variants, program
lending within each business segment and asset or liability category, including permissible deviations
and delegation of the above function(s) to any committee or individual. The Committee also approves
and reviews from time to time limits on exposure to any group or individual company as well as approves
underwriting assistance to equity or equity linked issues and subscription to equity shares or equity
linked products or preference shares. The Committee also exercises powers in relation to borrowings and
treasury operations as approved by the Board, empowers officials of the Bank and its group companies
through execution of Power of Attorney, if required under the Common Seal of the Bank, and further
exercises powers in relation to premises and property-related matters.

Composition

The Committee of Executive Directors currently comprises all four wholetime Directors and is chaired by
Chanda Kochhar, Managing Director & CEO. The other Members are N. S. Kannan, K. Ramkumar and Rajiv
Sabharwal.

XIl. Other Committees

In addition to the above, the Board has from time to time constituted various committees, namely,
Asset Liability Management Committee, Committee for Identification of Wilful Defaulters, Grievance
Redressal Committee for borrowers identified as Wilful Defaulters, Committee of Senior Management
(comprising certain wholetime Directors and executives) and Committee of Executives, Compliance
Committee, Product & Process Approval Committee, Regional Committees for India and overseas
operations, Outsourcing Committee, Operational Risk Management Committee and other Committees
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(all comprising executives). These committees are responsible for specific operational areas like asset
liability management, approval of credit proposals, approval of products and processes and management
of operational risk, under authorisation/supervision of the Board and its Committees.

XIlll. General Body Meetings
The details of General Body Meetings held in the last three years are given below:

Extra-ordinary General Monday, June 21, 2010 1.30 p.m. Professor Chandravadan Mehta
...'.\./.l.?.?.t.'..r.].g ............................................................................................................................... Auditorium, General Education

Sixteenth AGM Monday, June 28, 2010 1.30 p.m. Centre, Opposite D. N. Hall Ground,
‘Seventeenth AGM Monday, June 27,2011 130 p.m. The Maharaja Sayaiirao University,
E,ghteenthAGM .............................. MondayJunez520121215pm Pratapguni, Vadodara 390 002

The details of the Special Resolutions passed in the General Meetings held in the previous three years
are given below:

General Body Meeting Day, Date Resolution
Extra-ordinary General Monday, June 21, 2010  Merger of The Bank of Rajasthan Limited
Meeting with ICICI Bank Limited under Section 44A of

the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and RBI's
guidelines for merger/amalgamation of private
sector banks dated May 11, 2005 (passed by
requisite majority as provided under Section
44A of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949)

Annual General Meeting Monday, June 25, 2012  Enhancement of limit for Employee Stock
Options to ten percent of aggregate of the
number of issued equity shares of the Bank
and consequent approval to create, offer, issue
and allot equity shares under Employee Stock
Option Scheme to:

* permanent employees and Directors of the
Bank

* permanent employees and Directors of the
subsidiaries of the Bank

Postal Ballot
At present, no special resolution is proposed to be passed through postal ballot. No resolution was
passed through postal ballot during fiscal 2013.

XIV. Disclosures

1. There are no materially significant transactions with related parties i.e., directors, management,
subsidiaries, or relatives conflicting with the Bank's interests. The Bank has no promoter.

2. Penalties or strictures imposed on the Bank by any of the stock exchanges, the Securities & Exchange
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Board of India (SEBI) or any other statutory authority, for any non-compliance on any matter relating
to capital markets, during the last three years are detailed:

* No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Bank by any of the stock exchanges or SEBI
for any non-compliance on any matter relating to capital markets during the last three years.

* RBI, vide letter dated April 26, 2011, has imposed a penalty of ¥ 1.5 million on the Bank along with
18 other banks for violation of the guidelines on derivatives and extant instructions thereunder.

3. Interms of the Whistle Blower Policy of the Bank, no employee of the Bank has been denied access
to the Audit Committee.

XV. Means of Communication

It is ICICI Bank's belief that all stakeholders should have access to complete information regarding its
position to enable them to accurately assess its future potential. ICICI Bank disseminates information on
its operations and initiatives on a regular basis. ICICI Bank's website (www.icicibank.com) serves as a
key awareness facility for all its stakeholders, allowing them to access information at their convenience.
It provides comprehensive information on ICICI Bank's strategy, financial performance, operational
performance and the latest press releases.

ICICI Bank's dedicated investor relations personnel respond to specific queries and play a proactive role
in disseminating information to both analysts and investors. In accordance with SEBI and Securities
Exchange Commission (SEC) guidelines, all information which could have a material bearing on ICICI
Bank’'s share price is released through leading domestic and global wire agencies. The information is
also disseminated to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), the Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (BSE), New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), Singapore Stock Exchange, Japan Securities Dealers
Association and SIX Swiss Exchange AG from time to time.

The financial and other information filed by the Bank from time to time is also available on the
Corporate Filing and Dissemination System maintained by BSE and NSE and can be accessed on the URL
www.corpfiling.co.in. NSE has introduced a NSE Electronic Application Processing (NEAP) System
and as intimated by NSE from time to time, various compliances as required/prescribed under the
Listing Agreement executed with the Stock Exchanges are also filed through this system in addition to
dissemination of information by email or fax.

ICICI Bank's quarterly financial results are published either in the Financial Express (Mumbai, Pune,
Ahmedabad, New Delhi, Lucknow, Chandigarh, Kolkata, Chennai, Bangalore, Hyderabad, Kochi editions)
or the Business Standard (Ahmedabad, Bangalore, Bhubaneshwar, Chandigarh, Chennai, Hyderabad,
Kochi, Kolkata, Lucknow, Mumbai, New Delhi and Pune editions), and Vadodara Samachar (Vadodara).
The financial results, official news releases, analyst call transcripts and presentations are also available
on the Bank's website.

The Management's Discussion & Analysis forms part of the Annual Report.

General Shareholder Information

Nineteenth AGM Monday, June 24, 2013  Sir Sayajirao Nagargruh, Vadodara Mahanagar
1.15 p.m. Seva Sadan, Near GEB Colony, Old Padra
Road, Akota, Vadodara 390 020
Financial Calendar : April 1 to March 31
Book Closure ; June 1, 2013 to June 24, 2013
Dividend Payment Date : June 25, 2013
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Listing of equity shares/ADSs on Stock Exchanges (with stock code)

Stock Exchange Code for ICICI Bank

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 532174
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001 &

6321747
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) ICICIBANK

Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

New York Stock Exchange (ADSs)? IBN
11, Wall Street, New York, NY 10005, United States of America

1. Fll segment of BSE.
2. Each ADS of ICICI Bank represents two underlying equity shares.

ICICI Bank has paid annual listing fees on its capital for the relevant periods to BSE and NSE where its
equity shares are listed and NYSE where its ADSs are listed.

Market Price Information

The reported high and low closing prices and volume of equity shares of ICICI Bank traded during fiscal
2013 on BSE and NSE are set out in the following table:

Total Volume

April 2012 907.65  838.65 9,669,521 908.20 838.40 83,928,790 93,698,311
May2012 ........................ 88170 78430 ......... 987494688205 ........ 78325 .......... 89320954 ........... 9 9195900
Junezmz ....................... 89960 78170 ......... 908450489950 ........ 78170 .......... 77042567 ........... 8 6127071
Ju|y2012 ......................... 96430 89395 ....... 1 061576196450 ........ 89440 .......... 87378444 ........... 9 7994205
A ugu St2012 .................. 97400 90930 ......... 774 919097520 ........ 90215 .......... 68205405 ........... 7 5954595

Fiscal 2013 1,214.25 781.70 91,791,912 1,212.70  781.70 833,829,702 925,621,614
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The reported high and low closing prices and volume of ADSs of ICICI Bank traded during fiscal 2013 on
the NYSE are given below:

Month High (US$) Low (US$) Number of ADS traded
April 2012 35.80 36,261,627

Fiscal 2013 47.76

381,916,423

The performance of the ICICI Bank equity share relative to the S&P BSE Sensitive Index (Sensex), S&P BSE

Bank Index (Bankex) and NYSE Financial Index during the period April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 is given
in the following chart:
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Share Transfer System

ICICI Bank's investor services are handled by 3i Infotech Limited (3i Infotech). 3i Infotech is a SEBI
registered Category | — Registrar to an Issue & Share Transfer (R&T) Agent. 3i Infotech is a global
information technology company providing technology solutions and in addition to R&T services provides
software products, managed IT Services, application software development & maintenance, payment
solutions, business intelligence, document imaging & digitisation, IT consulting and various transaction
processing services. 3i Infotech’s quality certifications include SEI CMMI Level 5 for software business,
ISO 9001:2000 for BPO (including R&T) and ISO 27001:2005 for infrastructure services.

ICICI Bank’'s equity shares are traded mainly in dematerialised form. During the year, 415,842 equity
shares involving 4,780 certificates were dematerialised. At March 31, 2013, 99.34% of paid-up equity
share capital (including equity shares represented by ADS constituting 29.18% of the paid-up equity
share capital) are held in dematerialised form.

Physical share transfer requests are processed and the share certificates are returned normally within
a period of seven days from the date of receipt, if the documents are correct, valid and complete in all
respects.

The number of equity shares of ICICI Bank transferred during the last three years (excluding electronic
transfer of shares in dematerialised form) is given below:

Number of transfer deeds 2,429 1,392 1,144

Number of shares transferred 368,234 86,423 89,962

As required under Clause 47(c) of the listing agreements entered into by ICICI Bank with stock exchanges,
a certificate is obtained every six months from a practising Company Secretary that all transfers have
been completed within the stipulated time. The certificates are forwarded to BSE and NSE.

In terms of SEBI's circular no. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16 dated December 31, 2002, as amended vide circular
no. CIR/MRD/DP/30/2010 dated September 6, 2010 an audit is conducted on a quarterly basis by a firm
of Chartered Accountants, for the purpose of, inter alia, reconciliation of the total admitted equity share
capital with the depositories and in the physical form with the total issued/paid up equity share capital
of ICICI Bank. Certificates issued in this regard are placed before the Share Transfer & Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievance Committee and forwarded to BSE and NSE, where the equity shares of ICICI Bank
are listed as well as to the two Depositories viz, NSDL and CDSL.

Physical Share Disposal Scheme

With a view to mitigate the difficulties experienced by physical shareholders in disposing of their shares,
ICICI Bank, in the interest of investors holding shares in physical form (upto 50 shares) has instituted a
Physical Share Disposal Scheme. The scheme was started in November 2008 and continues to remain
open. Interested shareholders may contact the R&T Agent, 3i Infotech Limited for further details.

Registrar and Transfer Agents

The Registrar and Transfer Agent of ICICI Bank is 3i Infotech Limited. Investor services related queries/
requests/complaints may be directed to S. R. Ramesh at the address as under:
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3i Infotech Limited

International Infotech Park
Tower b, 3rd Floor

Vashi Railway Station Complex
Vashi, Navi Mumbai 400 703
Maharashtra, India

Tel No. : +91-22-6792 8000
Fax No. : +91-22-6792 8099
E-mail : investor@icicibank.com

Queries relating to the operational and financial performance of ICICI Bank may be addressed to:
Rakesh Jha/Anindya Banerjee/Rakesh Mookim

ICICI Bank Limited
ICICI Bank Towers
Bandra-Kurla Complex
Mumbai 400 051

Tel No. : +91-22-2653 1414
Fax No. : +91-22-2653 1175
E-mail : ir@icicibank.com

Information on Shareholding
Shareholding pattern of ICICI Bank at March 31, 2013

Shareholder Category m % holding

_Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (Depository for ADS holders) =~ 336,587,762 29.18
_Flis, NRls, Foreign Banks, Foreign Companies, OCBs and Foreign Nationals 441694973 38.28
SUrANCE GO S e 175270896 .. 15,19
_Bodies Corporate (including Government Companies) . 35984442 ...312,
JBanks & Financial INSttUtioNS e e 1017526 0.10.
VU] UGS e 100,739.644 ....873.
Jndividuals, HUE and TrUstS e 62286472 ... 5.40
Total 1,153,581,715 100.00

Shareholders of ICICI Bank with more than one per cent holding at March 31, 2013

Name of the Shareholder No. of shares | % to total no.
of shares

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (Depository for ADS holders) 336,587,762 29.18

_Life Insurance Corporation of India ) 83,100911 .. 7.20
JGovernment Of SINgaROTE e 24,773,024 .. 2,15
JEuropacific Growtn FUNG e e 18,278,406 . 1.58.
Aberdeen Global Indian Equity Fund Mauritius Limited 18,080,000 1.57.
Carmignac Gestion A/c Carmignac Patrimoine 17,792910 . 1.54.
.SBILife Insurance Company Limited e 13,538,365 . 1.17.
_Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited 12655640 1.10.
Total 524,807,018 45.49
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Distribution of shareholding of ICICI Bank at March 31, 2013

Range - Shares No. of Folios _ No. of Shares _

_Upto 1,000 636,342 98.97 45,780,246 3.97
P 7 R S o
I e B s Sl
10,001 - 50,000 722 011 17,388,945 151
e e S S
S LB T L o

Disclosure with respect to shares lying in suspense account

Shareholders m

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 594 31,201
suspense account lying at the beginning of the year
"N'J%F{Bé'r"6i‘"é'ﬁé"r’é%'l'a"e"r'é"\'/'\'/'H'(')mé'5&6é'éﬁ'éaul"('f'l'é'lmééH'IE'}éé'k"i'r'é'ﬁé'f'é"rm{)'f .................................. s s
shares from suspense account during the year
T e - s
suspense account during the year
“'A'éé'r'é'éjé'fé"ﬁﬂ'rﬁ’t;éf'&?'é'H'é'Fé'HBIaé'Fsmé'r’ia’{Hé"Bﬁ't'é't'é'r'id"i'rﬁ’é"é'ﬁé}é'smi"rﬁ"fﬁé ............................. g S5

suspense account lying at the end of the year

The voting rights on the shares lying in suspense account are frozen till the rightful owner of such
shares claims the shares

Outstanding GDRs/ADSs/Warrants or any Convertible Debentures, conversion date and likely
impact on equity

ICICI Bank has 168.29 million ADS (equivalent to 336.59 million equity shares) outstanding, which
constituted 29.18% of ICICI Bank's total equity capital at March 31, 2013. Currently, there are no
convertible debentures outstanding.

Plant Locations — Not applicable

Address for Correspondence

Sandeep Batra

Group Compliance Officer & Company Secretary
or

Ranganath Athreya

General Manager & Joint Company Secretary
ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Towers

Bandra-Kurla Complex

Mumbai 400 051

Tel No. : +91-22-2653 1414
Fax No. : +91-22-2653 1230
E-mail companysecretary@icicibank.com

The Bank has complied with the mandatory and majority of non-mandatory requirements mentioned in
the listing agreement, with respect to corporate governance.
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ANALYSIS OF CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS
a) Customer complaints in fiscal 2013

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 3,837
No. of complaints receive"c'i"during the year T 101,408
No. of complaints redressed during the year T 102,617
No. of complaints pendin'éj"at the end of the yeé? """ 2,628

b) Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman in fiscal 2013

Number of unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year Nil
Number of awards passea"by the Banking Ombudsman during the yé'éir Nil
Number of awards impleh'r'{'ented during the yeé'% """" Nil
Number of unimplementend" awards at the end of the year T Nil

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITORS

ICICI Bank has annexed to this report, a certificate obtained from the statutory auditors, S. R. Batliboi & Co.
LLP Chartered Accountants, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
in Clause 49 of the listing agreement.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

In fiscal 2000, ICICI Bank instituted an Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) to enable the employees
and Directors of ICICI Bank and its subsidiaries to participate in future growth and financial success of
the Bank. The ESOS aims at achieving the twin objectives of (i) aligning employee interest to that of the
shareholders; and (ii) retention of talent. Through employee stock option grants, the Bank seeks to foster
a culture of long-term sustainable value creation. As per the ESOS, as amended from time to time, the
maximum number of options granted to any employee/Director in a year is limited to 0.05% of ICICI
Bank’s issued equity shares at the time of the grant, and the aggregate of all such options is limited to
10% of ICICI Bank's issued equity shares on the date of the grant (equivalent to 115.36 million shares at
April 26, 2013).

The Bank has upto April 26, 2013 granted 60.80 million stock options from time to time aggregating to
5.27% of the issued equity capital of the Bank at April 26, 2013.

Options granted for fiscal 2003 and earlier years vest in a graded manner over a three year period, with
20%, 30% and 50% of the grants vesting in each year, commencing not earlier than 12 months from the
date of the grant. Options granted from fiscal 2004 to 2008, vest in a graded manner over a four year
period, with 20%, 20%, 30% and 30% of the grants vesting in each year commencing from the end of
12 months from the date of grant.

Options granted in April 2009 vest in a graded manner over a five year period with 20%, 20%, 30% and
30% of the grant vesting in each year, commencing from the end of 24 months from the date of the
grant. Out of the options, the grant of which was approved by the Board at its Meeting held on October
29, 2010 (for which RBI approval for grant to wholetime Directors was received in January 2011), 50%
of the options granted vest on April 30, 2014 and the balance 50% on April 30, 2015. Options granted in
September 2011 vest in a graded manner over a five year period with 15%, 20%, 20% and 45% of the
grant vesting in each year, commencing from end of 24 months from the date of grant. The other stock
options granted during the period April 2010 to April 2012 vest in a graded manner over a four year period
with 20%, 20%, 30% and 30% of the grant vesting in each year commencing from the end of 12 months
from the date of grant.

The Board at its Meeting held on April 26, 2013 approved a grant of approximately 4.64 million options for
fiscal 2013 to eligible employees and wholetime Directors (options granted to wholetime Directors being
subject to RBl approval). Each option confers on the employee a right to apply for one equity share of face
value of ¥ 10 of ICICI Bank at ¥ 1,177.35 which was closing price on the stock exchange which recorded
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the highest trading volume in ICICI Bank shares on April 25, 2013. These options would vest over a four
year period, with 20%, 20%, 30% and 30% respectively of the grant of vesting in each year commencing
from the end of 12 months from the date of grant.

Options can be exercised within 10 years from the date of grant or five years from the date of vesting,
whichever is later. The price of the options granted prior to June 30, 2003 is the closing market price
on the stock exchange, which recorded the highest trading volume on the date of grant. The price for
options granted on or after June 30, 2003 till July 21, 2004 is equal to the average of the high and low
market price of the equity shares in the two week period preceding the date of grant of the options, on
the stock exchange which recorded the highest trading volume during the two week period. The price for
options granted on or after July 22, 2004 (other than the grants approved by the Board at its Meeting held
on October 29, 2010 where the grant price was the average closing price of the ICICI Bank stock on the
stock exchange during the six months upto October 28, 2010) is equal to the closing price on the stock
exchange which recorded the highest trading volume preceding the date of grant of options. The above
disclosure is in line with the SEBI guidelines, as amended from time to time.

Particulars of options granted by ICICI Bank upto April 26, 2013 are given below:

Options granted till Aﬂpril 26,20.1"31 (excluding options forfeited/lapsed) 60,797,697
Options forfeited/lap§¢d .......... 10,348,808
Options exercised 30,449,369
Total number of optigps in forcg ....... 30,348,328
Options vested 46,657,623
Number of shares allotted purs"L.J"ant to exercise of options 30,449,365
Extinguishment or modification of options Nil
Amount realised by exercise ofmo"ptions ® 7,621,81 5,61"§

1. Includes options granted to wholetime Directors pending RBI approval.

No employee was granted options during any one year equal to or exceeding 0.05% of the issued equity
shares of ICICI Bank at the time of the grant.

The diluted earnings per share (EPS) pursuant to issue of shares on exercise of options calculated in
accordance with AS-20 was X 71.93 in fiscal 2013 compared to basic EPS of ¥ 72.20. The Bank recognised
a compensation cost of ¥ 21.0 million in fiscal 2013 based on the intrinsic value of options. However, if
ICICI Bank had used the fair value of options based on the binomial tree model, compensation cost in
fiscal 2013 would have been higher by ¥ 1,865.9 million and proforma profit after tax would have been
3 81.39 billion. On a proforma basis, ICICI Bank’s basic and diluted earnings per share would have been
3 70.58 and X 70.32 respectively.

The key assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during fiscal 2013 are given
below:

Risk-free interest rate 7.99% to 8.87%
Expected life 6.35 yearé
Expected volatility 48.99% to 49.55%
Expected dividend yield 1.52% to 1.96%

The weighted average fair value of options granted during fiscal 2013 is ¥ 434.91 (March 31, 2012:
3 592.52).

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO, UNDER SECTION 217(1)(e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.

The provisions of Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to conservation of energy and
technology absorption do not apply to the Bank. The Bank has, however, used information technology
extensively in its operations.
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IMPLEMENTATION OF CIRCULAR ISSUED BY MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS ON
“GREEN INITIATIVES IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE"

The Bank has implemented the ‘Green Initiative’ as per Circular No. 17/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and
Circular No. 18/2011 dated April 29, 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) to enable
electronic delivery of notices/documents and annual reports to shareholders and effected electronic
delivery of Notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Annual Reports for the years ended March
31, 2011 and March 31, 2012 to those shareholders whose email addresses were registered with the
respective Depository Participants (DPs) and downloaded from the depositories, namely, National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)/Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) have also in line with the MCA circulars and as provided in Clause 32 of
the Listing Agreement executed with the stock exchanges, permitted listed entities to supply soft copies
of full annual reports to all those shareholders who have registered their email addresses for the purpose.
Your Directors are thankful to the shareholders for actively participating in the green initiative and seek
your continued support for implementation of the green initiative.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors confirm:
1. that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed, along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

2. thatthey have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Bank at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Bank for that period;

3. that they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records, in
accordance with the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

4. that they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

ICICI Bank is grateful to the Government of India, RBI, SEBI, IRDA and overseas regulators for their
continued co-operation, support and guidance. ICICI Bank wishes to thank its investors, the domestic and
international banking community, rating agencies and stock exchanges for their support.

ICICI Bank would like to take this opportunity to express sincere thanks to its valued clients and customers
for their continued patronage. The Directors express their deep sense of appreciation of all the employees,
whose outstanding professionalism, commitment and initiative has made the organisation’s growth and
success possible and continues to drive its progress. Finally, the Directors wish to express their gratitude
to the Members for their trust and support.

For and on behalf of the Board

K. V. Kamath
May 13, 2013 Chairman

Compliance with the Group Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

| confirm that all Directors and members of the senior management have affirmed compliance with Group
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Chanda Kochhar
Managing Director & CEO

May 13, 2013
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Auditor’s Certificate
on Corporate Governance

To The Members of ICICI Bank Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by ICICI Bank Limited (‘the
Bank’), for the year ended on March 31, 2013, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the
said Bank with stock exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures, and implementation thereof, adopted by the Bank for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify
that the Bank has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above
mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003k

per Shrawan Jalan

Mumbai Partner
May 9, 2013 Membership No.: 102102
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

During fiscal 2013, the economic environment remained challenging with growth slowing down globally.
India was impacted by both global and domestic events that led to moderation in economic activity. India’s
gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 5.0% during the first nine months of fiscal 2013 as compared to
6.6% during the corresponding period of fiscal 2012. The Central Statistical Organisation, in its advance
estimates, has projected GDP to grow by 5.0% during fiscal 2013 compared to growth of 6.2% in fiscal
2012. Banking sector non-food credit growth moderated from 16.8% at March 23, 2012 to 14.0% at
March 22, 2013. Deposit growth remained subdued at 14.3% with demand deposits recording a growth
of 5.9% at March 22, 2013. Amidst these short term challenges, the Bank continued to stay focused on
the long-term prospects of the Indian economy and build capabilities for future growth. We believe that
the strong underlying fundamentals of the Indian economy with a young population will support strong
growth over the medium to long term, and our strategy revolves around prudently managing short term
challenges while being prepared to meet the needs of a vibrant economy.

For a discussion of recent economic and regulatory developments, please refer to “Management’s
Discussion & Analysis”.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During fiscal 2013, the Bank’s strategy focused on balancing growth, profitability and risk management
while continuing to invest in growing its franchise and enhancing customer convenience. Despite a
challenging macroeconomic environment we made significant progress with sustained improvements in
our net interest margins, higher return on assets and healthy loan growth with a balanced funding mix.

Retail Banking

We continued to focus on our strategy of “Khayaal Aapka” and building long-term relationship with our
customers. During the year, we launched a loyalty programme “MySavings Rewards”. This programme allows
customers to accumulate reward points on a host of savings account transactions such as bill pay, online
shopping, EMI payments and many more. The programme already has over one million customers who have
started earning reward points. Further, we set up 24x7 fully electronic branches during the year aimed at
providing simple, effortless and convenient banking to our customers. These branches enable customers to
undertake real time transactions like cash deposits, cash withdrawals, cheque deposit, fund transfer, opening
fixed deposits, generating bank statement and other transactions. These branches are also equipped with
video conferencing facility which allows with customer service staff interaction when required.

During the vyear, we harnessed digital channels innovatively for customer acquisition, customer
interactions and cross selling of products and strengthened our presence in this space. We enhanced
the product suite offered through our internet banking platform and customised it to meet requirements
of different customer segments. Our mobile banking application has also grown and currently has over
one million customers. We have emerged as the market leader in mobile transactions in value terms. We
also pioneered social media-linked products during fiscal 2013 like Facebook banking and iWish, an online
flexible recurring deposit. iWish is an innovatively designed product, launched for the first time in India,
where a customer saves funds to fulfil a future desire or goal. The customer has the flexibility to decide
on when and how much to save for the particular goal. They can also share their goals on Facebook with
friends and family who may choose to contribute towards the purpose. Further, for customers who prefer
to transact online, we enhanced our savings account portfolio with the offering of “b2", a fully online
savings account. b2 targets the rapidly growing internet savvy Indian population and offers an effortless
banking experience.
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We also continued to invest in building robust sales processes to provide a quicker and error-free banking
experience to our customers. The sales team in major cities today offer “Tab Banking”, wherein we are
able to open bank accounts using tablets in less than 24 hours. These tablets are also equipped with
product videos introducing customers to various product features. Further, “E-Locker”, an online service
for storing important documents, was introduced for wealth and privilege banking customers.

Customer convenience, superior banking experience, technology innovations and a large network of
branches and ATMs continue to differentiate us in the banking industry. We have the largest branch
network among private sector banks. The National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI) awarded us the
“Best ATM Operational Excellence Award, 2012" for the second consecutive year in fiscal 2013. During
fiscal 2013, we added 348 branches and 1,475 ATMs to our network, taking our branch and ATM count to
3,100 and 10,481 respectively at March 31, 2013. This includes 54 dedicated branches and 25 dedicated
lounges for wealth segment customers. Our “May | Help You” desks at every branch are now equipped
to provide across-the-counter information related to transactions, cheque deposits and account details.

We continue to use advanced analytics to build customer relationships and gain a deeper understanding
of services and product needs of our customers. Analytics-based trigger frameworks also play a critical
role in the area of risk management and transaction monitoring.

These initiatives helped us achieve robust growth in our retail business during fiscal 2013. There was a
healthy growth in our retail asset disbursements primarily contributed by secured assets. Our mortgage
loan and passenger car loan disbursements grew by 66% and 22% respectively in fiscal 2013. We also
continued to see strong momentum in retail customer acquisition and growth in the retail deposit base
across both savings and term deposits.

India’s growth potential is underscored by its young population and rising incomes. At ICICI Bank, we
believe that with 50% of India’s population under the age of 25 years, banking in the years to come will
be led by technology and customer convenience. We will continue to focus on introducing new products,
channels and innovative payment modes that blend with a young and changing India.

Small & Medium Enterprises

Small & medium enterprises (SMEs) are an important constituent of India’s economy. Their role is critical
in not only contributing to growth but also meeting the aspirations of a developing economy. At ICICI
Bank, we have partnered with SMEs not only in terms of finance, but also by providing support in other
areas like transaction banking and investment needs of SMEs. We offer complete banking solutions
to SMEs across industry segments with a suite of products customised to their business needs. We
adopt a cluster-based financing approach for SMEs with a homogeneous profile in industries such as
infrastructure, engineering, information technology, education, life sciences and agri-based industries, to
partner their growth ambitions. We also offer supply chain financing solutions to the channel partners of
large corporates. We have set up dedicated desks in 364 branches specializing in SME banking. We have
also re-organised the business banking services at our branches with dedicated current account desks
at select branches. We have also introduced doorstep banking and enhanced internet banking for SME
customers.

Fiscal 2013 was a challenging period for SMEs due to the moderation in economic activity. While being
cognizant of the subdued economic environment, we focused on judicious portfolio growth by adopting
a granular approach and maintaining a cautious outlook on some sectors. We continued to focus on
strengthening our delivery capabilities for SME customers.
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A strong SME sector is fundamental to building a resilient and dynamic corporate sector. ICICI Bank has
always viewed the SME segment as integral to India's growth and will continue to partner with them
while building a healthy portfolio.

Wholesale Banking

Collaborating with our corporate customers by providing comprehensive and customised financial
solutions for doing business in India and key geographies overseas has been the core strategy of our
Wholesale Banking Group. The Group manages relationships with a number of large and mid-sized Indian
corporates and multinational companies operating in India. The Group services the financial requirements
of clients through a bouquet of products ranging from working capital finance, export finance, trade and
commercial banking products to rupee and foreign currency term loans, and structured finance products.

Our Corporate Banking Group is the front-end relationship team which services client requirements across
businesses. The relationship team works closely with specific teams like project finance, structured
finance, loan syndication, commercial banking and markets group to develop suitable products that fulfill
specific needs of clients.

The Structured Finance Group designs innovative and customised products to meet the complex needs
of our global clientele in synergy with the Corporate Banking Group and International Banking Group.
The Structured Finance Group has been recognised as one of the leading arrangers and underwriters of
structured finance transactions in India, deriving strength from its underwriting capabilities combined
with the Bank's extensive experience, industry expertise and global presence.

The Syndications Group is a leading player in the loan syndication market. It specialises in structuring
and syndicating large loans. Its knowledge and experience facilitates timely response and seamless
execution of corporate and project finance transactions. The diversified pool of clients enables us to align
the unique requirements of clients with the varying requirements of investors.

The Mid-Markets Group was created recognising the unique credit requirements of the mid-sized
corporate segment and the need to give distinct attention to clients in this segment to enable them to
eventually become large sized corporates. The Group aims to be a partner in the growth of these clients,
identifying business needs and offering tailor-made banking services including term loans, export and
working capital finance, trade and transactional services and cash management services. The target
segment of this Group comprises corporates that have transitioned beyond the SME segment and need
more complex banking services.

The Commercial Banking Group offers comprehensive banking products and services to meet the
trade, transaction banking and cash management needs of companies. The Group works closely with
the Corporate Banking Group to diversify the revenue streams from corporate clients and enhance the
granularity and stability of revenues for the Bank. Superior customer service levels combined with quick
turnaround offered through our mega branches have helped in growing our transaction banking business.

The relationship teams also work with the Markets Group to assist customers in addressing currency and
market risk in their businesses by offering relevant products.

Fiscal 2013 was a challenging period for the Indian corporate sector due to significant slowdown in new
investment opportunities and asset quality concerns in some areas. During the year, we actively managed
our portfolio while pursuing selective new lending opportunities. At the same time, we continued to
explore and identify sustainable revenue possibilities in synergy with our commercial banking strategy.
We will continue to offer comprehensive financial services across a spectrum of financial products to our
clients and partner them while judiciously growing our portfolio.

Project Finance

While the momentum in infrastructure investments slowed down during fiscal 2013, certain policy
initiatives were taken during the year that have improved the prospects for investments in infrastructure
in the coming years.
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The Government has proposed modifications to the existing standard bid documents to make fuel a pass
through for tariffs which would encourage new investments in the power sector. There are also initiatives
towards granting approvals for coal mines. Further, the Government is also actively working on improving
the fuel availability for various power projects. The proposal to take up coal mining in partnership with
the private sector will improve availability of coal. These measures are expected to ensure the viability
of investments in power generation assets. With greater private sector participation, projects in regional
and inter-regional transmission corridors are expected which would strengthen the national grid. The
renewable energy segment has gained momentum with more states formulating policies to encourage
new investments in this segment.

In roads and ports sectors, we expect to see an increase in activity during fiscal 2014 with new projects
likely to be awarded. The National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) is planning to award up to 4,000 km of
roads through engineering, procurement & construction (EPC) contracts during the year. The Government
has also decided to constitute a regulatory authority for the road sector to expedite development and
address challenges faced by the sector. In the port sector, about 30 port projects are expected to be
awarded. The railway sector is also expected to witness increased investment in logistics development,
track infrastructure (including dedicated freight corridors) and rolling stock, enabling higher movement
of rakes.

In the oil and gas sector, most of the activity is expected to be linked to demand for natural gas. The
demand for gas from priority sectors such as power and fertiliser is likely to continue, maintaining
pressure on domestic supplies of gas. Significant additions to LNG import capacity have been announced
with commissioning expected over the next four to five years. With the announcement of a new fertiliser
policy, the urea sector is also expected to see capacity additions.

Our long experience in project finance, deep sectoral expertise and innovative structuring capabilities
have placed us in a position to capitalise on these opportunities and cater to the long-term financing
requirements of Indian corporates. Infrastructure development is a critical area to improve the economic
potential of the country, and we remain committed to partnering with companies in promoting viable
projects.

International Banking

Our international banking strategy is focused on providing end-to-end solutions for the international
banking requirements of our Indian corporate clients, leveraging economic corridors between India and
the rest of the world and establishing ICICI Bank as the preferred bank for non-resident Indians in key
global markets. Further, during fiscal 2013, despite the volatile economic environment, India remained an
attractive market for most major global corporations, and ICICI Bank's International Banking Group seeks
to partner them as they expand in India. We also seek to build stable international funding sources and
strong syndication capabilities to support our corporate and investment banking business, and to expand
private banking operations for India-centric asset classes.

Our international footprint consists of subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, Russia and Canada, branches
in the United States, Singapore, Bahrain, Hong Kong, Sri Lanka, Dubai International Finance Centre
and Qatar Financial Centre and representative offices in the United Arab Emirates, China, South Africa,
Bangladesh, Thailand, Malaysia and Indonesia. The Bank’s wholly owned subsidiary ICICI Bank UK PLC
has eleven branches in the United Kingdom and a branch each in Belgium and Germany. ICICI Bank
Canada has nine branches. ICICI Bank Eurasia, our Russian subsidiary, is headquartered in Moscow with
a branch in St. Petersburg. We opened our second retail branch in Hong Kong in fiscal 2013.

During fiscal 2013, the global economic environment was characterised by slow and prolonged recovery
in advanced economies and growth slowdown in emerging economies. In this environment, we continued
to focus on managing the risks to growth in our international operations. We also focused on diversifying
the mix of our funding profile in our international operations. We continued to focus on expanding our
trade finance business and our relationships with global corporates doing business in India.
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India continues to remain the largest remittance receiving country in the world and ICICI Bank has a
significant market share in remittances. This has been made possible through our diversified products
and service offerings to meet the requirements of the widely dispersed NRI diaspora. The emphasis
in fiscal 2013 was on further expanding access to remittance services through new partnerships and
channels and delivering a superior customer service experience. ICICl Bank received the Best Remittance
Business Award 2012, at Asia’s prestigious retail banking event, Excellence in Retail Financial Services
Convention, organised by the Asian Banker.

Rural & Inclusive Banking

At the ICICI Group, we view expanding access to banking and other financial services as a critical element
of inclusive growth. During fiscal 2013, we focused on expanding our outreach to rural and semi-urban
markets and providing complete financial solutions to customers in this segment.

We improved our presence in rural markets by expanding our branch and business correspondent network.
During the year, we added 152 rural branches and 85 semi-urban branches, taking the total count of
branches in the rural and semi urban areas to 1,453 at March 31, 2013. This includes 131 low cost Gramin
branches opened in unbanked villages across ten states. These branches provide credit and deposit
products (including 127 Gramin branches opened in fiscal 2013) specifically catering to rural customers.
Our business correspondent network includes over 25 business correspondents with a network of over
7,500 customer service points. We provide micro-savings, remittance and deposit products through this
channel. Technology has been a critical contributor to the success of the business correspondent model,
with the use of innovative technology solutions such as biometric enabled Point of Sale (POS) devices
and mobile handsets. We now cover over 13,500 villages through our branches and business
correspondent network.

At March 31, 2013, we had 14.9 million basic savings bank deposit accounts (also known as no-frills
savings accounts) compared to 9.8 million basic savings bank deposit accounts at March 31, 2012. Apart
from savings products, our rural banking strategy also includes providing a range of asset products like
kisan credit cards, jewel loans, self-help group (SHG) loans, commodity financing to farmers, business
credit for rural enterprises, farm equipment loans and commercial vehicle loans.

We emerged as a leading provider of electronic benefit transfer (EBT) services during fiscal 2013. By
March 31, 2013, we had initiated EBT payment facilities in 48 districts across 11 states. The Bank was
also among the first to implement Direct Benefit Transfer (DBT), wherein government social benefits are
directly transferred to the beneficiaries using the Aadhaar platform. DBT payments have been successfully
processed for schemes like Social Security Pension (SSP), Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment
Guarantee Scheme (MGNREGS), Janani Suraksha Yojna (JSY) and National Rural Health Mission (NRHM)
across four states.

We also made significant progress in scaling up our SHG Bank Linkage Programme. We have differentiated
our offering in this segment by significantly reducing the turnaround time in providing credit. We work
with over 200 entities in this area and have provided credit linkage to about 300,000 individuals, primarily
women, through loans to over 25,000 SHGs, of which over 50% were credit-linked for the first time. Our
progress has been recognised by several agencies including the National Bank for Agriculture and Rural
Development (NABARD).

In urban India, there is a large low-income migrant population which requires customised, low-cost
products that can help them transfer funds to their home towns/villages. To fulfill this need, we have
set up remittance outlets in over 50 major urban centers including Delhi, Mumbai, Surat, Ahmedabad
and Ludhiana. Through these outlets, we have processed over 3,77,000 transactions for over 1,00,000
customers. During the year, we also launched “Mobile Money” in association with telecom companies
like Aircel, Tata Teleservices and Vodafone which targets the urban unbanked population. “Mobile Money”
can be operated through a simple set of instructions using various access channels. It aims at improving
financial inclusion by offering a gamut of financial services such as deposits and cash withdrawals, money
transfer to third parties, recharging of prepaid mobile credit and payment of utility bills.
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Going forward, we will continue to focus on expanding our rural and semi-urban outreach and providing a
comprehensive range of products and services customised to the needs of different customer segments
in these markets.

Treasury

Our treasury operations are structured into three verticals: proprietary trading group, customer related
markets business and the asset-liability management group.

Our proprietary trading business saw an increase in trading activity and profits during fiscal 2013. The
Bank also continued to focus on opportunities in corporate bond markets and was ranked second in
overall league table rankings for debt private placement according to Prime database. During the year, the
Bank won the Finance Asia Country Award under “Best Bond House — India” category.

In its customer related business, the Bank provides foreign exchange and derivative solutions to clients
and continues to be a major player in this segment. These products and services are aimed at managing
customers’ foreign exchange and risk hedging needs through forwards, swaps, options and bullion
services. The Bank hedges market risks related to these products with banking counterparties.

The balance sheet management function continued to actively manage the Bank's liquidity and the
government securities portfolio held for compliance with Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) norms to optimise
the yield on this portfolio, while maintaining an appropriate portfolio duration given the volatile interest
rate environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an integral part of the banking business and we aim at delivering superior shareholder value by
achieving an appropriate trade-off between risk and returns. Key risks include credit, market, liquidity,
operational, legal, compliance and reputation risks. Our risk management strategy is based on a clear
understanding of various risks, disciplined risk assessment and measurement procedures and continuous
monitoring.

The Board of Directors has oversight on all the risks assumed by the Bank. Specific Committees of the
Board have been constituted to facilitate focused oversight of various risks. Policies approved from time
to time by the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board form the governing framework for each
type of risk. The business activities are undertaken within this policy framework. Independent groups and
sub-groups have been constituted across the Bank to facilitate independent evaluation, monitoring and
reporting of various risks. These groups function independently of the business groups.

Our Risk Committee approves, every year, a detailed calendar of reviews. The calendar of reviews includes
reviews of risk management policies in relation to various risks, risk profile of the Bank, its overseas
banking subsidiaries and key non-banking subsidiaries, assessment of capital adequacy based on the risk
profile of the balance sheet, status with respect to implementation of advanced approaches under the
Basel framework and review of regulatory compliance issues. Our Credit Committee also approves every
year a detailed calendar of reviews covering the Bank's exposure to particular industries and outlook for
those industries, analysis of non-performing loans, overdues, incremental sanctions and specific review
of each portfolio. A summary of the reviews carried out by the Credit Committee and Risk Committee
is reported to the Board of Directors. Our Asset Liability Management Committee is responsible for
managing the balance sheet within the risk parameters laid down by the Board and Risk Committee and
reviewing our asset-liability position.

We have dedicated groups, namely the Risk Management Group, Compliance Group, Corporate Legal
Group, Internal Audit Group and Financial Crime Prevention and Reputation Risk Management Group,
with a mandate to identify, assess and monitor the Bank's principal risks in accordance with well-defined
policies and procedures. These groups are independent of all business operations and coordinate with
representatives of the business units to implement ICICI Bank's risk management methodologies. The
Internal Audit Group and Compliance Group are responsible to the Audit Committee of the Board.
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Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that a borrower is unable to meet its financial obligations to the lender.
All credit risk related aspects are governed by a credit and recovery policy which outlines the type of
products that can be offered, customer categories, targeted customer profile and the credit approval
process and limits. The credit and recovery policy is approved by our Board of Directors.

In order to assess the credit risk associated with any corporate financing proposal, we assess a variety
of risks related to the borrower and the relevant industry. We have a structured and standardised credit
approval process which includes a well established procedure of comprehensive credit appraisal and
credit rating. We have developed internal credit rating methodologies for rating obligors. The borrower
rating accounts for quantitative and qualitative issues as well as credit enhancement features specific to
the transaction. The rating serves as a key input in the approval as well as post-approval credit processes.
A risk based asset review framework has also been put in place wherein the frequency of asset review
would be higher for cases with higher exposure and/or lower credit rating. Industry knowledge is constantly
updated through field visits and interactions with clients, sector regulators and industry experts.

We have a strong framework for the appraisal and execution of project finance transactions that involves
a detailed evaluation of technical, commercial, financial, marketing and management factors and the
sponsor’s financial strength and experience. The Bank identifies the project risks, mitigating factors and
residual risks associated with the project. As a part of the due diligence process, we appoint consultants,
including technical advisors, business analysts, legal counsel and insurance consultants, wherever
considered necessary, to advise the lenders. Risk mitigating factors in these financings include creation
of debt service reserves and channelling project revenues through a trust and retention account. The
Bank's project finance loans are generally fully secured and have full recourse to the borrower. In some
cases, we also take additional credit comforts such as corporate or personal guarantees from one or more
sponsors of the project or a pledge of the sponsors’ equity holding in the project company. The Bank's
practice is to normally disburse funds after the entire project funding is committed and all necessary
contractual arrangements have been entered into.

In case of retail loans, sourcing and approval are segregated to achieve independence. The Credit Risk
Management Group has oversight on the credit risk issues for retail assets including vetting of all credit
policies and operating notes proposed for approval by the Board of Directors or forums authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Credit Risk Management Group is also involved in portfolio monitoring for
all retail assets and suggesting and implementing policy changes. The Retail Credit and Policy Group
is an independent unit which focuses on policy formulation and portfolio tracking and monitoring. This
group also includes the Credit Administration Unit that services various retail business units for credit
underwriting. In addition, we also have a Business Intelligence Unit to provide support for analytics, score
card development and database management.

Our credit officers evaluate retail credit proposals on the basis of the product policy approved by
the Committee of Executive Directors and the risk assessment criteria defined by the Credit Risk
Management Group. These criteria vary across product segments but typically include factors like the
borrower’s income, the loan-to-value ratio and demographic parameters. The technical valuations in case
of residential mortgages are carried out by empanelled valuers or technical teams. External agencies such
as field investigation agencies and credit processing agencies are used to facilitate a comprehensive
due diligence process including visits to offices and homes in the case of loans to individual borrowers.
Before disbursements are made, the credit officer checks a centralised delinquent database and reviews
the borrower's profile. In making our credit decisions, we also draw upon reports from credit information
bureaus. We also use the services of certain fraud control agencies operating in India to check applications
before disbursement.

In addition, the Credit and Treasury Middle Office Groups and the Operations Group monitor operational
adherence to regulations, policies and internal approvals. We have centralised operations to manage
operational risk in most back office processes of the Bank's retail loan business. The Fraud Prevention
Group manages fraud related risks through forensic audits and recovery of fraud losses. The segregation
of responsibilities and oversight by groups external to the business groups ensure adequate checks
and balances.
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Our credit approval authorisation framework is laid down by our Board of Directors. We have established
several levels of credit approval authorities for our corporate banking activities like the Credit Committee
of the Board of Directors, the Committee of Executive Directors, the Committee of Senior Management,
the Committee of Executives (Credit) and the Regional Committee (Credit). Retail Credit Forums, Small
Enterprise Group Forums and Corporate Agriculture Group Forums have been created for approval of
retail loans and credit facilities to small enterprises and agri based enterprises respectively. Individual
executives have been delegated with powers in case of policy based retail products to approve financial
assistance within the exposure limits set by our Board of Directors.

Market Risk: Market risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial instrument
as a result of changes in market variables such as interest rates, exchange rates and other asset prices.
Our exposure to market risk is a function of our trading and asset-liability management activities and our
role as a financial intermediary in customer-related transactions. The Bank is exposed to exchange rate
risk, interest rate risk, equity price risk, basis risk and credit spread risk. Besides, the Bank is also exposed
to liquidity or funding risk. These risks are controlled through limits such as duration of equity, earnings at
risk, value-at-risk, stop loss, net overnight open position and liquidity gap limits. The limits are stipulated
in our Investment Policy, Asset Liability Management Policy and Derivatives Policy which are reviewed
and approved by our Board of Directors.

The Asset Liability Management Committee, which comprises wholetime Directors and senior executives,
meets periodically and reviews the positions of trading groups, interest rate and liquidity gap positions
on the banking book, sets deposit and benchmark lending rates, reviews the business profile and its
impact on asset liability management and determines the asset liability management strategy, as deemed
fit, in light of the current and expected business environment. The Market Risk Management Group
recommends changes in risk policies and controls and the processes and methodologies for quantifying
and assessing market risks. Risk limits including position limits and stop loss limits for the trading book
are monitored by the Treasury Middle Office Group and reviewed periodically. Foreign exchange risk is
monitored through the net overnight open position limit. Interest rate risk is measured through the use
of re-pricing gap analysis and duration analysis. Interest rate risk is further monitored through interest
rate risk limits approved by the Asset Liability Management Committee. Risks on trading positions
are monitored and managed by setting value-at-risk limits and stipulating daily and cumulative
stop-loss limits.

The Bank uses various tools for measurement of liquidity risk including the statement of structural
liquidity, dynamic liquidity gap statements, liquidity ratios and stress testing. WWe maintain diverse sources
of liquidity to facilitate flexibility in meeting funding requirements. Incremental operations in the domestic
market are principally funded by accepting deposits from retail and corporate depositors. The deposits
are augmented by borrowings in the short-term inter-bank market and through the issuance of bonds.
Loan maturities and sale of investments also provide liquidity. Our international branches are primarily
funded by debt capital market issuances, lines of financing from export credit agencies, syndicated loans,
bilateral loans and bank lines, while our international subsidiaries raise deposits in their local markets.

Operational Risk: Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people or systems, or from external events. Operational risk includes legal risk but excludes strategic and
reputational risks. Operational risk is inherent in the Bank's business activities in both domestic as well
as overseas operations and covers a wide spectrum of issues. Operational risk can result from a variety
of factors, including failure to obtain proper internal authorisations, improperly documented transactions,
failure of operational and information security procedures, computer systems, software or equipment,
fraud, inadequate training and employee errors. Operational risk in the Bank is managed through a
comprehensive system of internal controls, systems and procedures to monitor transactions, key backup
procedures and undertaking regular contingency planning. The control framework is designed based on
categorisation of functions into front-office comprising business groups, middle office comprising credit
and treasury middle offices, back-office comprising operations, corporate and support functions.

The Bank’s operational risk management governance and framework is defined in the Operational Risk
Management (ORM) Policy approved by the Board of Directors. The Policy is applicable across the
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Bank including overseas branches, ensuring a clear accountability and responsibility for management
and mitigation of operational risk, developing a common understanding of operational risk and helping
the business and operation groups to improve internal controls, thereby reducing the probability and
potential impact of losses from operational risks. The Bank has also constituted an Operational Risk
Management Committee (ORMC) to oversee the operational risk management in the Bank. The ORM
Policy specifies the composition, roles and responsibilities of the ORMC. While the Policy provides a
broad framework, detailed standard operating procedures for operational risk management processes
have been established. Operational risk management framework in the Bank comprises identification
and assessment of risks and controls, new products and process approval framework, measurement
through incidents and exposure reporting, monitoring through key risk indicators and mitigation through
process and control enhancement and insurance. The Bank has formed an independent Operational
Risk Management Group for design, implementation and enhancement of operational risk management
framework and to support business and operations groups in the operational risk management on an
on-going basis.

Other executive level committees that oversee operational risk related aspects are Product and Process
Approval Committee, Outsourcing Committee, Information Security Committee and Business Continuity
Management Steering Committee.

We seek to ensure that our capital position is commensurate with the risks in our business and our future
growth plans through a robust capital management framework. This includes a comprehensive internal
capital adequacy assessment process conducted annually, which determines the adequate level of
capitalisation necessary to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs, including under
stress scenarios. We believe we are well-placed to comply with RBI's guidelines on the implementation
of the Basel lll framework in India. We are also working towards migration to the advanced approaches
under the Basel Il framework over the medium term, subject to applicable RBI guidelines and approvals.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Our employees are our core resource and the Bank has continuously evolved policies to strengthen
its employee value proposition. The “Saath Aapka” initiative of the Bank, which was started in fiscal
2011, was further strengthened during the year through various new initiatives that focused on providing
a more enabling workplace and ensuring employee well-being. A key programme started during the
year was the launch of a unique emergency helpline for employees in distress. The helpline provides
round the clock access to emergency care through access to qualified medical assistance and critical
services such as ambulance over telephone. This service is available to the employees and their family
members. The Bank has tied up with 70 hospitals across 40 locations to facilitate prompt admission and
treatment of employees or their family members without the payment of any advance deposit amount at
these hospitals. Further, to reinforce the safety and security of our employees, especially of our women
colleagues, a special 24X7 helpline has been created which can be used to access assistance in an
emergency.

The Bank continued to invest towards creating a pre-trained resource pool through its industry academia
initiatives. This year the Bank launched the ICICI Bank Sales Academy in partnership with the Institute of
Technology Management (ITM), Raipur and Institute of Finance, Banking and Insurance (IFBI). The course
offers a month long residential classroom programme followed by a two month on-the-job internship in
order to equip sales officers with knowledge of products, processes and selling skills required to make
them more effective in their roles. The Academy has the capacity to train 1,100 sales officers every month.
Further, during the year, the curriculum of the Probationary Officers Programme was revamped to include
several case studies derived from experiences at branches on sales, service, compliance and regulation.
This programme continues to train 2,400 probationary officers every year. The Bank also continues to
invest in ICICI Business Leadership Programmes (in partnership with NIIT University and National Institute
of Securities Markets) to provide pre-trained resources for middle management positions in specialized
areas like corporate banking, risk management, information technology, treasury and securities markets.
To strengthen the philosophy of ‘Khayaal Aapka’, new staff joining the branches undergo a practice
oriented programme called “skill through drill”.
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During the year, we took a special initiative to recognise the contribution made by our long-serving
employees. These employees were presented with a personalised letter signed by the Managing Director
and CEO. Around 15,500 employees who have spent more than five years with the Bank were recognised
and felicitated during the year.

The Bank continues to leverage technology for offering knowledge and learning products to its employees.
This year, we launched mobile phone based performance support tools for relationship managers in the
small and medium enterprises group and in the commercial banking group. These performance support
tools help retrieve critical product/process information and assist relationship managers in customer
profiling and services while on the move. The Bank continued to offer other learning and development
platforms such as classroom training and e-learning initiatives to help upgrade employees’ knowledge
and skills. This year the Bank launched 22 new e-learning modules.

The industrial relations environment for the Bank remained cordial and conducive for achieving the
organisation’s objectives.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Technology has been central to ICICI Bank's initiatives in enhancing the banking experience for our
customers. We have enhanced the technology platform to continuously augment functionalities in all
channels including ATMs, phone banking, internet banking and mobile banking and also strengthen
delivery capabilities and technology infrastructure. Our pioneering steps focused on understanding
customer requirements, improving customer convenience and reducing turnaround time have kept us
ahead as a technology leader in Indian banking for over a decade.

During the year, our technology strategy was aligned towards meeting the ‘Khayaal Aapka’ promise to
our customers. We introduced a range of services like 24X7 electronic branches, video-conferencing
from branches, Money2India on mobile, Tab Banking and Bank-on-the-move to enhance customer
convenience. Taking forward the philosophy of delivering value to our customers, we offered products
such as iBizz (a mobile-based processing system for corporate customers), Facebook banking, iWish (a
goal-based savings product) and tailored offerings for customers in the wealth segment. We also took
up collaborative initiatives including iSurepay (fees, premium and tax collections for third party), UID
authentication for Aadhaar-based payments and enabling corporates to pay state taxes online.

During the year we also remained focused on ensuring superior technology in conjunction with rapid
expansion in our business, technology platform and delivery capabilities. With a view to creating a robust
technology infrastructure, we undertook a number of migration projects during the course of the year
involving upgradations and relocation of critical facilities. We also ensured optimal utilisation of technology
infrastructure already deployed. Steps in this direction include leveraging the ATM channel for wider
offerings and enhancing the scope and reach of our Trade Online platform. During the year, we received
several accolades for our technology offerings. We received the “Best Technology Bank of the Year”
award in the private sector banks category by the Indian Banks’ Association and also received two awards
from the Institute for Development and Research in Banking Technology (IDRBT) for IT implementation
and for managing IT risks.

The technology landscape is undergoing significant changes driven by rapid growth in mobility, cloud
computing and big data analytics. We will continue to invest in innovations and ensure that our technology
systems evolve in line with new trends and deliver value to our customers.

KEY SUBSIDIARIES
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company (ICICI Life)

ICICI Life successfully maintained its leadership amongst private players in new business premium on
retail weighted basis with a market share of 7.0% in fiscal 2013. ICICI Life's total premium for fiscal
2013 was % 135.38 billion and new business annualised premium equivalent premium was ¥ 35.32
billion. ICICI Life’s unaudited new business profit in fiscal 2013 was X 5.29 billion. The profit after tax was
% 14.96 billion in fiscal 2013 compared to X 13.84 billion in fiscal 2012. The total sum assured by ICICI Life,
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including the group insurance business, increased by 14.1% from ¥ 2,416.86 billion at March 31, 2012 to
% 2,757.71 billion at March 31, 2013.

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company (ICICI General)

ICICI General maintained its leadership in the private sector with an overall market share of 9.5% in fiscal
2013. ICICI General’s gross written premium grew by 19.8% from X 53.58 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 64.20
billion during fiscal 2013. The profit after tax was ¥ 3.06 billion in fiscal 2013 compared to a loss of ¥ 4.16
billion in fiscal 2012. The loss in fiscal 2012 was due to the recognition of additional losses related to the
third party motor pool (a multilateral reinsurance arrangement covering all third party risk of commercial
vehicles) in accordance with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority order dated March 22,
2012 applicable to all general insurance companies.

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company (ICICI AMC)

ICICI AMC is the third largest asset management company in India with average mutual fund assets under
management of ¥ 878.35 billion for the quarter ended March 31, 2013. ICICI AMC achieved a profit after
tax of T 1.10 billion in fiscal 2013 compared to X 0.88 billion in fiscal 2012.

ICICI Venture Funds Management Company (ICICI Venture)

ICICI Venture, despite a challenging environment for alternate asset managers, maintained its leadership
position as a specialist alternative asset manager based in India through its presence in diversified asset
classes of private equity, infrastructure, real estate and special situations. ICICI Venture achieved a profit
after tax of ¥ 0.20 billion in fiscal 2013 compared to a profit after tax of ¥ 0.68 billion in fiscal 2012.

ICICI Securities (I-Sec)

Market conditions in fiscal 2013 continued to be difficult for capital market related entities. I-Sec continued
to expand its client base across various business segments, assisting its customers in meeting their
financial goals by providing them with research, advisory and execution services. I-Sec maintained its
market leadership in the retail broking business. The company achieved a profit of ¥ 0.68 billion in fiscal
2013 compared to X 0.77 billion in fiscal 2012.

ICICI Securities Primary Dealership (I-Sec PD)

I-Sec PD’s corporate debt placement volumes rose to cross X 900.00 billion in fiscal 2013. During the year
I-Sec PD was awarded the “Best Bond House - India” by Euromoney. I-Sec PD achieved a profit after tax
of X 1.22 billion in fiscal 2013 compared to X 0.86 billion in fiscal 2012.

ICICI Bank UK plc (ICICI Bank UK)

ICICI Bank UK's profit after tax for fiscal 2013 was US$ 14.4 million compared to US$ 25.4 million in fiscal
2012. At March 31, 2013, ICICI Bank UK plc had total assets of US$ 3.6 billion compared to US$ 4.1 billion
at March 31, 2012. Its capital position was strong with a capital adequacy ratio of 30.8% at March 31,
2013 compared to 32.4% at March 31, 2012.

During fiscal 2013, ICICI Bank UK repatriated US$ 100 million of aggregate capital to the Bank, which
included redemption of US$ 50 million of preference share capital and return of US$ 50 million of equity
capital, after receiving requisite approvals.

ICICI Bank Canada

ICICI Bank Canada’s profit after tax for fiscal 2013 was CAD 43.6 million compared to CAD 34.4 million in
fiscal 2012. At March 31, 2013, ICICI Bank Canada had total assets of CAD 5.4 billion compared to CAD
5.2 billion at March 31, 2012. ICICI Bank Canada had a capital adequacy ratio of 33.2% at March 31, 2013
compared to 31.7% at March 31, 2012.
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CREDIT RATING
ICICI Bank's credit ratings by various credit rating agencies at March 31, 2013 are given below:

Agency Rating

Moady's INVestor SErvie (MOOLY'S).......mmssmmssmms. e A i
S1ANAArd 8 POOT'S (SBP) e BBB: )
Credit Analysis & Research Limited (CARE) CAREAMA e )
Investment Information and Credit Rating Agency (ICRA) | [ICRAJAAA
.................................................................................................................................................................................... CRISIL AAA e
Japan Credit Rating Agency (JCRA) BBB+'

1. Senior foreign currency debt ratings

PUBLIC RECOGNITION

The Bank received several awards and recognitions during fiscal 2013 in India and abroad including the
following:

Most trusted brand in the Private Sector and Foreign Banks category by Brand Equity. Most Trusted
Brands 2012; ranked 15th among the Top 50 Service Brands

Ranked fifth among Indian companies and 288th globally, in the Forbes Global 2000 list
Ranked second among India’s 50 Biggest Financial Companies in BW Real 500 by Businessworld

Best Technology Bank of the year award in the Private Sector Bank category by Indian Banks’
Association (IBA)

Special IT Innovation Award by Lenovo - NASSCOM and CNBC-TV18
Loyalty Award for My Savings Rewards by Aimia, a global leader in loyalty management

Best Private Sector Bank in Global Business Development, Rural Reach and SME Financing categories
by Dun & Bradstreet-Polaris Financial Technology Banking Awards

Best Foreign Exchange Bank (India) and Best Bond House (India) by Finance Asia
Best SME Bank for Treasury and Working Capital (India) by The Asset Triple A

Best Trade Finance House and Best Cash Management House by The Corporate Treasurer's Alliance
Awards

Best Trade Finance Bank in India by GTR Asia Leaders in Trade Awards 2012

Low Cost/Small Budget Marketing Initiative Award by Rural Marketing Association of India (RMAI) for
Gram Samvad programme

NFS Operational Excellence Awards in the MNC and Private Sector Bank Category from National
Payments Corporation of India (NPCI)

Dataquest Technology Innovation Awards 2012 for data center migration by Dataquest

Best Remittance Product award from the Asian Banker
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Economic activity in India continued to moderate during fiscal 2013. Global economic conditions also
remained weak with slowdown in growth in developed and emerging economies. While a supportive
policy environment in developed economies prevented any crisis situation, uncertainty around revival in
global growth remained a concern through the year.

India’s gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 5.0% during the first nine months of fiscal 2013 compared
to a growth of 6.6% in the corresponding period of fiscal 2012. The services sector grew by 6.7% during
the first nine months of fiscal 2013 compared to 8.5% during the first nine months of fiscal 2012. The
industrial sector grew by 3.2% and agriculture sector by 4.0% during the first nine months of fiscal
2013 compared to a growth of 4.0% and 4.3% respectively in the corresponding period of fiscal 2012.
Private consumption growth moderated to 2.9% during the first nine months of fiscal 2013 compared to
a growth of 7.4% in the corresponding period of fiscal 2012. Investments, as measured by gross fixed
capital formation, grew by 0.1% during the first nine months of fiscal 2013 compared to a growth of 5.0%
in the corresponding period of fiscal 2012. The Central Statistical Organisation has estimated GDP growth
for fiscal 2013 at 5.0% compared to 6.2% in fiscal 2012 and 9.3% in fiscal 2011.

Inflation, measured by the Wholesale Price Index (WPI), remained above 7.0% between April 2012 and
January 2013, and subsequently eased to 6.0% in March 2013. The moderation in inflation was driven
by the manufactured products segment where inflation increased from 5.3% in April 2012 to 6.5% in
September 2012 before easing to 4.1% in March 2013. Inflation in food articles remained high through the
year with the average inflation at 9.9% in fiscal 2013 compared to 7.3% in fiscal 2012. Fuel inflation which
initially eased picked up in the later part of the year due to hike in petrol prices and partial deregulation of
diesel prices. Core inflation (defined as manufactured products excluding food products) reduced from
5.0% in March 2012 to 3.4% in March 2013. Average inflation for fiscal 2013 was 7.3% compared to 8.9%
in fiscal 2012.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) undertook a calibrated easing of monetary policy during the year. During
fiscal 2013, the repo rate was reduced by 100 basis points from 8.50% to 7.50% with a 50 basis points
cut in April 2012 followed by a 25 basis points reduction each in January 2013 and March 2013. The cash
reserve ratio (CRR) was reduced by 75 basis points during the year from 4.75% to 4.00%, with a 25 basis
point cut each effective in September 2012, November 2012 and February 2013. Further, in August 2012,
the statutory liquidity ratio was reduced by 100 basis points from 24.0% to 23.0%.

Liquidity in the system continued to remain in deficit through fiscal 2013. Average borrowing by banks
under the liquidity adjustment facility window of RBI increased from ¥ 798.78 billion in fiscal 2012 to
% 841.16 billion in fiscal 2013. The average borrowing by banks under the liquidity adjustment facility
window was over ¥ 960.00 billion in the second half of fiscal 2013. In view of the tight liquidity conditions,
RBI injected liquidity through open market operations aggregating around ¥ 1,550.00 billion during fiscal
2013 in addition to the reduction in CRR. The yields on the benchmark 10-year government securities
decreased by about 58 basis points from 8.54% at March 30, 2012 to 7.96% at March 28, 2013.

A series of policy measures were announced by the Government during the later part of fiscal 2013.
The key developments included approval of the Banking Laws (Amendment) Bill 2011 by both houses of
Parliament, announcement of fiscal consolidation roadmap by the Government, approval of 51% foreign
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direct investment in multi-brand retail, formation of the Cabinet Committee on Investments to expedite
investments in projects, partial deregulation of diesel prices, increase in petrol prices and railway
passenger fares and deferral of General Anti Avoidance Rules (GAAR) implementation to fiscal 2017.
These announcements had a positive impact on market sentiment.

The Indian equity markets improved due to favourable global liquidity conditions and domestic events.
The extraordinary liquidity support announced by the US, EU and Japan had a positive impact on global
financial markets. This was further supported by gradual improvement in US economic indicators. The
benchmark equity index, the BSE Sensex, increased by 8.2% during fiscal 2013, rising from 17,404 at
March 31, 2012 to a peak of 20,104 at January 25, 2013, before moderating to 18,835 at March 28, 2013.
Foreign institutional investment (Fll) flows were significantly higher during the year, with net inflows of
USD 29.00 billion during fiscal 2013 compared to USD 16.81 billion inflows during fiscal 2012. Foreign
direct investments moderated to USD 21.10 billion and external commercial borrowings to USD 4.72
billion during the first nine months of fiscal 2013 compared to USD 28.74 billion and USD 6.89 billion
respectively during the corresponding period of fiscal 2012. During the first nine months of fiscal 2013, a
steeper decline in India’s exports compared to imports led to a rise in the current account deficit to 5.3% of
GDP However, India’s balance of payments had a marginal surplus of USD 1.15 billion during the first nine
months of fiscal 2013 as against a deficit of USD 7.09 billion during the corresponding period of fiscal 2012,
reflecting strong portfolio investment inflows. The rupee depreciated by 6.3% against the US dollar from
¥ 51.16 per US dollar at March 30, 2012 to X 54.39 per US dollar at March 28, 2013.

Non-food credit growth moderated during fiscal 2013 from 16.8% at March 23, 2012 to 14.0% at March
22, 2013. Based on sector-wise data, year-on-year growth in credit to industry was 15.7% and to the
services sector was 13.6% at March 22, 2013. Credit to the infrastructure sector grew by 16.5% year-on-
year at March 22, 2013 compared to an 20.5% increase at March 23, 2012 and a 37.8% increase at March
25, 2011. Retail loan growth increased to 14.5% year-on-year at March 22, 2013 compared to 12.9% at
March 23, 2012. Deposit growth remained muted during the year recording year-on-year growth of 14.3%
at March 22, 2013 compared to 13.5% growth at March 23, 2012. Demand deposit growth was 5.9%
year-on-year at March 22, 2013.

First year retail premium underwritten in the life insurance sector increased (on weighted received
premium basis) to ¥ 389.56 billion in fiscal 2013 from I 382.54 billion in fiscal 2012. Gross premium of
the non-life insurance sector (excluding specialised insurance institutions) grew by 18.4% to I 647.07
billion during fiscal 2013 from ¥ 546.45 billion during fiscal 2012. The average assets under management
of mutual funds increased by 22.8% from X 6,647.92 billion in March 2012 to X 8,166.57 billion in March
2013.

Some key regulatory developments in the Indian financial sector during fiscal 2013 include:

® In May 2012, RBI's final guidelines on implementation of Basel Ill capital regulations were released.
These guidelines require, among other things, higher levels of Tier-1 capital and common equity,
capital conservation buffers, higher deductions from common equity and Tier-1 capital for investments
in subsidiaries and changes in the structure of non-equity instruments eligible for inclusion in Tier-1
capital. The guidelines are to be fully implemented by March 2018. While the initial date for commencing
implementation was January 1, 2013, it was later deferred to April 1, 2013.
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In June 2012, RBI prohibited foreclosure charges and pre-payment penalties on home loans on a
floating interest rate basis.

In July 2012, RBI issued revised guidelines on priority sector lending requirements. While keeping the
lending targets unchanged, the revised guidelines made certain changes to the categories of lending
that would be eligible for classification as priority sector lending and its sub-segments. The guidelines
aim to increase direct agricultural lending by banks to individuals. The guidelines also stipulate that
investments by banks in securitised assets and outright purchases of loans and assignments would
be eligible for classification under the priority sector. The guidelines also increased the priority sector
lending requirements for foreign banks in India that have 20 or more branches, in order to bring them
on par with domestic banks. In October 2012, RBI announced revisions to the priority sector lending
norms. Loans up to ¥ 20.0 million to partnership firms, cooperatives and corporates directly engaged
in agricultural activities were made eligible for classification under direct agriculture lending. Also,
loans to housing finance companies for on-lending for housing up to ¥ 1.0 million per borrower were
included under priority sector lending.

In November 2012, the RBI increased the general provisioning on restructured standard accounts
from 2.00% to 2.75%.

In November 2012, RBI released draft guidelines on liquidity risk management and the Basel IlI
framework on liquidity standards. The draft guidelines provide for monitoring and reporting of a
liquidity coverage ratio, which is designed to ensure that a bank maintains an adequate level of liquid
assets to survive an acute liquidity stress scenario lasting one month, and a net stable funding ratio
designed to ensure a minimum amount of funding that is expected to be stable over a one-year time
horizon.

In December 2012, Parliament passed the Banking Laws (Amendment) Bill, which, inter alia, permits
all banking companies to issue preference shares that will not carry any voting rights; mandates
prior approval of RBI for the acquisition of more than 5.0% of a banking company’s paid-up capital or
voting rights by any individual or firm or group; empowers RBI, after consultations with the Central
Government, to supersede the board of a private sector bank for a total period not exceeding 12
months, during which time RBI will have the power to appoint an administrator to manage the
bank; empowers RBI to inspect affiliates of banking entities (affiliates include subsidiaries, holding
companies or any joint ventures of banks); and eases the restrictions on voting rights by making them
proportionate to the shareholding up to a cap of 26% in case of private sector banks (earlier 10%), and
10% in the case of public sector banks (earlier 1%).

In December 2012, the Lok Sabha passed the Companies Bill 2011 which would amend the Companies
Act 1956. The provisions of the Bill include making independent directors more accountable and
improving corporate governance practices. The Bill also seeks to make corporate social responsibility
mandatory for companies above a certain size and require them to spend a minimum of 2% of the
average net profits of the preceding three years for corporate social responsibility initiatives. Any
shortfall in this regard is required to be explained in the annual report. The Bill is pending approval of
the Rajya Sabha.

In January 2013, the RBI issued draft guidelines on restructuring of advances. The draft guidelines
propose that with effect from April 1, 2015, loans that are restructured (other than in the infrastructure
sector) would be classified as non-performing. The general provision required on restructured standard
accounts would increase to 3.75% from March 31, 2014 and to 5.0% from March 31, 2015. General
provisions on standard accounts restructured after April 1, 2013 would be at 5.0%.

RBI through a notification issued on January 31, 2013 mandated banks to disclose further details on
restructured accounts in their annual reports. This includes disclosing restructured accounts on a
cumulative basis excluding the standard restructured accounts which cease to attract higher provision
and/or higher risk weight, the provisions made on restructured accounts under various categories and
details of movement of restructured accounts.



® In February 2013, RBI issued guidelines on the entry of new banks in the private sector including
eligibility criteria, structure, capital requirements, shareholding structure and corporate governance
practices. Select entities or groups in the private sector, entities in the public sector and non-banking
financial companies with a successful track record of at least ten years would be eligible to promote
banks. The initial minimum capital requirement for these entities is ¥ 5.00 billion, with foreign
shareholding not exceeding 49.0% for the first five years. Applications for setting up of new banks
have been sought by July 1, 2013.

® In March 2013, the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority issued guidelines on non-
linked life insurance products which include limits on the commission rates payable by insurance
companies, introduction of minimum guaranteed surrender value and minimum death benefits. The
new guidelines would require life insurance companies to modify existing non-linked products which
do not comply with the revised guidelines.

STANDALONE FINANCIALS AS PER INDIAN GAAP
Summary

During fiscal 2013, we focused on sustainable value creation by balancing growth, profitability and risk
management.

Our profit after tax increased by 28.8% from ¥ 64.65 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 83.25 billion in fiscal 2013.
The increase in profit after tax was mainly due to 29.2% increase in net interest income and 11.3%
increase in non-interest income offset, in part, by a 14.8% increase in non-interest expenses and 13.9%
increase in provisions and contingencies (excluding provisions for tax). Net interest income increased by
29.2% from X 107.34 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 138.66 billion in fiscal 2013, reflecting an increase of 38
basis points in net interest margin and an increase of 13.5% in average interest-earning assets.

Non-interest income increased by 11.3% from ¥ 75.02 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 83.46 billion in fiscal 2013.
The increase in non-interest income was primarily due to a gain of ¥ 4.95 billion from treasury-related
activities in fiscal 2013 compared to a loss of ¥ 0.13 billion in fiscal 2012 and an increase in dividend
income from subsidiaries from ¥ 7.36 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 9.12 billion in fiscal 2013. Fee income
increased by 2.9% from X 67.07 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 69.01 billion in fiscal 2013.

Non-interest expenses increased by 14.8% from I 78.50 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 90.13 billion in fiscal
2013 primarily due to an increase in employee expenses and other administrative expenses. Provisions
and contingencies (excluding provisions for tax) increased by 13.9% from X 15.83 billion in fiscal 2012 to
% 18.03 billion in fiscal 2013. The increase in provisions and contingencies (excluding provisions for tax)
was primarily due to an increase in provisions for non-performing and restructured loans in the Small &
Medium Enterprises (SME) and corporate loan portfolio.

Total assets increased by 9.8% from ¥ 4,890.69 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 5,367.95 billion at March 31,
2013. Total deposits increased by 14.5% from ¥ 2,555.00 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 2,926.14 billion at
March 31, 2013. Savings account deposits increased by 12.6% from X 760.46 billion at March 31, 2012
to ¥ 856.51 billion at March 31, 2013. The current and savings account (CASA) ratio was 41.9% at March
31, 2013 compared to 43.5% at March 31, 2012. Term deposits increased by 17.7% from ¥ 1,444.81
billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 1,700.37 billion at March 31, 2013. Total advances increased by 14.4% from
% 2,537.28 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 2,902.49 billion at March 31, 2013 primarily due to an increase
in the domestic corporate and retail loan book. The net non-performing asset ratio increased marginally
from 0.62% at March 31, 2012 to 0.64% at March 31, 2013.

We continued to expand our branch network in India. Our branch network in India increased from 2,752
branches and extension counters at March 31, 2012 to 3,100 branches and extension counters at March
31, 2013. We also increased our ATM network from 9,006 ATMs at March 31, 2012 to 10,481 ATMs at
March 31, 2013.
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The total capital adequacy ratio of ICICI Bank on a standalone basis at March 31, 2013 in accordance with
RBI guidelines on Basel Il was 18.74% with a Tier-1 capital adequacy ratio of 12.80% compared to a total
capital adequacy ratio of 18.52% and Tier-1 capital adequacy ratio of 12.68% at March 31, 2012.

Operating results data

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the operating results data.
T in billion, except percentages

Cparticulars | Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2013| % change

Interest income 3 335.42 3 400.75 19.5%

Operating profit

Provisions, net of writ

Profit after tax

1. Includes merchant foreign exchange income and margin on customer derivative transactions.
2. Operating expenses include lease depreciation and direct marketing agency expenses.

3. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest ¥ 10.0 million.

4. Prior period figures have been re-grouped/re-arranged, where necessary.

Key ratios
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the key financial ratios.

Return on average equity (%)’ 11.09 12.94

Cost to income (%)*

1. Return on average equity is the ratio of the net profit after tax to the quarterly average equity share capital and
reserves.

2. Return on average assets is the ratio of net profit after tax to average assets. The average balances are the
averages of daily balances, except averages of foreign branches which are calculated on a fortnightly basis.

3. We have modified our presentation of mark-to-market gains and losses on foreign exchange and derivative
transactions to gross basis, which was previously on net basis. Accordingly, for fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013, the
average total assets/total liabilities have been grossed up.

4. Cost represents operating expense excluding lease depreciation. Income represents net interest income and
non-interest income and is net of lease depreciation.
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Net interest income and spread analysis

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the net interest income and spread analysis.
T in billion, except percentages

e s 2012 Fscal 20136 change.

O S MO e 33542 . 40075 .. 19.5%
O S XD OIS e 22808 .. 26209 149
Netinterest income e 107.34 . ..13866  ..292
(Average interest-earning assets' 393259 . 446540 135,
Average interest-bearing liabilities’ . 360351 X407347 . 13.0%
N O S A g N e 2.73% BNV ] S
AVBIBG VIOl e 853% .. 8970 oo S
JAverage Cost Of fUNAS e 6.33% .. 6.43% oo .

Interest spread 2.20% 2.54% —

1. The average balances are the averages of daily balances, except averages of foreign branches which are
calculated on a fortnightly basis.
2. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest ¥ 10.0 million.

Net interest income increased by 29.2% from ¥ 107.34 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 138.66 billion in fiscal
2013 reflecting an increase in net interest margin from 2.73% in fiscal 2012 to 3.11% in fiscal 2013 and a
13.5% increase in the average volume of interest-earning assets.

The yield on interest-earning assets increased from 8.53% in fiscal 2012 to 8.97% in fiscal 2013 offset,
in part, by an increase in the cost of funds from 6.33% in fiscal 2012 to 6.43% in fiscal 2013. The interest
spread increased from 2.20% in fiscal 2012 to 2.54% in fiscal 2013. Net interest margin increased from
2.73% in fiscal 2012 to 3.11% in fiscal 2013.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the trend in yield, cost, spread and margin.

Yield on interest-earning assets

Net interest margin

Yield on interest-earning assets increased from 8.53% in fiscal 2012 to 8.97% in fiscal 2013 primarily due
to the following factors:

® Yield on average advances increased from 9.55% in fiscal 2012 to 9.94% in fiscal 2013 primarily
due to an increase in yield on domestic and overseas corporate loans as a result of incremental
disbursements at higher lending rates and the full impact of increase in our base rate during fiscal
2012. However, subsequently we reduced our base rate to 9.75% with effect from April 23, 2012 in
response to a decrease in repo rate by 50 basis points in April 2012.
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® Yield on average interest-earning investments increased from 7.24% in fiscal 2012 to 7.73% in fiscal
2013. The yield on Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) securities increased from 7.34% in fiscal 2012 to
7.80% in fiscal 2013 primarily due to investments in longer duration SLR securities at higher yields
and maturities of low yielding securities. The yield on average interest-earning non-SLR investments
increased from 7.10% in fiscal 2012 to 7.62% in fiscal 2013.

® |Interest income also includes interest on income tax refund of ¥ 2.58 billion in fiscal 2013 compared
to ¥ 0.80 billion in fiscal 2012. The receipt, amount and timing of such income depends on the nature
and timing of determinations by tax authorities and is not consistent or predictable.

® During fiscal 2013, the impact on interest income of losses on securitised pools of assets (including
credit losses on existing pools) was % 0.28 billion compared to ¥ 2.02 billion in fiscal 2012.

* RBIreduced the CRR by 200 basis points in phases during fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013. CRR was 6.00%
at September 30, 2011, 4.75% at March 31, 2012 and 4.00% at March 31, 2013. As CRR balances
do not earn any interest income, the reduction had a positive impact on the yield on interest-earning
assets during fiscal 2013.

The cost of funds increased from 6.33% in fiscal 2012 to 6.43% in fiscal 2013 primarily due to the
following factors:

® The cost of deposits increased from 6.12% in fiscal 2012 to 6.38% in fiscal 2013. The cost of average
term deposits increased by 26 basis points from 8.21% in fiscal 2012 t0 8.47% in fiscal 2013, reflecting
the full impact of the systemic increase in deposit rates in fiscal 2012. This was partly offset by
decrease in the cost of borrowings from 6.71% in fiscal 2012 to 6.54% in fiscal 2013.

Net interest margin of overseas branches improved from 1.23% for fiscal 2012 to 1.34% for fiscal 2013
primarily due to increase in yield on advances. Yield on overseas advances increased primarily due to
new disbursements at higher interest rates. Further, during fiscal 2012, there were repayments and
prepayments of low yielding loans. The full impact of the reduction in low yielding loans was reflected
during fiscal 2013. The increase in yield on advances was offset, in part, by the impact of higher liquidity
maintained in the international operations during the year.

The reduction of CRR by 75 basis points to 4.00% and reduction in repo rate by 100 basis points to 7.50%
by RBI during fiscal 2013, indicates a reversal in policy stance. While the interest rates in the system
are believed to have peaked, the extent and timing of decline in interest rates will depend on systemic
liquidity, the future movement of inflation as well as on the evolving fiscal situation.

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the trend in average interest-earning assets and
average interest-bearing liabilities:
T in billion, except percentages

| Fiscal2012] Fiscal 2013 % change]

Advances % 2,316.69 %2,751.19 18.8%

Interest-earning investments

Other Interestearning assets ... ..o 2085 . 28931 88

Totalmterestbearlngllabllltles .................................................................. ?360351 ........... ?407347 ....................................

1. Average investments and average borrowings include average short-term re-purchase transactions.

2. Average balances are the averages of daily balances, except averages of foreign branches which are calculated
on a fortnightly basis.

3. Borrowings exclude preference share capital.

The average volume of interest-earning assets increased by 13.5% from ¥ 3,932.59 billion in fiscal 2012 to
T 4,465.40 billion in fiscal 2013. The increase in average interest-earning assets was primarily on account
of an increase in average advances by X 434.50 billion and average interest-earning investments by
% 87.44 billion.
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Average advances increased by 18.8% from X 2,316.69 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 2,751.19 billion in fiscal
2013 primarily on account of increase in domestic corporate and retail advances and overseas corporate
advances.

Average interest-earning investments increased by 6.5% from X 1,337.46 billion in fiscal 2012 to
3 1,424.90 billion in fiscal 2013, primarily due to an increase in average interest-earning SLR investments
by 6.3% from I 804.51 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 855.54 billion in fiscal 2013. Average interest earning non-
SLR investments increased by 6.8% from ¥ 532.94 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 569.36 billion in fiscal 2013.
Interest-earning non-SLR investments primarily include investments in corporate bonds and debentures,
certificates of deposits, commercial paper, Rural Infrastructure Development Fund (RIDF) and related
investments and investments in liquid mutual funds.

Average interest-bearing liabilities increased by 13.0% from ¥ 3,603.51 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 4,073.47
billion in fiscal 2013 on account of an increase of ¥ 312.55 billion in average deposits and an increase of
% 157.41 billion in average borrowings. The ratio of average CASA deposits to average deposits was at
38.0% in fiscal 2013 compared to 39.1% in fiscal 2012.

Non-interest income

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the principal components of non-interest income.
T in billion, except percentages

2 203 e

Fee income’ 69.01 2.9%

Income from treasury-related activities

Total non-interest income

1. Includes merchant foreign exchange income and income on customer derivative transactions.

Non-interest income primarily includes fee and commission income, income from treasury-related
activities, dividend from subsidiaries and other income including lease income. The non-interest income
increased by 11.3% from X 75.02 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 83.46 billion in fiscal 2013. The increase in non-
interest income was primarily on account of gain from treasury-related activities in fiscal 2013 compared
to aloss in fiscal 2012, and an increase in dividend income from subsidiaries.

Fee income

Fee income primarily includes fees from corporate clients such as loan processing fees and transaction
banking fees and fees from retail customers such as loan processing fees, fees from credit cards business,
account service charges and third party referral fees.

Fee income increased by 2.9% from X 67.07 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 69.01 billion in fiscal 2013 primarily
due to an increase in fee income from transaction banking fees, credit card fees, fee income from forex
and derivative products and third party referral fees, offset, in part, by decrease in loan processing fees.

Profit/(loss) on treasury-related activities (net)

Income from treasury-related activities includes income from sale of investments and revaluation of
investments on account of changes in unrealised profit/(loss) in the fixed income, equity and preference
share portfolio, units of venture funds and security receipts.

Profit from treasury-related activities was ¥ 4.95 billion in fiscal 2013 compared to a loss of ¥ 0.13 billion
in fiscal 2012. Treasury income for fiscal 2013 primarily included gain on government securities and
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other fixed income positions, profit on security receipts and other gains, offset, in part, by mark-to-
market losses on equity and preference share portfolio. Loss from treasury-related activities in fiscal
2012 primarily included realised/mark-to-market provision on security receipts, offset, in part, by reversal
of mark-to-market loss/realised gain on investments in government of India securities and other fixed
income positions and gain on equity/preference investments.

During fiscal 2013 the mark-to-market gain on the credit derivatives portfolio was ¥ 0.06 billion compared
to X 0.56 billion in fiscal 2012.

At March 31, 2013, we had an outstanding net investment of ¥ 11.47 billion in security receipts issued by
asset reconstruction companies in relation to sale of non-performing loans. Security receipts issued by
asset reconstruction companies are valued as per net asset value obtained from the asset reconstruction
company from time to time. During fiscal 2013, the impact of these security receipts on the income from
treasury-related activities was a gain of ¥ 0.45 billion compared to a loss of ¥ 4.08 billion in fiscal 2012.

Dividend from subsidiaries

Dividend from subsidiaries increased by 23.9% from X 7.36 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 9.12 billion in fiscal
2013. In fiscal 2013, dividend from subsidiaries included dividend of X 3.27 billion received from ICICI
Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited, ¥ 1.67 billion received from ICIClI Bank Canada and ¥ 1.31
billion received from ICICI Bank UK.

Non-interest expense

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the principal components of non-interest expense.
T in billion, except percentages

| Fiscal0t2)_Fisoal2013] % chango)

Payments to and provisions for employees 3 35.15 3 38.93 10.8%

Depreciation on own property (including non

DANKING BSSELS) sttt 482 ........................ 457(52)
Other administrative eXpenses .. SO Y830 2150
Totalnon-interestexpense (excluding lease depreciation)  ~~ ~ 78.08 89.80 . 150
Depreciation (net of lease equalisation) on leased assets 042 033 . (21.4).
Total non-interest expense 378.50 390.13 14.8%

Non-interest expenses primarily include employee expenses, depreciation on assets and other
administrative expenses. In fiscal 2013, non-interest expenses increased by 14.8% from ¥ 78.50 billion in
fiscal 2012 to ¥ 90.13 billion in fiscal 2013 primarily due to an increase in employee expenses and other
administrative expenses.

Payments to and provisions for employees

Employee expenses increased by 10.8% from X 35.15 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 38.93 billion in fiscal 2013.
Employee expenses increased due to annual increments and increase in the number of employees.
The number of employees increased from 58,276 at March 31, 2012 to 62,065 at March 31, 2013. The
employee base includes sales executives, employees on fixed term contracts and interns.

Depreciation

Depreciation on owned property decreased by 5.2% from ¥ 4.82 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 4.57 billion in
fiscal 2013. Depreciation on leased assets decreased from ¥ 0.42 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 0.33 billion in
fiscal 2013.
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Other administrative expenses

Other administrative expenses primarily include rent, taxes and lighting, advertisement and publicity,
repairs and maintenance and other expenditure. Other administrative expenses increased by 21.5% from
3 38.11 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 46.30 billion in fiscal 2013. The increase in other administrative expenses
was primarily due to increase in our branch and ATM network. The number of branches and extension
counters (excluding foreign branches and offshore banking units) increased from 2,752 at March 31, 2012
to 3,100 at March 31, 2013. We also increased our ATM network from 9,006 ATMs at March 31, 2012 to
10,481 ATMs at March 31, 2013. The increase in other administrative expenses was offset, in part, by a
decrease in collection expenses.

Provisions and contingencies (excluding provisions for tax)

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the components of provisions and contingencies.
T in billion, except percentages

Fiscal 2012 | Fiscal 2013 % change

Provision for investments (including credit substitutes) (net) 34.13 31.26 (69.5)%

Provision for non-performing and other assets'

Others

Total provisions a_nd contingencies % 15.83 % 18.03 13.9%
(excluding provisions for tax)

1. Includes restructuring related provision.

Provisions are made by us on standard, sub-standard and doubtful assets at rates prescribed by RBI.
Loss assets and unsecured portions of doubtful assets are provided/written off as required by extant
RBI guidelines. Provisions on retail non-performing loans are made at the borrower level in accordance
with our retail assets provisioning policy, subject to the minimum provisioning levels prescribed by RBI.
The specific provisions on retail loans held by us were higher than the minimum regulatory requirement.
In addition to the specific provision on NPAs, we maintain a general provision on performing loans and
advances at rates prescribed by RBI. For performing loans and advances in overseas branches, the general
provision is made at higher of host country regulations requirement and RBI requirement.

Provisions and contingencies (excluding provisions for tax) increased by 13.9% from X 15.83 billion in
fiscal 2012 to ¥ 18.03 billion in fiscal 2013 primarily due to an increase in provisions on non-performing
and restructured loans in the SME and corporate loan portfolio. This was, offset, in part, by write-backs
primarily on the unsecured retail asset portfolio and lower provision on investments.

Provision for investments decreased from ¥ 4.13 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 1.26 billion in fiscal 2013. In
fiscal 2012, the provision for investments of ¥ 4.13 billion was primarily due to permanent diminution
recognised on certain investments.

The provision coverage ratio at March 31, 2013 computed as per the RBI guidelines was 76.8%.

Additional general provision of ¥ 1.44 billion was made on standard assets during fiscal 2013 reflecting an
increase in the loan portfolio. We held a cumulative general provision of ¥ 16.24 billion at March 31, 2013
compared to the general provision of ¥ 14.80 billion held at March 31, 2012.

Tax expense

The income tax expense (including wealth tax) increased by 31.4% from X 23.38 billion in fiscal 2012 to
% 30.71 billion in fiscal 2013 reflecting an increase in profit before tax and higher effective tax rate of
26.9% in fiscal 2013 compared to 26.6% in fiscal 2012.
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Financial condition
Assets

The following table sets forth, at the dates indicated, the principal components of assets.
T in billion, except percentages

Cash and bank balances 3 362.29 3414.18 14.3%

Total assets 34,890.69 35,367.95 9.8%

1. Banks in India are required to maintain a specified percentage, currently 23.0%, of their net demand and time
liabilities by way of liquid assets like cash, gold or approved unencumbered securities.

2. Investments made in Rural Infrastructure Development Fund and other such entities pursuant to shortfall in the
amount required to be lent to certain specified sectors called priority sector as per RBI guidelines.

3. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest X 10.0 million.

Total assets increased by 9.8% from X 4,890.69 billion at March 31, 2012 to X 5,367.95 billion at March
31, 2013, primarily due to an increase in advances and investments. Net advances increased by 14.4%
from X 2,537.28 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 2,902.49 billion at March 31, 2013. Investments increased
by 7.4% from X 1,595.60 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 1,713.94 billion at March 31, 2013.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and balances with RBI and other banks, including money
at call and short notice. Cash and cash equivalents increased from ¥ 362.29 billion at March 31, 2012 to
3 414.18 billion at March 31, 2013. The increase was primarily due to an increase in term and call money
lending. The balances with RBI decreased from X 157.92 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 143.75 billion at
March 31, 2013 primarily due to reduction in CRR.

Investments

Total investments increased by 7.4% from X 1,595.60 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 1,713.94 billion
at March 31, 2013, primarily due to an increase in investment in government securities by I 54.28
billion, Rural Infrastructure Development Fund and other related investments (pursuant to shortfall in
achievement of directed lending requirements) by I 20.96 billion, pass through certificates by ¥ 35.20
billion and commercial paper and certificates of deposit by I 34.87 billion. The investment in mutual
funds decreased by X 21.54 billion and corporate bonds and debentures decreased by X 20.36 billion
during fiscal 2013. At March 31, 2013, we had an outstanding net investment of ¥ 11.47 billion in security
receipts issued by asset reconstruction companies in relation to sale of non-performing loans compared
to ¥ 18.32 billion at March 31, 2012. At March 31, 2013, we had notional non-funded credit derivatives
outstanding of ¥ 3.07 billion compared to ¥ 10.25 billion at March 31, 2012. We had no funded credit
derivatives outstanding at March 31, 2013.

Advances

Net advances increased by 14.4% from ¥ 2,537.28 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 2,902.49 billion at March
31, 2013 primarily due to increase in the domestic corporate and retail loan book. Net retail advances
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increased by 11.4% from X 963.63 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 1,073.59 billion at March 31, 2013. Net
advances of overseas branches (including offshore banking unit) decreased in USD terms by 0.7% from
US$ 13.6 billion at March 31, 2012 to US$ 13.5 billion at March 31, 2013. In rupee terms, net advances of
overseas branches (including offshore banking unit) increased by 5.7% from X 694.03 billion at March 31,
2012 to ¥ 733.57 billion at March 31, 2013.

Fixed and other assets

Net fixed assets increased marginally from ¥ 46.15 billion at March 31, 2012 to X 46.47 billion at March
31, 2013. Other assets decreased by 16.7% from X 349.37 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 290.87 billion at
March 31, 2018.

At March 31, 2013, we have presented mark-to-market on forex and derivatives trading transactions
(including revaluation on outstanding funding swaps) and interest accrual on hedge swaps on gross basis.
Accordingly, the gross positive mark-to-market amounting to ¥ 113.24 billion has been included in Other
assets at March 31, 2013. Consequent to the change, Other assets have increased by ¥ 154.22 billion at
March 31, 2012. This was previously presented on a net basis and the net positive mark-to-market was
recorded in ‘Other Assets’ and the net negative mark-to-market was recorded in ‘Other Liabilities'.

Liabilities
The following table sets forth, at the dates indicated, the principal components of liabilities (including
capital and reserves).

T in billion, except percentages

Borrowings (excluding subordinated debt and
preference share capital)

- Domestic

- Overseas branches

Subordinated debt (included in Tier-1 and
Tier-2 capital)’

Total liabilities 34,890.69 35,367.95 9.8%

1. Included in Schedule 4 - “Borrowings” of the balance sheet.
2. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest X 10.0 million.

Total liabilities (including capital and reserves) increased by 9.8% from 3 4,890.69 billion at March 31,2012 to
% 5,367.95 billion at March 31, 2013, primarily due to an increase in borrowings and deposits. Deposits
increased by 14.5% from X 2,5655.00 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 2,926.14 billion at March 31, 2013.
Borrowings increased from ¥ 1,401.65 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 1,453.41 billion at March 31, 2013.

Deposits

Deposits increased by 14.5% from ¥ 2,555.00 billion at March 31, 2012 to X 2,926.14 billion at March 31,
2013. Term deposits increased from X 1,444.81 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 1,700.37 billion at March
31, 2013, while savings deposits increased from X 760.46 billion at March 31, 2012 to X 856.51 billion
at March 31, 2013 and current deposits increased from ¥ 349.73 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 369.26
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billion at March 31, 2013. Total deposits at March 31, 2013 were 66.9% of the funding (i.e. deposits and
borrowings, other than preference share capital). The current and savings account deposits increased
from X 1,110.19 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 1,225.77 billion at March 31, 2013.

Borrowings (including subordinated debt and preference share capital)

Borrowings increased by 3.7% from ¥ 1,401.65 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 1,453.41 billion at March
31, 2013. The borrowings of overseas branches (including offshore banking unit) decreased in USD terms
by 5.4% from US$ 13.0 billion at March 31, 2012 to US$ 12.3 billion at March 31, 2013. In rupee terms,
borrowings of overseas branches (including offshore banking unit) increased by 0.7% from I 663.91
billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 668.72 billion at March 31, 2013. The capital-eligible borrowings, other than
preference share capital, increased from ¥ 376.15 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 396.62 billion at March
31, 2013.

Equity share capital and reserves

Equity share capital and reserves increased from X 604.05 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 667.06 billion at
March 31, 2013 primarily due to annual accretion to reserves out of profit.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities decreased from ¥ 329.99 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 321.34 billion at March 31, 2013.
At March 31, 2013, we have presented mark-to-market on forex and derivatives trading transactions
(including revaluation on outstanding funding swaps) and interest accrual on hedge swaps on gross
basis. Accordingly, the gross negative mark-to-market amounting to X 108.26 billion has been included in
Other liabilities at March 31, 2013. Consequent to the change, Other liabilities have increased by I 154.22
billion at March 31, 2012.

Off balance sheet items, commitments and contingencies
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the principal components of contingent liabilities.

< in billion

Assets | AtMarch 31, 2012 At March 31,2013

Claims against the Bank, not acknowledged as debts 3 29.31 3 36.37
L|a b|||tyforpart Iypa|d|nvestmen ts ............................................................................................. O 1 e o
Not|ona|pr|nc|pa|amountofoutstandmgforward ................................................................................

exchange contracts 3,560.05 2,838.50
Cuarantees g o bebal af sonstiuents T g
Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations ] 56886 ... 621.18
Notional principal amount of currency swaps . ......81840 . 565.47

Notional principal amount of interest rate swaps and currency

options and interest rate futures 3,362.01 2,855.94
Othemtemsf orvvh|chtheBank|scon tmgentlyha ble .................................................... 6288 ............ sa
Tota|?915465 ............ S5 500 86

We enter into foreign exchange forwards, options, swaps and other derivative products to enable customers
to transfer, modify or reduce their foreign exchange and interest rate risk and to manage our own interest
rate and foreign exchange positions. We manage our foreign exchange and interest rate risk with reference
to limits set by RBIl as well as those set internally. An interest rate swap does not entail exchange of notional
principal and the cash flow arises on account of the difference between interest rate pay and receive legs
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of the swaps which is generally much smaller than the notional principal of the swap. With respect to the
transactions entered into with customers, we generally enter into off-setting transactions in the inter-bank
market. This results in generation of a higher number of outstanding transactions and hence a large value
of gross notional principal of the portfolio, while the net market risk is low. For example, if a transaction
entered into with a customer is covered by an exactly opposite transaction entered into with counter-party,
the net market risk of the two transactions will be zero whereas the notional principal which is reflected as
an off-balance sheet item will be the sum of both the transactions.

As a part of project financing and commercial banking activities, we have issued guarantees to support
regular business activities of clients. These generally represent irrevocable assurances that we will make
payments in the event that the customer fails to fulfill its financial or performance obligations. Financial
guarantees are obligations to pay a third party beneficiary where a customer fails to make payment
towards a specified financial obligation. Performance guarantees are obligations to pay a third party
beneficiary where a customer fails to perform a non-financial contractual obligation. The guarantees are
generally for a period not exceeding ten years. The credit risks associated with these products, as well
as the operating risks, are similar to those relating to other types of financial instruments. Cash margins
available to us to reimburse losses realised under guarantees amounted to ¥ 44.29 billion at March 31,
2013 and ¥ 31.63 billion at March 31, 2012. Other property or security may also be available to us to cover
losses under guarantees.

Claims against the Bank, not acknowledged as debts represents demands made in certain tax and legal
matters against the Bank in the normal course of business. In accordance with our accounting policy and
Accounting Standard 29, we have reviewed and classified these items as possible obligation based on
legal opinion/judicial precedents/assessment by the Bank. No provision in excess of provisions already
made in the financial statements is considered necessary.

We are obligated under a number of capital contracts. Capital contracts are job orders of a capital nature,
which have been committed. Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account in domestic operations aggregated to X 3.55 billion at March 31, 2013 compared to ¥ 4.33 billion
at March 31, 2012.

Capital resources

We actively manage our capital to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs
considering the risks in our businesses, expectations of rating agencies, shareholders and investors and
the available options for raising capital. Our capital management framework is administered by the Finance
Group and the Risk Management Group under the supervision of the Board and the Risk Committee. The
capital adequacy position and assessment is reported to the Board and the Risk Committee periodically.

Regulatory capital

We are subject to the Basel Il capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by RBI with effect from March 31,
2008. RBI guidelines on Basel Il require us to maintain a minimum capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of
9.0% and a minimum Tier-1 capital adequacy ratio of 6.0% on an ongoing basis. Under Pillar 1 of the RBI
guidelines on Basel Il, we follow the Standardised approach for measurement of credit and market risks
and Basic Indicator approach for measurement of operational risk.
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The following table sets forth, at the dates indicated, the capital adequacy ratios computed in accordance
with the RBI guidelines on Basel Il.
Zin billion, except percentages

At March 31, 2012 | At March 31, 2013

Tier-1 capital ¥505.18 3 565.62
T|er2cap|ta| ......................................................................................................................................... 2 3295 ............ s
Totalcap|ta|73813 ............ P
Cred|tR|sk—R|skWe|ghtedAssets(RWA)346874 ............ S804 69
l\/larketR|sk—RWA ....................................................................................................................... 2 6866 ............ e
Operat|ona|R|sk—RWA ............................................................................................................. 2 4846 ............ e
TotaIRWA?398586 ............ iAo
Total capital adequacyratio . 852%  1874%
er-1 capital adeqUacy a0 e OB 12.80%

Tier-2 capital adequacy ratio 5.94%

Movement in our capital funds and risk weighted assets from March 31, 2012 to March 31, 2013

During fiscal 2013, capital funds (net of deductions) increased by ¥ 90.23 billion from ¥ 738.13 billion
at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 828.36 billion at March 31, 2013. The increase in the capital funds was due
to accretion to retained earnings, issuance of lower Tier-2 capital instruments, lower deduction from
capital funds on account of securitisation exposures and repatriation of capital from an overseas banking
subsidiary.

Credit risk RWA increased by X 426.08 billion from X 3,468.74 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 3,894.82 billion
at March 31, 2013 primarily due to increase of ¥ 369.53 billion in RWA for on-balance sheet exposures,
offset, in part, by decrease of ¥ 56.55 billion in RWA for off-balance sheet credit exposures.

Market risk RWA decreased by X 13.98 billion from ¥ 268.66 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 254.68 billion
at March 31, 2013. The general market risk RWA decreased by X 11.44 billion (capital charge of ¥ 1.03
billion).

The operational risk RWA at March 31, 2013 was X 269.94 billion (capital charge of ¥ 24.29 billion). The
operational risk capital charge is computed based on 15% of average of previous three financial years'
gross income and is revised on an annual basis at June 30.

Internal assessment of capital

Our capital management framework includes a comprehensive internal capital adequacy assessment
process conducted annually, which determines the adequate level of capitalisation necessary to meet
regulatory norms and current and future business needs, including under stress scenarios. The internal
capital adequacy assessment process is formulated at both standalone bank level and the consolidated
group level. The internal capital adequacy assessment process encompasses capital planning for a four
year time horizon, identification and measurement of material risks and the relationship between risk
and capital.

The capital management framework is complemented by the risk management framework, which includes

a comprehensive assessment of material risks. Stress testing, which is a key aspect of the internal capital
adequacy assessment process and the risk management framework, provides an insight on the impact
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of extreme but plausible scenarios on our risk profile and capital position. Based on our Board-approved
stress testing framework, we conduct stress tests on our various portfolios and assess the impact on our
capital ratios and the adequacy of capital buffers for current and future periods. We periodically assess and
refine our stress tests in an effort to ensure that the stress scenarios capture material risks as well as reflect
possible extreme market moves that could arise as a result of market conditions. The business and capital
plans and the stress testing results of the group entities are integrated into the internal capital adequacy
assessment process.

Based on the internal capital adequacy assessment process, we determine the level of capital that needs
to be maintained by considering the following in an integrated manner:

® strategic focus, business plan and growth objectives;

® regulatory capital requirements as per the RBI guidelines;

® assessment of material risks and impact of stress testing;

® perception of credit rating agencies, shareholders and investors;

* future strategy with regard to investments or divestments in subsidiaries; and

® evaluation of options to raise capital from domestic and overseas markets, as permitted by RBI from
time to time.

Basel Il

In order to strengthen the resilience of the banking sector to potential future shocks, together with
ensuring adequate liquidity in the banking system, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision issued
the Basel lll proposals in fiscal 2010. Following a consultation phase on these proposals, the final set of
Basel Ill rules were issued in fiscal 2011. The Basel Ill rules on capital consist of measures on improving
the quality, consistency and transparency of capital, enhancing risk coverage, introducing a supplementary
leverage ratio, reducing pro-cyclicality and promoting countercyclical buffers, and addressing systemic
risk and interconnectedness.

During fiscal 2013, RBl issued the final guidelines on the Basel lll capital regulations. The implementation
of this framework would commence from April 1, 2013 in a phased manner through till March 31, 2018.

In May 2012, RBI lowered the minimum leverage ratio requirement from 5.0% to 4.5%.

In January 2013, RBI issued the draft guidelines on the composition of capital disclosure requirements,
in addition to the existing Pillar 3 guidance. Along with this, RBI prescribed different treatments for
capitalisation of bank’s exposures to qualifying and non qualifying central counter-parties on account of
derivatives and securities financing transactions.

RBI, through its circular in March 2013, deferred the introduction of credit value adjustment risk capital
charge for over the counter derivatives. Credit value adjustment captures risk of mark-to-market losses
due to deterioration in the credit worthiness of counterparty. Credit value adjustment risk capital charges
would become effective from January 1, 2014.

We continue to monitor further developments and believe that our current robust capital adequacy

position and demonstrated track record of access to domestic and overseas markets for capital raising
will enable us to adapt to the Basel lll framework.
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ASSET QUALITY AND COMPOSITION
Loan concentration

We follow a policy of portfolio diversification and evaluate our total financing in a particular sector in light
of our forecasts of growth and profitability for that sector.

Our Credit Risk Management Group monitors all major sectors of the economy and specifically tracks
sectors in which we have loans outstanding. We seek to respond to any economic weakness in an
industrial segment by restricting new exposures to that segment and any growth in an industrial segment
by increasing new exposures to that segment, resulting in active portfolio management.

The following tables set forth, at the dates indicated, the composition of our gross advances (net of
write-offs).

T in billion, except percentages

March 31, 2012
Total % of total Total % of total
advances advances advances advances

Retail finance?! % 1,028.71 39.3% 21,124.11 37.7%

Road, ports, telecom, urban development
and other infrastructure 181.66 6.9 216.91 7.3

Services — finance

Crude petroleum/refining and

petrochemicals 70.68 2.7 88.64 3.0

I\/Immg .................................................................................................... 8 402 ........................... 32 ...................... 8 073 .......................... 27
ConstrucUon ....................................................................................... 5748 ........................... 22 ...................... 7 051 .......................... 24
Foodandbeverages ....................................................................... 6 571 ........................... 25 ...................... 6 95223
Cement .................................................................................................. 3 97515 ...................... 6 66422
Electromcsandengmeermg ...................................................... 5580 ........................... 21 ...................... 6 62722
Wholesale/retantrade ................................................................... 4 62918 ...................... 5 575 .......................... 1 9
Sh|ppmg ................................................................................................ 4 23516 ...................... 4 510 .......................... 1 5
Metal&prOductS(eXdUdeIron&stee” ........................... 4 80518 ...................... 4 405 .......................... 1 5
Chem|ca|andfert|||zers ................................................................ 3 42613 ...................... 3 710 .......................... 1 2
Other|ndustr|e52 ........................................................................... 25937 ........................... 99 ................... 30775 ....................... 103
Total ............................................................................................. ?2,62076 ................ 1000% ........... ?2,98416 ................ 1 000%

1. Includes home loans, commercial business loans, automobile loans, business banking, credit cards, personal
loans, rural loans, loans against securities and dealer financing portfolio.

2. Otherindustries primarily include developer financing portfolio, automobiles, manufacturing products (excluding
metal), textile, drugs and pharmaceuticals, gems and jewellery and FMCG.

3. From March 31, 2013, we have changed the classification of the domestic loan portfolio to better reflect the
nature of the underlying loans. Accordingly, our loan portfolio at March 31, 2012 is also reclassified.
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The following table sets forth, at the dates indicated, the composition of our gross (net of write-offs)
outstanding retail finance portfolio.
% in billion, except percentages

Total retail % of Total retail % of

advances total retail advances total retail
advances advances

Home loans % 489.40 47.6% ¥ 578.63 51.5%

Total retail finance portfolio 31,028.71 . 31,124.11

1. Include dealer financing portfolio and rural loans.
2. From March 31, 2013, we have changed the classification of the domestic loan portfolio to better reflect the
nature of the underlying loans. Accordingly, our loan portfolio at March 31, 2012 is also reclassified.

There was a healthy growth in our organic retail loan portfolio during fiscal 2013. Our retail loan portfolio,
excluding buyouts and inter-bank participation certificates, grew by 25.6% during the year.

Directed lending

RBI requires banks to lend to certain sectors of the economy. Such directed lending comprises priority
sector lending and export credit.

RBI guideline on priority sector lending requires the banks to lend 40.0% of their adjusted net bank credit
(ANBC) to certain activities carried out by the specified borrowers. The definition of ANBC includes certain
investments and is computed with reference to the respective amounts at March 31 of the previous year.
Priority sector includes lending to agricultural sector, food and agri-based industries, small enterprises/
businesses, housing finance up to certain limits and lending to borrowers belonging to weaker sections.
Out of the 40.0%, banks are required to lend a minimum of 18.0% of their ANBC to the agriculture sector
and the balance to certain specified sectors. The banks are also required to lend 10.0% of their ANBC to
the weaker sections.

We are required to comply with the priority sector lending requirements prescribed by RBI from time to
time. The shortfall in the amount required to be lent to the priority sectors and weaker sections may be
required to be deposited with government sponsored Indian development banks like the National Bank
for Agriculture and Rural Development, the Small Industries Development Bank of India and the National
Housing Bank based on the allocations made by RBI. These deposits have a maturity of up to seven years
and carry interest rates lower than market rates. At March 31, 2013, our total investment in such bonds
was X 201.98 billion.

At March 31, 2013, our priority sector lending was ¥ 674.88 billion, constituting about 87.5% of our
requirements. At that date, the qualifying agriculture loans were X 191.86 billion constituting about 55.3%
of our requirements. Our advances to weaker sections were % 48.63 billion constituting about 25.2% of
our requirements.
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Classification of loans

We classify our assets as performing and non-performing in accordance with the RBI guidelines. Under
the RBI guidelines, an asset is classified as non-performing if any amount of interest or principal remains
overdue for more than 90 days, in respect of term loans. In respect of overdraft or cash credit, an asset
is classified as non-performing if the account remains out of order for a period of 90 days and in respect
of bills, if the account remains overdue for more than 90 days.

RBI has separate guidelines for restructured loans. A fully secured standard asset can be restructured by
re-schedulement of principal repayments and/or the interest element, but must be separately disclosed as
a restructured asset. The diminution in the fair value of the loan, if any, measured in present value terms,
is either written off or a provision is made to the extent of the diminution involved. Similar guidelines
apply to sub-standard loans.

The following table sets forth, at the dates indicated, information regarding the asset classification of our
gross non-performing assets (net of write-offs, interest suspense and derivative income reversals).
T in billion

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013

Non-performing assets

Sub-standard assets 14.49 18.72
Doubtfulassets ............................................................................................................................... 73356791
Lossassets ........................................................................................................................................... 779 ..................................... 984
Totalnonperform|ngassets1?9563?9647

1. Include advances, lease receivables and credit substitutes like debentures and bonds. Exclude preference shares.

The following table sets forth, at the dates indicated, information regarding our non-performing
assets (NPAs).
< in billion, except percentages

Year ended Gross NPA! Net NPA | Net customer| % of net NPA to net

assets customer assets?

March 31, 2011 101.14 3 24.58 32,628.16 0.94%
I\/Iarch312012 ................................................... ? 9563 .................. ?1894 .............. ?305984 ...................................... 062% .
M amh 31 2013 ................................................... ? 9647 .................. ?2234 .............. ?351762 ...................................... 064% .

1. Net of write-offs, interest suspense and derivatives income reversal.
2. Include advances, lease receivables and credit substitutes like debentures and bonds. Exclude preference shares.
3. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest ¥ 10.0 million.

At March 31, 2013, the gross NPAs (net of write-offs, interest suspense and derivatives income reversal)
were X 96.47 billion compared to ¥ 95.63 billion at March 31, 2012. Net NPAs were X 22.34 billion at March
31, 2013 compared to T 18.94 billion at March 31, 2012. The ratio of net NPAs to net customer assets
increased marginally from 0.62% at March 31, 2012 to 0.64% at March 31, 2013. During fiscal 2013, we
wrote-off NPAs, including retail NPAs, with an aggregate outstanding of ¥ 16.46 billion compared to ¥ 11.83
billion during fiscal 2012.

Our provision coverage ratio (i.e. total provisions made against NPAs as a percentage of gross NPAs) at

March 31, 2013 was 76.8%. At March 31, 2013, total general provision held against standard assets was
% 16.24 billion compared to ¥ 14.80 billion at March 31, 2012,
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The following table sets forth, at March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013, the composition of gross non-
performing assets by industry sector.

% in billion, except percentages
March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013

___Amount| %] Amount]

Retail finance' X76.73 80.2% 358.14 60.3%

Road, ports, telecom, urban development
and other infrastructure

Services — non-finance

Crude petroleum/refining and

petrochemicals
I\/||n|ngOOO ........................... 00020 ......................... 02
Construct|on089 ........................... 09224 ......................... 23
Foodandbeverages ........................................................................ 15416 ......................... : 94 ......................... 20
Cement ...............................
Electromcsandengmeermg ........................................................ 18119259 ......................... 5o
Wholesale/retaﬂtrade ..................................................................... 11512416 ......................... 43
Sh|pp|ng045 ........................... 05038 ......................... 04
Metal&products(excludmg|ron8steel) ............................ e ; 06 .......................... s
Chem|ca|andfert|l|zers ................................................................. 15216 ......................... ; 33 ........................... o
Other|ndustr|esz886 .......................... 93 ...................... 1340 ....................... 139
Total .................................................................................................. ?9563 ................. 1000% .................. ?96471000%

1. Includes home loans, commercial business loans, automobile loans, business banking, credit cards, personal
loans, rural loans, loans against securities and dealer financing portfolio.

2. Otherindustries primarily include developer financing portfolio, automobiles, manufacturing products (excluding
metal), textile, drugs and pharmaceuticals, gems and jewellery and FMCG.

3. From March 31, 2013, we have changed the classification of the domestic loan portfolio to better reflect the
nature of the underlying loans. Accordingly, our loan portfolio at March 31, 2012 has also been reclassified.

At March 31, 2013, the net non-performing loans in the retail portfolio were 0.72% of net retail loans as
compared with 1.22% at March 31, 2012. The decrease in the ratio was primarily on account of sharp
decline in accretion to retail NPAs.

Our aggregate investments in security receipts issued by asset reconstruction companies were X 11.47
billion at March 31, 2013 as compared to X 18.32 billion at March 31, 2012.

RBI has issued guidelines revising the format of disclosures on restructured loans. The revised format

requires banks to disclose the movement of the borrower level outstanding of borrowers whose
loans were restructured. During fiscal 2013, standard loans of ¥ 16.78 billion of 23 borrowers were
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restructured as compared to ¥ 35.95 billion of 28 borrowers during fiscal 2012. Net principal outstanding
of standard restructured borrowers increased from % 45.54 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 53.15 billion at
March 31, 2013.

Segment information

RBI in its guidelines on “segmental reporting” has stipulated specified business segments and their
definitions, for the purposes of public disclosures on business information for banks in India.

The standalone segmental report for fiscal 2013, based on the segments identified and defined by RBI,
has been presented as follows:

® Retail Banking includes exposures of the Bank, which satisfy the four qualifying criteria of ‘regulatory
retail portfolio” as stipulated by the RBI guidelines on the Basel Il framework.

® Wholesale Banking includes all advances to trusts, partnership firms, companies and statutory bodies,
by the Bank which are not included in the Retail Banking segment, as per the RBI guidelines for the
Bank.

® Treasury includes the entire investment portfolio of the Bank.

® Other Banking includes leasing operations and other items not attributable to any particular business
segment of the Bank.

Framework for transfer pricing
All liabilities are transfer priced to a central treasury unit, which pools all funds and lends to the business

units at appropriate rates based on the relevant maturity of assets being funded after adjusting for
regulatory reserve requirement and directed lending requirements.

Retail banking segment
The profit before tax of the retail banking segment increased from X 5.50 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 9.565

billion in fiscal 2013 primarily due to write-back/lower provisions for loan losses in the retail asset portfolio
and increase in non-interest income offset, in part, by increase in non-interest expenses.

Net interest income increased by 10.3% from ¥ 38.15 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 42.09 billion in fiscal 2013
primarily due to increase in average current account and savings account deposits of the retail banking
segment.

Non-interest income increased by 18.1% from ¥ 25.76 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 30.42 billion in fiscal 2013,
primarily due to higher level of foreign exchange and transaction banking fees, third party referral fees,
and fees from the credit card portfolio.

Non-interest expenses increased by 11.9% from I 56.52 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 63.22 billion in fiscal
2013, primarily due to increase in employee expenses, expansion in branch network offset, in part, by
reduction in collection expenses.

In fiscal 2013, there was write-back of ¥ 0.24 billion compared to provisions of ¥ 1.88 billion in fiscal 2012
primarily due to write-back/lower provisions for loan losses in the retail asset portfolio.

Wholesale banking segment

Profit before tax of the wholesale banking segment increased from ¥ 62.07 billion in fiscal 2012 to
3 66.19 billion in fiscal 2013 primarily due to increase in net interest income offset, in part, by increase in
provisions and decrease in non-interest income.
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Net interest income increased by 38.7% from ¥ 49.37 billion in fiscal 2012 to X 68.46 billion in fiscal 2013
primarily driven by loan growth in the wholesale banking segment. Non-interest income decreased by
6.8% from X 41.01 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 38.22 billion in fiscal 2013, primarily due to moderation in
lending linked fee income offset, in part, by increase in foreign exchange and transaction banking related
fees from corporate clients. Provisions were higher primarily due to higher non-performing loans and the
impact of restructuring of loans during the year.

Treasury segment

Profit before tax of the treasury segment increased from ¥ 20.81 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 36.54 billion
in fiscal 2013 primarily due to increase in non-interest income offset, in part, by increase in non-interest
expenses. The non-interest income was higher primarily due to higher level of dividend income from
subsidiaries, realised gain on government securities portfolio and other fixed income positions and
foreign exchange trading gains.

Other banking segment

Profit before tax of other banking segment in fiscal 2013 was X 1.69 billion compared to a loss of ¥ 0.35
billion in fiscal 2012 primarily due to higher interest on income-tax refunds.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS AS PER INDIAN GAAP

The consolidated profit after tax including the results of operations of our subsidiaries and other
consolidating entities increased by 25.7% from ¥ 76.43 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 96.04 billion in fiscal
2013 primarily due to increase in the profit of ICICI Bank and profit of ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company Limited (ICICI General). In fiscal 2012, ICICI General had a loss of ¥ 4.16 billion due to the impact
of additional provision for Indian Motor Third Party Pool (the Pool) losses. The consolidated return on
average equity increased from 13.00% in fiscal 2012 to 14.66% in fiscal 2013.

Profit after tax of ICICI Life increased from ¥ 13.84 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 14.96 billion in fiscal 2013 due
to increase in investment income and lower operating expenses as well as the continued income stream
from business sold in prior years. Investment income increased primarily due to increase in average
non-linked assets under management and higher yields on debt portfolio. The increase was offset, in
part, by increase in claims and benefits paid and commission expenses. New business annual premium
equivalent increased by 13.3% from ¥ 31.18 billion during fiscal 2012 to ¥ 35.32 billion during fiscal 2013.

ICICI General made profit after tax of ¥ 3.06 billion in fiscal 2013 compared to loss of 3 4.16 billion in fiscal
2012 primary due to the impact of additional provision of the Pool losses during fiscal 2012 and due to
higher premium income, investment income and commission income during fiscal 2013. In accordance
with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority guidelines, ICICI General, together with all other
general insurance companies participated in the Pool, administered by the General Insurance Corporation
of India covering third party risks of commercial vehicles, from April 1, 2007. As per Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority direction effective March 31, 2012, the Pool was dismantled on a clean cut
basis and general insurance companies were required to recognise the Pool liabilities as per loss ratios
estimated by GAD UK with the option to recognise the same over a three year period. ICIC| General had
decided to recognise the additional liabilities of the Pool during fiscal 2012 and therefore, the loss of ICICI
General of X 4.16 billion for fiscal 2012 included impact of additional Pool losses of ¥ 6.85 billion. During
fiscal 2013, the Appointed Actuary carried out re-assessment of liabilities relating to policies underwritten
by ICICI General for risks commencing from fiscal 2008 to fiscal 2012. Based on the re-assessment, ICICI
General has recognised additional provision of ¥ 1.02 billion for fiscal 2013.

Profit after tax of ICICI Bank Canada increased from ¥ 1.66 billion (CAD 34.4 million) in fiscal 2012 to
% 2.37 billion (CAD 43.6 million) in fiscal 2013 primarily due to increase in net interest income and lower
provisions. The increase in net interest income was due to increase in net interest margin.
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Profit after tax of ICICI Bank UK PLC decreased from X 1.22 billion (USD 25.4 million) in fiscal 2012 to
% 0.78 billion (USD 14.4 million) in fiscal 2013 primarily due to decrease in net interest income and higher
provisions offset, in part, by higher mark-to-market gains on derivatives in fiscal 2013 and decrease in
realised loss on sale of investments. The decrease in net interest income was on account of decline in
average volume of interest-earning assets.

Profit after tax of ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company increased from X 0.21 billion in fiscal 2012 to
% 0.33 billion in fiscal 2013.

Profit after tax of ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited increased from X 0.86 billion in fiscal 2012 to
T 1.22 billion in fiscal 2013 due to increase in trading gains. Trading gains increased in fiscal 2013 on
account of higher trading opportunities as yield on 10-year government securities declined in fiscal 2013
compared to an increase during fiscal 2012.

Profit after tax of ICICI Securities Limited decreased from X 0.77 billion in fiscal 2012 to ¥ 0.64 billion in
fiscal 2013 primarily due to increase in staff cost and administrative expenses offset, in part, by increase
in net interest income.

Profit after tax of ICICI Home Finance Company Limited decreased from ¥ 2.60 billion in fiscal 2012
to ¥ 2.20 billion in fiscal 2013 primarily due to decrease in net interest income offset, in part, by lower
provision on loans.

Profit after tax of ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company increased from X 0.88 billion in fiscal 2012
to ¥ 1.10 billion in fiscal 2013 primarily due to increase in fee income on account of increase in average
assets under management.

Profit after tax of ICICI Venture Funds Management Company Limited decreased from ¥ 0.68 billion in
fiscal 2012 to ¥ 0.20 billion in fiscal 2013 primarily due to decrease in management fees and decrease in
distribution of income from venture capital funds.

Consolidated assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries and other consolidating entities increased from
% 6,192.87 billion at March 31, 2012 to ¥ 6,748.22 billion at March 31, 2013 primarily due to increase
in assets of ICICI Bank, ICICI Life, ICICI Bank Canada and ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited.
Consolidated advances of the Bank and its subsidiaries increased from % 2,921.25 billion at March 31,
2012 to X 3,299.74 billion at March 31, 2013.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the profit/(loss) of our principal subsidiaries.
< in billion
Company Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2013
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited 1384 714.96
3.06

2.37

0.78

0.33

1.22

0.64

2.20

........ 1.10

ICICI Venture Funds Management Company Limited 30.68 20.20
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Key Financial Indicators:
Last Ten Years

Profit After Tax Dividend Per Share

% in billion kS
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For fiscal 2013, represents proposed dividend.
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T in billion, except per share data

| At year-end fiscal |
-_ | 2004 2005| 2006| 2007| 2008| 2009| 2010 2011| 2012| 2013]
Net interest 2185 2932 3907 5637 7304 8367 8114 90.17 107.34 138.66

Earnings per 2666 2755 3249 3484 3939 3376 3614 4527 56.11  72.20
share (Basic)

Earnings per 26.44  27.33 3215 3464 3915 3370 3699 4506 5595  71.93
share (Diluted)

rEeqSLgxe‘fp'tala 80.1 12550 222.06 243.13 46471 49533 516.18 55091 604.05 667.06

Total capital 104% 11.8% 13.4% 11.7% 14.0%' 155%' 19.4%' 195%' 185%' 18.7%'
adequacy ratio

1. Total capital adequacy ratio has been calculated as per Basel Il framework.
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independent auditors’ report

To the Members of ICICI Bank Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of ICICI Bank Limited (the ‘Bank’) as at 31 March 2013 and also the Statement of
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. Incorporated in the said financial statements are the returns of the Singapore, Bahrain, Hong Kong,
Dubai, Qatar, Sri Lanka and New York-USA branches of the Bank, audited by other auditors.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’)
read with guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India insofar as they are applicable to the Bank and in conformity with
Form A and B (revised) of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as applicable. This responsibility includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

St

5

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give
the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Act in the manner so required for banking companies,
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 March 2013;

(b) inthe case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

(c) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

7.
8.

10.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the provision of section 29 of the

Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with section 211 of the Act.

We report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory;

(b) In our opinion, the transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have been within its powers;

(c) The financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralised and therefore, accounting returns for the purpose of preparing
financial statements are not required to be submitted by the branches; we have visited 98 branches for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting Standards

referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act.

We further report that:

(a) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

(b) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(c) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2013, and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of
clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Other Matter

11.

We did not audit the financial statements of Singapore, Bahrain, Hong Kong, Dubai, Qatar, Sri Lanka and New York-USA branches,
whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 1,270,195 million as at 31 March 2013, the total revenue of Rs. 60,882 million
for the year ended 31 March 2013 and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 84,228 million for the year ended 31 March 2013. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors, duly qualified to act as auditors in the country of incorporation of the
said branches, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on the report of other auditors.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2013
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balance sheet

0ICICI Bank

at March 31, 2013

(X in ‘000s)

Schedule c .03.201.\3E 37.03.20;‘;
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Capital oo 1 11,536,362 11,527,683
Employees stock options outstanding ..........ceeeevciieeeeeiciiieieeeiins 44,835 23,854
Reserves and SUIPIUS ....eueiiieieiiiii i e ssassnaneees 2 655,478,392 592,500,885
DEPOSIES ...ttt s 3 2,926,136,257 2,654,999,561
BOITOWINGS ..ot 4 1,453,414,944 1,4017,649,073
Other liabilities and Provisions ..........cccvviiiiiien e 5 321,336,021 329,986,915
TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES .........ccooiiiiieeieeee e 5,367,946,811 4,890,687,971
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India .........cccccceeeeeeeenns 6 190,527,309 204,612,935
Balances with banks and money at call and short notice ........... 7 223,647,879 157,680,199
INVESTMENTS ..ot 8 1,713,935,993 1,695,600,430
AAVANCES ...ttt 9 2,902,494,351 2,537,276,579
FiXed @SSELS ...ccuviiiiiiiiiiii i 10 46,470,587 46,146,870
(01 [T gz 11 Y= £ 11 290,870,692 349,370,958
TOTAL ASSETS ... .ottt s 5,367,946,811 4,890,687,971
Contingent liabilitieS .......ocvveieiieiiiiee e 12 7,899,893,146 9,154,651,059
Bills fOr COllECTION ....cceeeeeeeeeeiecce e e e e 123,945,258 75,720,571
Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts ............... 17 & 18

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our Report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FOR S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP K. V. KAMATH SRIDAR IYENGAR CHANDA KOCHHAR
Firm’'s Registration no.: 301003E Chairman Director = Managing Director & CEO
Chartered Accountants

SHRAWAN JALAN N. S. KANNAN K. RAMKUMAR RAJIV SABHARWAL

Partner Executive Director & CFO Executive Director Executive Director

Membership no.:102102

SANDEEP BATRA
Group Compliance Officer &
Company Secretary

RAKESH JHA
Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2013
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profit and loss account

for the year ended March 31, 2013

. INCOME

Interest earned...........cccceuvnvnnnnens
Other iNCOMEe....uvvveeeeeeeeeeeeieiiinns
TOTAL INCOME .........................

Il. EXPENDITURE

Interest expended ..........cccueeenne.
Operating eXpenses ...................

Provisions and contingencies (refer note 18.35)..................

TOTAL EXPENDITURE ...............

lll. PROFIT/(LOSS)

Net profit for the year.................
Profit brought forward................
TOTAL PROFIT/(LOSS)..............

IV. APPROPRIATIONS/TRANSFERS

Transfer to Statutory Reserve....
Transfer to Reserve Fund...........
Transfer to Capital Reserve.........

Transfer to/(from) Investment Reserve Account..................
Transfer to Revenue and other reserves...........cccoeeccvvvvvnnes

Transfer to Special Reserve .......

Dividend (including corporate dividend tax) for the
previous year paid during the year ......cccccccoceviiiiiiee v,

Proposed equity share dividend

Proposed preference share dividend ..........ccccceeecivieeiinnnenn.

Corporate dividend tax .............

Balance carried over to balance

[ <1< AP

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts ................

Earnings per share (refer note 18.1)

BasiCc (3).ceeeeieiiiiiiieeiiiiiiiieeeeees
Diluted (%)..ccocveeereiiiriieeeeiireeeeeenns

Face value per share (3).....................

(X in “‘000s)

Schedule Year ended Year ended
u 31.03.2013 31.03.2012
13 400,755,969 335,426,522
14 83,457,012 75,027,598
484,212,981 410,454,120
15 262,091,848 228,084,964
16 90,128,837 78,504,433
48,737,569 39,212,151
400,958,254 345,801,548
83,254,727 64,652,572
70,542,323 50,181,837
153,797,050 114,834,409
20,820,000 16,170,000
27,775 10,665
330,000 380,000
— 3,154
7,600,000 6,500,000
2,491 4,284
23,072,271 19,020,400
35 35
2,921,604 2,203,548
99,022,874 70,542,323
153,797,050 114,834,409
17 & 18
72.20 56.11
71.93 55.95
10.00 70.00

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.

As per our Report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Firm’s Registration no.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

SHRAWAN JALAN
Partner
Membership no.: 102102

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2013

K. V. KAMATH
Chairman

N. S. KANNAN
Executive Director & CFO

SANDEEP BATRA
Group Compliance Officer &
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SRIDAR IYENGAR

CHANDA KOCHHAR

Director = Managing Director & CEO

K. RAMKUMAR
Executive Director

RAKESH JHA
Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

RAJIV SABHARWAL
Executive Director
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cash flow statement

€ 1c1C1 . Tor the vear ended March 31, 2013

(X in ‘000s)

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit DEfOre taXES ..veeii it
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortiSation .........c.eeeeeieiiiieei e
Net (appreciation)/depreciation on iNVeStMENtS........ccocceeriieeeiiee e
Provision in respect of non-performing assets .......cccccvcveeiiiieeiisiiiieeee s s
Prudential provision for standard aSSets........cccucueeeriieriiieeeiiee e
Provision for contingencies & others..........ccooceiiiiiiinicii,
Income from subsidiaries, joint ventures and consolidated entities ............
(Profit)/loss on sale of fiXed @SSELS ......cceuvuuueiiiiiiieiiiiiieeiereiieee e e e e e e eeeeeesesens
Employees stock options grants ...........ccocceeeeeiiiiiiien e

Adjustments for :

(Increase)/decrease in INVESTMENTS .....cccuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
(Increase)/decrease in @dVANCES .......ccccccuuiuiuiiiieiieieeeeeeeeeeeesesssarsssnrereeeeeeeaeas
Increase/(decrease) in dEPOSITS ..oeuveuueriiiiiiiiiee et
(Increase)/decrease in Other asSets........cccciuieiiiiiiieiieei e
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities and provisions ..........cccccceevcciieeeeiiinns

Refund/(payment) of dir€Ct taXes .....uueieiieiiiiiieiiiiiiie e
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities................cccoceveiviinennnnn.
Cash flow from investing activities

Investments in subsidiaries and/or joint ventures (including application money)
Income from subsidiaries, joint ventures and consolidated entities ............
Purchase of fiXed @SSEtS....ccuurirrrrirriieeesiie e e s e e e e e e ene e
Proceeds from sale of fiXed aSSEtS.....cccecerrirerriiieriniein e
(Purchase)/sale of held to maturity SECUNItieS .....cccevrererieerereiiieereeerreeee e e
Net cash used in investing activities ...........cccccovrriiiini e,
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital (including ESOPS)........cccecvrieinernnenn.
Net proceeds/(repayment) of DOrMOWINGS.....ceviieereeireriseereseeseseesesee e e e nnns
Dividend and dividend tax Paid.......cccceeereaemeerieereeeee e e
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities ............cc...cc.ccc.......
Effect of exchange fluctuation on translation reserve ............cccccocvriiiinnnns
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)+(D)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year..............ccccccrrunnneenn.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year' ............ccccccriiiiiiinicciieeenn.

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2013 31.03.2012

113,966,897 88,034,223

5,709,115 6,016,209

4,647,716 11,007,862

13,948,385 9,931,796

1,439,082 —

1,376,106 1,766,718

(9,416,200) (7,625,631)

(352,510) 16,876

20,981 20,925

131,339,572 109,168,978
(22,717,062) (127,636,008)
(380,239,011) (388,801,703)
371,136,697 298,978,483

12,992,477 (34,417,248)

30,496,358 11,638,969

11,669,459 (240,337,507)

(31,988,940) (21,211,450)

(A) 111,020,091 (152,379,979)
4,050,772 —

9,416,200 7,625,631

(5,883,595) (4,530,919)

1,241,898 90,174

(103,140,846) (125,986,553)

(B) (94,315,571) (122,801,667)
447,516 591,128

50,676,148 305,079,424

(21,226,474) (18,152,914)

(C) 29,897,190 287,517, 638
(D) 5,280,344 9,056,370
51,882,054 21,392,302

362,293,134 340,900,832
414,175,188 362,293,134

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts (refer schedule 17 & 18).

1. Refer item no. 15 in Schedule 17 Significant accounting policies.

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our Report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Firm’'s Registration no.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants
SHRAWAN JALAN

Partner
Membership no.: 102102

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2013
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K. V. KAMATH
Chairman

N. S. KANNAN
Executive Director & CFO

SANDEEP BATRA
Group Compliance Officer &
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SRIDAR IYENGAR
Director

K. RAMKUMAR
Executive Director

RAKESH JHA
Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

CHANDA KOCHHAR
Managing Director & CEO

RAJIV SABHARWAL
Executive Director



forming part of the Balance Sheet

(X in “‘000s)

SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL

Authorised capital
1,275,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each

(March 31, 2012: 1,275,000,000 equity shares of T 10 each) ........ccccceeeeeviieeeeeennns

15,000,000 shares of ¥ 100 each

(March 31, 2012: 15,000,000 shares of T 100 €aCh)" ......ccevvvrereiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeerenann,

350 preference shares of ¥ 10 million each

(March 31, 2012: 350 preference shares of ¥ 10 million each)? .......ccccccoccivieieeennns

Equity share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

1,152,714,442 equity shares of ¥ 10 each

(March 31, 2012: 1,151,772,372 equity Shares) ......cceviieiiuieeiiiiiiiien s seiieee e seineee e

Add: 867,273 equity shares of ¥ 10 each
(March 31, 2012: 942,070 equity shares) issued pursuant to exercise

Of eMPIOYEE STOCK OPTIONS ..uiviiiiiiie ettt e e e eenaeeean

Less: Calls UNPAIA ...c.eeiiieiiiiiiee ettt st a et e s s sa e e sbe e e s nnn e e sneeeenneean

Add: 111,603 equity shares of ¥ 10 each forfeited

(March 31, 2012: 111,603 eqUity SNAreS) .......uueeiieiurieeiiiiiiieeeessiiees e e ssssees e e sssneeesennnes
TOTAL CAPITAL ....ooveieiiiiieieeieeee et rer e e e e e e e e s eesesa s s sasassarasssseeeesaeasasesesasssssssnsnnnes

At At
31.03.2013 31.03.2012
12,750,000 12,750,000

1,500,000 1,500,000
3,500,000 3,500,000
11,527,144 11,517,723
8,673 9,421
11,535,817 11,527,144
(225) (231)

770 770
11,536,362 11,527,683

1. These shares will be of such class and with such rights, privileges, conditions or restrictions as may be determined by the Bank
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank and subject to the legislative provisions in force for the time being in

that behalf.

2. Pursuant to RBI circular no. DBOD.BPBC No0.81/21.01.002/2009-10, the issued and paid-up preference shares are grouped under

Schedule 4 - “Borrowings”.
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0 ICICI Bank forming part of the Balance Sheet (Contd.) (X in “000s)

At At
31.03.2013 31.03.2012
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
I.  Statutory reserve
OPEeNiNg DAIANCE .....eiiiiiii i 89,916,519 73,746,519
Additions dUring the YEar ........cceiiiiiiiei et e e sare e e e e nnees 20,820,000 16,170,000
Deductions during the YEar .......uueuiiiiiiiiiic i — —
(0 Lo T7 1 Te oY= =1 X = 0SSR 110,736,519 89,916,519
Il.  Special reserve
OPENING DAIANCE .ttt anae s 38,190,000 31,690,000
Additions dUring the YEar ......ccooicciiiiiiiiiiiei et 7,600,000 6,500,000
Deductions during the year ..........ccccoeeviiiiiiiini e — —
ClOSING DAIANCE ..ot 45,790,000 38,790,000
lll.  Securities premium
(01T a1 Yo [ o= - 1 Lo = SR 313,591,445 313,009,799
Additions during the Year ...t 438,837 581,646
Deductions during the YEar ........ueuiieieiiiii it e e — —
CloSING DAIANCE ..iiiiieiiii ittt 314,030,282 313,591,445
IV. Investment reserve account
Opening balancCe .........ccuviiiiiiii e — —
Additions during the Year ..........ccceiviiiiiiiiie e — —
Deductions during the year ...........cccoveviiiiniiinie e — —
(0 Lo Ty 1 Vel 0 Y=1 =1 X = TP — —
V.  Capital reserve
(©]0T=T 011 Yo o= - T Lo SR 21,842,500 21,462,500
Additions during the YEar? ...........cecceiiiceee e e e e e e e e e saeeeenes 330,000 380,000
Deductions during the YEar ........uuuiieiiiiiii et — —
CloSING DAIANCE ..o 22,172,500 21,842,500
VI.  Foreign currency translation reserve
OPENiNG DAIANCE .....eiiiiiii e e 8,545,620 (510,690)
Additions during the YEar .......cccceeccieiiiieiiiee e 5,280,344 9,056,310
Deductions during the YEar .......uuuueiiiiiiic et — —
(0 FoT1 1 Vol o Y=1 =1 X = 0SS 13,825,964 8,545,620
VIl. Reserve fund
OPENING DAIANCE .ttt e e e s nae e an 21,944 11,279
Additions during the YEar3 ...........uucciiicie i saaeeenes 27,775 10,665
Deductions during the Year .........ccccocveeiiiiiiiiin e — —
CloSING DAIANCE .o 49,719 21,944
VIIl. Revenue and other reserves
(©]01=T a1 Yo o= 1 - Lo = R 49,850,534 49,797,000
Additions dUring the YEar® ...t e e snnees — 53,534
Deductions during the YEar .........cuiiiiuiiiii ittt et e e — —
CloOSING DAIANCE ..iii ittt e sna s 49,850,534 49,850,534
IX. Balance in profit and 0SS @CCOUNT........ccviiiiiiiiie i 99,022,874 70,542,323
TOTAL RESERVES AND SURPLUS...........oooiiiiriee et ceeere e snne e 655,478,392 592,500,885
1.  Includes X 435.1 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 471.9 million) on exercise of employee stock options.
2. Includes appropriations made for profit on sale of investments in held-to-maturity category, net of taxes and transfer to Statutory
Reserve and profit on sale of land and buildings, net of taxes and transfer to Statutory Reserve.
3. Includes appropriations made to Reserve Fund and Investment Fund Account in accordance with regulations applicable to Sri Lanka
branch.
4. At March 31, 2012 includes:
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a) < 50.4 million transferred in terms of RBI circular no. DBOD.No.BPBC.26/21.04.048/2008-2009 dated July 30, 2008, on Agricultural
Debt Waiver and Debt Relief Scheme, 2008.

b) Outstanding unreconciled credit balance of individual value less than US$ 2,500 or equivalent lying in nostro accounts appropriated
in terms of RBI circular no. DBOD.BPBC.No. 133/21.04.018/2008-09 dated May 11, 2009.



forming part of the Balance Sheet (Contd.)

(X in ‘000s)

SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS

A. |. Demand deposits
() I 5 0 0 0 T o Y= 0 | N
L) 5 0 0 4 01 =1 =N
Il.  Savings bank dePOSITS......cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie s
lll. Term deposits
() I 5 0 0 0 T o Y= 0 1N
(L) 5 0 0 0 0 { =1 €= N
TOTAL DEPOSITS ..ottt e s e e s e et et s s e s e e e e e e e e easeseesesa s nnsnsnsssannneeaeaeanas

B. I. Deposits of branches in INdia.......cccoeeiuiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e
Il. Deposits of branches outside INdia.......ccceeeiiiiiiiiii i
TOTAL DEPOSITS ...ttt e ettt e s b e e e sae e e s enb e e ssn e e e aaneeennneesnees

SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS
I.  Borrowings in India
i)  Reserve Bank of INAia .....c.ceciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee e e s s e e e e e e e s e e e e s e e s nnnnnnns
L I @ g =Y g o 7= 1PN
iii) Other institutions and agencies
F ) I € 1o VZ=T 0 a1 0 0 =Y Ao i [ o L= TR
b)  Financial INSTItULIONS ..veeeieieiiiiic e r e e e e eeeeeeeeeaas
iv) Borrowings in the form of bonds and debentures
(excluding subordinated debt) ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiii e
v) Application Mmoney-bonds .........ccoocueiiiiiiiiii
vi) Capital instruments
a) Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI)
(qualifying as Tier | capital)......cceeeeeieieieeri i e
b) Hybrid debt capital instruments issued as bonds/debentures
(qualifying as upper Tier [l capital)......cccoeeeeieieeeiiiiiiie e
c) Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS)
(350 RNCPS of % 10 million each issued to preference share
holders of erstwhile ICICI Limited on amalgamation,

redeemable at par on April 20, 20718) .....ccveeeeiieeriiieeiiee e

d) Unsecured redeemable debentures/bonds
(subordinated debt included in Tier Il capital).....cc..cceeeieriiieeniiee e
TOTAL BORROWINGS IN INDIA ..ottt eiriee e sibre e s s s saabesssessnsseesssssnsssesessanses

Il. Borrowings outside India
i) Capital instruments
a) Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI)
(qualifying as Tier | capital)..........ccviiieiiiiieiiii e
b) Hybrid debt capital instruments issued as bonds/debentures
(qualifying as upper Tier Il capital)......ccccceeriiiiiiieiiie e
[T I = ToY T E-3=Ya o I g Lo (=X PPN
ii)) Other BOrroOWINGS ... ..uiiii i e s e naare e e e aaaas
TOTAL BORROWINGS OUTSIDE INDIA ...t s
TOTAL BORROWINGS .........oooiiiiiiiiiieeitiee ettt e et e s sseeeebeeesstessseeaesbeeessnseesnneesaseeesnnnessnes

At At

31.03.2013 31.03.2012
20,385,877 19,678,455
348,869,273 330,052,077
856,507,376 760,463,132
117,888,455 98,704,681
1,582,485,276 1,346,101,216
2,926,136,257 2,554,999,561
2,750,258,700 2,423,717,728
175,877,557 131,281,833
2,926,136,257 2,554,999,561
156,250,000 170,550,000
18,714,125 18,815,625
— 52,813
60,590,413 45,750,069
15,517,800 4,770,338
13,010,000 13,070,000
98,174,210 98,181,421
3,500,000 3,500,000
218,168,041 201,923,361
583,924,589 556,553,627
18,413,008 17,244,895
48,856,500 45,787,500
306,197,996 342,580,657
496,022,851 439,482,394
869,490,355 845,095,446
1,453,414,944 1,401,649,073

1. Includes borrowings guaranteed by Government of India for the equivalent of ¥ 15,815.0 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 16,538.1

million).

2.  Secured borrowings in | and Il above amount to Nil (March 31, 2012: Nil) except borrowings of ¥ 150,003.7 million (March 31, 2012:
% 169,667.4 million) under Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation, market repurchase transactions with banks and financial

institutions and transactions under Liquidity Adjustment Facility with RBI.
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"ICICI Bank

forming part of the Balance Sheet (Contd.)

(X in ‘000s)

At At
31.03.2013 371.03.2012
SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
l. Bills PAYADIE ...t 39,160,376 35,556,356
II.  Inter-office adjuStMeENtS (NET)......cciiiiiuiieiiiiiiiee e e e s e erae e e e e enes 1,347,187 3,076,441
PO o =Y == = ol od =T PSPPI 29,178,174 30,693,392
YA 10T o Vo [ YA o1 =Y o L o] PR 62,336,969 34,637,725
V. Provision for standard @SSets........cuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies e 16,235,086 14,796,004
Y4 R @ 1 =T SR 173,078,229 211,326,997
TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS. ... e nne e 321,336,021 329,986,915
1.  Includes:
a) Proposed dividend amounting to ¥ 23,072.3 million. (March 31, 2012: ¥ 19,020.4 million).
b) Corporate dividend tax payable amounting to ¥ 2,921.6 million. (March 31, 2012: ¥ 2,203.5 million).
2.  The Bank has presented the mark-to-market (MTM) gain or loss on forex and derivative transactions on gross basis. Accordingly, the

gross negative MTM amounting to X 108,263.2 million has been included in Other liabilities. Consequent to the change, Other liabilities
have increased by X 154,217.1 million at March 31, 2012.

SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

I.  Cash in hand (including foreign currency NOtES) ........ccccuvieeiiiiiiiieiiciiiieee e e
II. Balances with Reserve Bank of India in current accounts.............cccoccvuvvvvvreneeeeeennen.
TOTAL CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA .........cccocoiimmerreeeeeenes

SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE

F8

In India

i) Balances with banks

@) IN CUITENT BCCOUNTS ...uuuuureiirrieieieieeieeseeieiesiisassrsssssrereeeeseesessesesasasssassssssssneeeens

b) In other depoSit ACCOUNTS.....cciiiiiiiiie it

ii) Money at call and short notice
F ) A A 11 2 T 0 Y= 01
D) With Other INSTItULIONS ...u.iiiiiiiicicceeee e s e e e e e eeeeesaanaaas

46,774,823 46,696,165
143,752,486 157,916,770
190,527,309 204,612,935

3,462,734 2,828,505
36,008,368 36,822,361
53,000,000 5,087,500

— 4,568,688

92,471,102 49,307,054

19,249,648 23,470,339

87,128,213 35,029,254

24,798,916 49,873,652
131,176,777 108,373,145
223,647,879 157,680,199




forming part of the Balance Sheet (Contd.)

SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS
l.

Investments in India [net of provisions]

i)

i)
iii)
iv)
v)
Vi)

GOVEIrNMENT SECUNTIES wuvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirrre e e e e e e e s r e e e eeeeeeaeesanaans
Other apProved SECUNILIES ......uurieii ittt e e s
Shares (includes equity and preference shares) .........cccceeveeiciiieiiiicciiieee e,
Debentures and DONAS ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e s aannnrees
Subsidiaries and/or jOINt VENTUIES .......ccccviviiieiiiiee i s
Others (commercial paper, mutual fund units, pass through certificates,
security receipts, certificate of deposits, Rural Infrastructure Development
Fund deposits and other related iNVEStMENtS) .....c.cooccuveeiieiiiiieei i

LT A 1N E S TIVIE TN S 11 TN Ly e

Investments outside India [net of provisions]

i)
ii)

iiii)

GOVEINMENT SECUNTIES ..vvvereiieiirieeiiaiireeeeesiteeeseesisreeeseessnteeeeassansaeeessasssneeessensnnees
Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures abroad

(includes equity and preference shares) ........ccccoceeeeviiiiee i
Others (equity shares, bonds and certificate of deposits) .......ccccceevcvveeeeeinnneen.

TOTAL INVESTMENTS OUTSIDE INDIA ..........ccooiiiiii s
TOTAL INVESTIMENTS ... s

A.

Investments in India

Gross value of INVESTMENTS ......cciviiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e e e rsarsae e e s e e e eeaeeens
Less: Aggregate of provision/depreciation/(appreciation)........cccccccceeeeeiiiiiiieeeienns
L oY BTNV ZSY 1 0 0 1<) £ O
Investments outside India

Gross vValue of INVESTMENTS .uuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic it e e e s e e e e e e e e e e e eeannns
Less: Aggregate of provision/depreciation/(appreciation).........ccccocveerrieiiiieeniineenns
I L ANV Z=T=3 10 1= 0 €S
TOTAL INVESTIMIENTS ... ..ttt ceitreee e ettt e e s e s iare e e e s esasbeeeseesanbeeesessnnseessesansnensessnnsns

SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES [net of provisions]

A.

TOTAL ADVANCES
B.

i)
ii)

iii)

i)
ii)

iii)

Bills purchased and diSCOUNTEA ........cccceiuieiiiiiiiiieie e e e
Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayable on demand ............ccccceveeiinnennn.
Term loans

Secured by tangible assets (includes advances against book debts)...............
Covered by bank/government gUArantees ..........ccocveieeieeiiieieesie s

L T=T =TT U= PN

TOTAL ADVANCES ........ooiiiiiiiiiienie e s s b e e

<,

Advances in India

) 10 1 AV =T= T3 (o ] P
L) 8 o [ ToT=T=T] o N
L I == N
[V O 1 1= = N

TOTAL ADVANCES IN INDIA ...t s

Advances outside India

[ I B U= {0 0 a1 o =1 1 TN

ii) Due from others
a) Bills purchased and discounted ..........ccceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
b) Syndicated and term l0ans......cccccccuiiiiiiiiiiiie e
(03 TR0 11 1= TR

TOTAL ADVANCES OUTSIDE INDIA ..........coooiiiiie s
TOTAL ADVANCES ........oooiiiiiiiie i s e bbb s

(X in “000s)

At At
31.03.2013 31.03.2012
923,762,915 869,480,205
— 4,250

25,050,852 22,922,636
174,775,171 195,135,236
65,482,766 64,796,927
447,127,306 361,872,334
1,636,199,010 1,514,211,588
6,574,742 4,399,569
62,475,493 66,864,257
8,686,748 10,125,016
77,736,983 81,388,842
1,713,935,993 1,595,600,430
1,663,577,178 1,5639,777,243
27,378,168 25,565,655
1,636,199,010 1,514,211,588
77,981,759 81,826,347
244,776 437,505
77,736,983 81,388,842
1,713,935,993 1,595,600,430
61,532,333 48,693,815
451,092,674 334,851,948
2,389,869,344  2,153,730,816
2,902,494,351 2,537,276,579
2,471,296,382  2,138,141,465
22,221,201 13,869,020
408,976,768 385,266,094
2,902,494,351 2,537,276,579
597,940,480 592,856,433
13,438,496 11,968,345
187,857 154,618
1,557,357,190 1,238,268,015
2,168,924,023 1,843,247,411
18,107,068 22,280,480
17,437,061 5,098,400
680,864,553 647,151,172
17,161,646 19,499,116
733,570,328 694,029,168
2,902,494,351 2,537,276,579
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"ICICI Bank

forming part of the Balance Sheet (Contd.)

(X in ‘000s)

At At
31.03.2013 31.03.2012
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS
l. Premises
At cost at March 31 of preceding Year .....cc.ccocccueeviiiiiieeiieniieee e 38,625,073 37,997,195
Additions dUring the YEar .......ccueciciiiieiiiiieeee e 1,124,842 690,890
Deductions during the YEar ......ccccceciciiieeeicciiiee et snre e (927,636) (63,012)
Depreciation to date’..........eiiiiiiiiiiie e e (7,543,258) (6,916,047)
NN 1] A o] (o Yo P 31,279,021 31,709,026
Il. Other fixed assets (including furniture and fixtures)
At cost at March 31 of preceding year ......c.ccccceeeeeiiieeeeeeiiieee e 38,319,238 35,777,378
Additions during the Year ... 4,521,473 2,997,878
Deductions during the Year ...........cccueeiiiiiiiiiii i (2,526,697) (456,018)
Depreciation 10 date?..........eeiccieeieeee e ciee e (27,470,762) (26,275,723)
NET DIOCK e 12,843,252 12,043,515
lll. Assets given on lease
At cost at March 31 of preceding year .....cc.ccocccueeveiiiiiiei e 17,299,544 17,300,087
Additions dUring the YEar .......cuuiciciiiiiiiiiieee e — —
Deductions during the YEar .......ccuueeeiciiieeeicciiiee e ee e ee e —_ (543)
Depreciation to date, accumulated lease adjustment and provisions®.................... (14,951,230) (14,905,215)
NN L] A o] (o Yo S 2,348,314 2,394,329
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS...... ..ottt sttt s e e s nsnan e e s nnnees 46,470,587 46,146,870
1. Includes depreciation charge amounting to X 1,137.0 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 1,230.9 million).
2. Includes depreciation charge amounting to ¥ 3,436.4 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 3,591.8 million).
3. Includes depreciation charge/lease adjustment amounting to ¥ 328.2 million (March 31, 2012: X 422.6 million).
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS
I. Inter-office adjustmeNnts (NET).......eveiiiiiiiiie i — —
| O 1 =Y == = ot o =T PRSPPI 44,902,010 42,175,150
lll. Tax paid in advance/tax deducted at SOUICe (Net) .......ccceeeeeeiuiieeeeiiiieeeeeeiiieee e 36,098,478 34,161,502
IV.  Stationery and StAMPS .....eeiiiiuiiiei ettt e et e s sbe e e e e sabee e e e s snreeeeesnnees 10,045 10,308
V. Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims” ........cc.ccccvveeiiiiiiiieniiiiiieennn, 576,833 600,575
LY/ B0 \VZ: T [oT=Y o) gor=1 o] L e= |- X1 =Y S 1,154,106 1,344,889
RV O I 1T o Yo T3 | £ PP PPN 10,868,027 10,669,329
VIII. Deferred tax asSsSet (NEL) ......uuuruuiiiiiiiiiieieieeiireirsiiiiaeseeseseeeesesssssanseaeeseeseeseeesssssssnnnnns 24,793,018 25,453,167
) G © 1 1= S 172,468,175 234,956,038
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS ... ..ottt e sttt e e et e e e e e nate e e e e s snr e e e e e snnnnneeeesannns 290,870,692 349,370,958
1. Includes certain non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims which are in the process of being transferred in the Bank’s name.
2. The Bank has presented the mark-to-market (MTM) gain or loss on forex and derivative transactions on gross basis. Accordingly, the

gross positive MTM amounting to X 113,239.6 million has been included in Other assets. Consequent to the change, Other assets have

increased by ¥ 154,217.1 million at March 31, 2012.

SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

V.
VI.
VII.
VIIL.

1.

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts

Liability for partly paid investments .........cccocceviiieinieiinieee e
Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts’

Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

E= ) I L T 15 LT TN
[0 @ TU =1 Te [N 1 o [T ISP
Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations..........ccccocceviiinenne
CUITENCY SWAPS . itieiei ittt ettt e e e e e e saba e e e e snnneeeeeaas
Interest rate swaps, currency options and interest rate futures'
Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable
TOTAL CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Represents notional amount.
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36,373,051 29,310,352
128,050 128,050
2,838,503,955 3,5660,050,874
717,848,338 720,946,196
226,321,011 234,068,666
621,180,725 568,856,614
565,474,647 616,403,650
2,855,937,706 3,362,012,187
38,125,663 62,874,440
7,899,893,146 9,154,651,059




forming part of the Profit and Loss Account

(X in ‘000s)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2013 31.03.2012
SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED
I.  Interest/discount on advances/billS..........ccccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 273,411,095 221,298,923
. INCOME ON INVESTMENTS..evutuutiiiiieiieieiieieeiereersseeaeeeeseeeeeesssrsssanaaeeseseeeeeesssssnssnnsnnnsnns 110,092,680 96,840,240
lll. Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and other inter-bank funds ......... 5,429,767 4,911,364
Y O 1 51T PRSP PPPPPRRPRRTRIN 11,822,427 12,375,995
TOTAL INTEREST EARNED .........ooooiiiiiiiiciiecies e 400,755,969 335,426,522
1. Includes interest on income tax refunds amounting to ¥ 2,575.5 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 801.1 million).
2. Includes interest and amortisation of premium on non-trading interest rate swaps and foreign currency swaps.
SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME
. Commission, exchange and brokerage .........ccccuecviiieeiieiiiiee e 54,616,556 54,351,128
Il.  Profit/(loss) on sale of iNVeStMeNnts (NET).......cccvevieiiiiiiiiiiirieiieeeee e e e e cees s sannnrereeees 5,651,026 3,313,505
. Profit/(loss) on revaluation of iNVeStMENtS (NEt).......cceeverruiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiereereeee e e (1,286,689) (4,053,393)
IV.  Profit/(loss) on sale of land, buildings and other assets (net)".........ccccevceeriiieernnen. 352,510 (16,876)
V. Profit/(loss) on exchange transactions (NEt).......cccuueeeeeiieeiniiininiie e 13,330,644 12,689,981
VI. Income earned by way of dividends, etc. from subsidiary companies and/or joint
ventures abroad/in INAI@ .......c.ccccueeeeuieiiiieieeceeeee ettt e ee e 9,117,637 7,364,045
VIl. Miscellaneous income (including lease inCoOmME) ........ccoeeeiuiiiiiiiiiiieie e 1,675,328 1,479,208
TOTAL OTHER INCOIME ...ttt ittt sttt st e e st e s s s e s st e e nnae e nann s 83,457,012 75,027,598
1. Includes profit/(loss) on sale of assets given on lease.
SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED
. INTErESt ON AEPOSITS . .uurrreiiiiiiiiiiiiieie it e e e e e s e e e e e s e s r e e e e e e eaeasaeeeassnnnrnrnnnes 168,889,489 143,040,614
Il. Interest on Reserve Bank of India/inter-bank borrowings .........ccccccccveeeiiiiiieneeccinns 20,865,555 14,692,117
Ill.  Others (including interest on borrowings of erstwhile ICICI Limited) ..........c.ccc..... 72,336,804 70,352,233
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENDED..........ccoioieiiiieieieseeeesseeeseseessse e s sneesenn e ssneesssnnesesmnesennnes 262,091,848 228,084,964
SCHEDULE 16 - OPERATING EXPENSES
I. Payments to and provisions for emMployees.......ccccvviiiiieiiiiiiiiei e 38,932,853 35,152,766
II.  Rent, taxes and lighting” ........ccuuiiiiiiiiiie e 7,368,037 6,756,357
|| PO o T g Yo = T T = =14 o 1= VSRS 1,175,023 1,000,743
IV.  Advertisement and PUBIICIY ....eeiiiiirieei e e e e sanees 1,891,608 1,324,783
V.  Depreciation on Bank's Property .......oooeoeieicciiuiimiieieieeiesee e s sssssssssssssnseeeeeessesssnees 4,573,380 4,822,742
VI. Depreciation (including lease equalisation) on leased assets ..........cccccccuveeeriiinnnes 328,220 422,579
VII. Directors' fees, allowances and EXPENSES........ccuueeeiiiueiieeieiiieeeeieiinreeeeeesinreeeeeesnnes 3,985 4,154
VI, Auditors' feeS and EXPENSES ...cciiiiiiuiiiieeiiiieieeeiiitereeeeesitaeeeseessaaeessesssseeessesssaeessannnes 29,288 25,142
D O I VLV o] o F= T o = ST P PP P P PRPPRPPRP 405,906 374,653
X. Postages, telegrams, telephones, e1C. ......couuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 2,188,627 1,902,982
XI.  Repairs and MaiNt@NaNCE .......c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiriee e te e s e s e e s e e s s ssssas e sreeeeeeeeeaeaeesensnaanes 6,661,542 5,629,537
DL (g YU - [ e < RN 2,243,842 2,234,700
XlI. Direct marketing @genCy EXPENSES .....ccceevirieiiiiriiiiesiiie s ssee e snressnee s 3,464,848 1,604,439
XIV. Other eXPenditUre .......oooiiiieiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e s e e e e s enbe e e e e e nnrneees 20,861,678 17,248,856
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiin i s ssss s s s snnesnes 90,128,837 78,504,433

1. Includes lease payment of ¥ 5,065.8 million (March 31, 2012: X 4,478.1 million).
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SCHEDULE 17

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
OVERVIEW

ICICI Bank Limited (ICICI Bank or the Bank), incorporated in Vadodara, India is a publicly held banking company engaged in
providing a wide range of banking and financial services including commercial banking and treasury operations. ICICI Bank is
a banking company governed by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The Bank also has overseas branches in Bahrain, Dubai,
Hong Kong, Qatar, Sri Lanka, Singapore, United States of America and Offshore Banking Unit.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with requirements prescribed under the Third Schedule of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The accounting and reporting policies of ICICI Bank used in the preparation of these financial
statements conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), the guidelines issued by Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, the Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) and notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to the extent applicable and practices
generally prevalent in the banking industry in India. The Bank follows the historical cost convention and the accrual method
of accounting, except in the case of interest income on non-performing assets (NPAs) where it is recognised upon realisation.

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that are considered in
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements and the
reported income and expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation
of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Revenue recognition
a) Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as it accrues except in the case of non-performing assets
(NPAs) where it is recognised upon realisation, as per the income recognition and asset classification norms of RBI.

b) Income from leases is calculated by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease to the net investment outstanding
on the lease over the primary lease period. Finance leases entered into prior to April 1, 2001 have been accounted
for as per the Guidance Note on Accounting for Leases issued by ICAI. The finance leases entered post April 1, 2001
have been accounted for as per Accounting Standard 19 - Leases issued by ICAI.

c) Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenure of the instrument on a constant yield basis.

d) Dividend income is accounted on an accrual basis when the right to receive the dividend is established.

e) Loan processing fee is accounted for upfront when it becomes due.

f)  Project appraisal/structuring fee is accounted for on the completion of the agreed service.

g) Arranger fee is accounted for as income when a significant portion of the arrangement/syndication is completed.
h) Commission received on guarantees issued is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the guarantee.
i)  All other fees are accounted for as and when they become due.

i) Net income arising from sell-down/securitisation of loan assets prior to February 1, 2006 has been recognised
upfront as interest income. With effect from February 1, 2006, net income arising from securitisation of loan assets
is amortised over the life of securities issued or to be issued by the special purpose vehicle/special purpose entity
to which the assets are sold. Net income arising from sale of loan assets through direct assignment with recourse
obligation is amortised over the life of underlying assets sold and net income from sale of loan assets through direct
assignment, without any recourse obligation, is recognised at the time of sale. Net loss arising on account of the
sell-down/securitisation and direct assignment of loan assets is recognised at the time of sale.

k) The Bank deals in bullion business on a consignment basis. The difference between price recovered from customers
and cost of bullion is accounted for at the time of sales to the customers. The Bank also deals in bullion on a
borrowing and lending basis and the interest paid/received is accounted on accrual basis.

2. Investments

Investments are accounted for in accordance with the extant RBI guidelines on investment classification and valuation
as given below.

a) All investments are classified into ‘Held to Maturity’, ‘Available for Sale’ and ‘Held for Trading’. Reclassifications, if
any, in any category are accounted for as per RBI guidelines. Under each classification, the investments are further
categorised as (a) government securities, (b) other approved securities, (c) shares, (d) bonds and debentures, (e)
subsidiaries and joint ventures and (f) others.

b) ‘Held to Maturity’ securities are carried at their acquisition cost or at amortised cost, if acquired at a premium over
the face value. Any premium over the face value of fixed rate and floating rate securities acquired is amortised over
the remaining period to maturity on a constant yield basis and straight line basis respectively.

c) ‘Available for Sale’ and ‘Held for Trading” securities are valued periodically as per RBI guidelines. Any premium
over the face value of fixed rate and floating rate investments in government securities, classified as ‘Available for
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d)

e)

f)

)

h)

i)

a)

b)

Sale’, is amortised over the remaining period to maturity on constant yield basis and straight line basis respectively.
Quoted investments are valued based on the trades/quotes on the recognised stock exchanges, subsidiary general
ledger account transactions, price list of RBI or prices declared by Primary Dealers Association of India jointly with
Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association (FIMMDA), periodically.

The market/fair value of unquoted government securities which are in the nature of Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)
securities included in the ‘Available for Sale’ and ‘Held for Trading’ categories is as per the rates published by
FIMMDA. The valuation of other unquoted fixed income securities wherever linked to the Yield-to-Maturity (YTM)
rates, is computed with a mark-up (reflecting associated credit risk) over the YTM rates for government securities
published by FIMMDA.

Unquoted equity shares are valued at the break-up value, if the latest balance sheet is available, or at ¥ 1, as per RBI
guidelines.

Securities are valued scrip-wise and depreciation/appreciation is aggregated for each category. Net appreciation
in each category, if any, being unrealised, is ignored, while net depreciation is provided for. Non-performing
investments are identified based on the RBI guidelines.

Costs including brokerage and commission pertaining to investments, paid at the time of acquisition, are charged
to the profit and loss account. Cost of investments is computed based on the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method.

Equity investments in subsidiaries/joint ventures are categorised as ‘Held to Maturity’ in accordance with RBI
guidelines. The Bank assesses these investments for any permanent diminution in value and appropriate provisions
are made.

Profit/loss on sale of investments in the ‘Held to Maturity’ category is recognised in the profit and loss account and
profit is thereafter appropriated (net of applicable taxes and statutory reserve requirements) to Capital Reserve.
Profit/loss on sale of investments in ‘Available for Sale’ and ‘Held for Trading’ categories is recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Market repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions are accounted for as borrowing and lending transactions
respectively in accordance with the extant RBI guidelines. The transactions with RBI under Liquidity Adjustment
Facility (LAF) are accounted for as borrowing and lending transactions.

Broken period interest (the amount of interest from the previous interest payment date till the date of purchase/sale
of instruments) on debt instruments is treated as a revenue item.

At the end of each reporting period, security receipts issued by the asset reconstruction companies are valued in
accordance with the guidelines applicable to such instruments, prescribed by RBI from time to time. Accordingly,
in cases where the cash flows from security receipts issued by the asset reconstruction companies are limited
to the actual realisation of the financial assets assigned to the instruments in the concerned scheme, the Bank
reckons the net asset value obtained from the asset reconstruction company from time to time, for valuation of such
investments at each reporting period end.

The Bank follows trade date method of accounting for purchase and sale of investments, except for government of
India and state government securities where settlement date method of accounting is followed in accordance with
RBI guidelines.

Provision/write-offs on loans and other credit facilities

All credit exposures, including loans and advances at the overseas branches and overdues arising from crystallised
derivative contracts, are classified as per RBI guidelines, into performing and NPAs. Loans and advances held at
the overseas branches that are identified as impaired as per host country regulations but which are standard as per
the extant RBI guidelines are identified as NPAs at borrower level. Further, NPAs are classified into sub-standard,
doubtful and loss assets based on the criteria stipulated by RBI.

In the case of corporate loans and advances, provisions are made for sub-standard and doubtful assets at rates
prescribed by RBI. Loss assets and the unsecured portion of doubtful assets are provided/written-off as per the
extant RBI guidelines. For loans and advances booked in overseas branches, which are standard as per the extant
RBI guidelines but are classified as NPAs based on host country guidelines, provisions are made as per the host
country regulations. For loans and advances booked in overseas branches, which are NPAs as per the extant RBI
guidelines and as per host country guidelines, provisions are made at the higher of the provisions required under
RBI regulations and host country regulations. Provisions on homogeneous retail loans and advances, subject to
minimum provisioning requirements of RBI, are assessed at a borrower level, on the basis of the ageing of the loans
in the non-performing category.

The Bank holds specific provisions against non-performing loans and advances, general provision against performing
loans and advances and floating provision taken over from erstwhile Bank of Rajasthan upon amalgamation. The
assessment of incremental specific provisions is made after taking into consideration the existing specific provision
held. The specific provisions on retail loans and advances held by the Bank are higher than the minimum regulatory
requirements.

Provision on loans and advances restructured/rescheduled is made in accordance with the applicable RBI guidelines
on restructuring of loans and advances by Banks.
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In respect of non-performing loans and advances accounts subjected to restructuring, the account is upgraded to
standard only after the specified period i.e. a period of one year after the date when first payment of interest or of
principal, whichever is earlier, falls due, subject to satisfactory performance of the account during the period.

c) Amounts recovered against debts written-off in earlier years and provisions no longer considered necessary in the
context of the current status of the borrower are recognised in the profit and loss account.

d) In addition to the specific provision on NPAs, the Bank maintains a general provision on performing loans and
advances at rates prescribed by RBI. For performing loans and advances in overseas branches, the general provision
is made at higher of host country regulations requirement and RBI requirement.

e) In addition to the provisions required to be held according to the asset classification status, provisions are held for
individual country exposures including indirect country risk (other than for home country exposure). The countries
are categorised into seven risk categories namely insignificant, low, moderate, high, very high, restricted and off-
credit and provisioning is made on exposures exceeding 180 days on a graded scale ranging from 0.25% to 100%.
For exposures with contractual maturity of less than 180 days, provision is required to be held at 25% of the rates
applicable to exposures exceeding 180 days. The indirect exposures will be reckoned at 50% of the exposure. If the
country exposure (net) of the Bank in respect of each country does not exceed 1% of the total funded assets, no
provision is required on such country exposure.

Transfer and servicing of assets

The Bank transfers commercial and consumer loans through securitisation transactions. The transferred loans are
de-recognised and gains/losses are accounted for only if the Bank surrenders the rights to benefits specified in the
underlying securitised loan contract. Recourse and servicing obligations are accounted for net of provisions.

In accordance with the RBI guidelines for securitisation of standard assets, with effect from February 1, 2006, the Bank
accounts for any loss arising from securitisation immediately at the time of sale and the profit/premium arising from
securitisation is amortised over the life of the securities issued or to be issued by the special purpose vehicle to which
the assets are sold. In the case of loans sold to an asset reconstruction company, the excess provision is not reversed
but is utilised to meet the shortfall/loss on account of sale of other financial assets to securitisation company (SC)/
reconstruction company (RC).

In accordance with the RBI guidelines dated May 7, 2012 for securitisation of standard assets, with effect from May 7,
2012, the Bank accounts for any loss arising from securitisation immediately at the time of sale and the profit/premium
arising from securitisation is amortised over the life of the transaction based on the method prescribed by RBI guidelines.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Premises and other fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and
incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the asset. Depreciation is charged over the estimated
useful life of a fixed asset on a straight-line basis. The rates of depreciation for fixed assets, which are not lower than the
rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, are given below.

Asset Depreciation Rate
Premises owned by the Bank 1.63%
Improvements to leasehold premises 1.63% or over the lease period, whichever is higher
ATMs 12.50%
Plant and machinery like air conditioners, photo-copying

machines, etc. 10.00%
Computers 33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 15.00%
Motor vehicles 20.00%
Others (including Software and system development expenses) 25.00%

a. Depreciation on leased assets and leasehold improvements is recognised on a straight-line basis using rates
determined with reference to the primary period of lease or rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act,
1956, whichever is higher.

b. Assets purchased/sold during the year are depreciated on a pro-rata basis for the actual number of days the asset
has been put to use.

c. ltems costing upto X 5,000/- are depreciated fully over a period of 12 months from the date of purchase.

d. Assets at residences of Bank’s employees are depreciated at 20% per annum.

e. In case of revalued/impaired assets, depreciation is provided over the remaining useful life of the assets with
reference to revised assets values.

Transactions involving foreign exchange

Foreign currency income and expenditure items of domestic operations are translated at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of the transaction. Income and expenditure items of integral foreign operations (representative offices) are
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translated at daily closing rates, and income and expenditure items of non-integral foreign operations (foreign branches
and offshore banking units) are translated at quarterly average closing rates.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities of domestic and integral foreign operations are translated at closing
exchange rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of India (FEDAI) at the balance sheet date and the
resulting profits/losses are included in the profit and loss account.

Both monetary and non-monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities of non-integral foreign operations are translated
at closing exchange rates notified by FEDAI at the balance sheet date and the resulting profits/losses from exchange
differences are accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of the net investment in the
non-integral foreign operations.

The premium or discount arising on inception of forward exchange contracts that are entered into to establish the
amount of reporting currency required or available at the settlement date of a transaction is amortised over the life of the
contract. All other outstanding forward exchange contracts are revalued based on the exchange rates notified by FEDAI
for specified maturities and at interpolated rates for contracts of interim maturities. The contracts of longer maturities
where exchange rates are not notified by FEDAI, are revalued based on the forward exchange rates implied by the swap
curves in respective currencies. The resultant gains or losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Contingent liabilities on account of guarantees, endorsements and other obligations denominated in foreign currencies
are disclosed at the closing exchange rates notified by FEDAI at the balance sheet date.

7. Accounting for derivative contracts

The Bank enters into derivative contracts such as foreign currency options, interest rate and currency swaps, credit
default swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps.

The swap contracts entered to hedge on-balance sheet assets and liabilities are structured such that they bear an
opposite and offsetting impact with the underlying on-balance sheet items. The impact of such derivative instruments
is correlated with the movement of underlying assets and accounted pursuant to the principles of hedge accounting.
Hedged swaps are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Foreign currency and rupee derivative contracts entered into for trading purposes are marked to market and the resulting
gain or loss (net of provisions, if any) is accounted for in the profit and loss account. Pursuant to RBI guidelines, any
receivables under derivative contracts which remain overdue for more than 90 days and mark-to-market gains on other
derivative contracts with the same counter-parties are reversed through profit and loss account.

8. Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

The Employees Stock Option Scheme (the Scheme) provides for grant of option on equity shares of the Bank to
wholetime directors and employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The Scheme provides that employees are granted
an option to subscribe to equity shares of the Bank that vest in a graded manner. The options may be exercised within
a specified period. The Bank follows the intrinsic value method to account for its stock-based employee compensation
plans. Compensation cost is measured as the excess, if any, of the fair market price of the underlying stock over the
exercise price on the grant date and amortised over the vesting period. The fair market price is the latest closing price,
immediately prior to the grant date, which is generally the date of the Board of Directors meeting in which the options
are granted, on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Bank are listed. If the shares are listed on more than one
stock exchange, then the stock exchange where there is highest trading volume on the said date is considered.

9.  Staff Retirement Benefits
Gratuity
The Bank pays gratuity to employees who retire or resign after a minimum prescribed period of continuous service and
in case of employees at overseas locations as per the rules in force in the respective countries.
The actuarial gains or losses arising during the year are recognised in the profit and loss account.
Actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability is determined by an actuary appointed by the Bank. Actuarial valuation of
gratuity liability is determined based on certain assumptions regarding rate of interest, salary growth, mortality and staff
attrition as per the projected unit credit method.

Superannuation Fund

The Bank contributes 15.0% of the total annual basic salary of certain employees to a superannuation fund for its
employees. The Bank also gives an option to its employees, allowing them to receive the amount contributed by the
Bank along with their monthly salary during their employment.

The amount so contributed/paid by the Bank to the superannuation fund or to employee during the year is recognised
in the profit and loss account.

Pension

The Bank provides for pension, a deferred retirement plan covering certain employees of erstwhile Bank of Madura,
erstwhile Sangli Bank and erstwhile Bank of Rajasthan. The plan provides for pension payment including dearness relief
on a monthly basis to these employees on their retirement based on the respective employee’s years of service with the
Bank and applicable salary.
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Actuarial valuation of the pension liability is determined by an actuary appointed by the Bank. Actuarial valuation of pension
liability is calculated based on certain assumptions regarding rate of interest, salary growth, mortality and staff attrition as
per the projected unit credit method.

The actuarial gains or losses arising during the year are recognised in the profit and loss account.
Employees covered by the pension plan are not eligible for employer’s contribution under the provident fund plan.
Provident Fund

The Bank is statutorily required to maintain a provident fund as a part of retirement benefits to its employees. Each
employee contributes a certain percentage of his or her basic salary and the Bank contributes an equal amount. The
funds are invested according to the rules prescribed by the Government of India.

Actuarial valuation for the interest rate guarantee on the provident fund balances is determined by an actuary appointed
by the Bank.

The actuarial gains or losses arising during the year are recognised in the profit and loss account.
Leave encashment

The Bank provides for leave encashment benefit, which is a long-term benefit scheme, based on actuarial valuation
conducted by an independent actuary.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax expense incurred by the Bank. The current tax
expense and deferred tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and as per
Accounting Standard 22 - Accounting for Taxes on Income respectively. Deferred tax adjustments comprise changes in the
deferred tax assets or liabilities during the year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised by considering the impact
of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the current year, and carry forward losses.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. The impact of changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognised in the profit
and loss account. Deferred tax assets are recognised and re-assessed at each reporting date, based upon management’s
judgement as to whether their realisation is considered as reasonably/virtually certain.

Impairment of Assets

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset with future net discounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If
such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment is recognised by debiting the profit and loss account and is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Bank estimates the probability of any loss that might be incurred on outcome of contingencies on the basis of
information available up to the date on which the financial statements are prepared. A provision is recognised when
an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based
on management estimates of amounts required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, supplemented by
experience of similar transactions. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
management estimates. In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the contingency is reasonably
possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, a disclosure to this effect is made in the financial
statements. In case of remote possibility neither provision nor disclosure is made in the financial statements. The Bank
does not account for or disclose contingent assets, if any.

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 — Earnings per share.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if contracts to issue equity shares were exercised
or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed using the weighted average number of
equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

Lease transactions

Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account over
the lease term on straight line basis.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI, balances with other banks and money at call and short notice.
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SCHEDULE 18
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

The following additional disclosures have been made taking into account the requirements of Accounting Standards (ASs)
and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines in this regard.

1.

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are computed in accordance with AS 20-Earnings per share. Basic earnings
per equity share is computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The diluted earnings per equity share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares

and weighted average number of dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the computation of earnings per share.

< in million, except per share data

Year ended
March 31, 2013

Year ended
March 31, 2012

Basic
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding.........ccccceveeviieeeeiiiiiieneeens 1,153,066,422 1,152,338,322
N L o] o OO PPPPPPRPPN: 83,254.7 64,652.6
Basic earnings per Share () ....coooceeeeieeiiiieeeie e 72.20 56.11
Diluted
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding..........ccccceeeviiieeiiiiciiennene 1,157,455,610 1,155,591,617
AL 0 o] o) {1 SRS 83,254.7 64,652.6
Diluted earnings per share () ......oeoiecieeeeiiiiiiiee e sre e 71.93 55.95
Nominal value per share () .....cceeeeiieiiiiiee e 10.00 70.00
The dilutive impact is due to options granted to employees by the Bank.
Business/information ratios
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the business/information ratios.
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(i) Interest iNnCOME t0 WOTKING FUNAS! ..v.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e een e 8.17% 7.79%
(i) Non-interest income to Working funds’ ...........ccceeeeveeveeeeeieesesssensnseneenes 1.70% 1.74%
(i) Operating profit to WOrking fUNds’ ...........cc.eeueeureueeeereeseeecssesseseseseseeseneans 2.69% 2.41%
(V) RETUMM ON BSSEES2....eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeveseeeee s e eeeneseeeeee s eeneenenneneens 1.70% 1.50%
(V) Profit per employee® (X in MillioN) ....oovceeiiiiiiiiee e, 14 1.1
(vi)  Business (average deposits plus average advances)
per employee® 4 (X in MillioN) ...ccooieieeiiei e 73.5 70.8
1. For the purpose of computing the ratio, working funds represent the monthly average of total assets as reported in Form X to RBI
under Section 27 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.
2. For the purpose of computing the ratio, assets represent monthly average of total assets as reported in Form X to RBI under
Section 27 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.
3. The number of employees includes sales executives, employees on fixed term contracts and interns.
4. The average deposits and the average advances represent the simple average of the figures reported in Form A to RBI under

Section 42(2) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Capital adequacy ratio

The Bank is subject to the Basel Il capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by RBI with effect from March 31, 2008. The RBI
guidelines on Basel Il require the Bank to maintain a minimum capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) of 9.0% and a

minimum Tier | CRAR of 6.0% on an ongoing basis.
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RBI has also stipulated that banks shall maintain capital at higher of the minimum capital required as per Basel Il or 80%
of the minimum capital requirement under Basel |I. At March 31, 2013, the prudential floor at 80% of the minimum capital
requirement under Basel | was ¥ 359,052.2 million and was lower than the minimum capital requirement of I 397,749.2
million under Basel Il. Hence, the Bank has maintained capital adequacy at March 31, 2013 as per the Basel Il norms.

The following table sets forth, for the dates indicated, computation of capital adequacy.

T in million
As per Basel | framework As per Basel Il framework
At At At At
March 31, 2013" March 317, 2072 March 31, 2013" March 31, 2012
Tier | capital .....cccevvieiiiiiiie e 573,361.5 512,158.7 565,615.9 505,182.8
Jo X =T =) 31,423.0 30,254.9 31,423.0 30,254.9
B =T LIeT=T o) 7 | 269,371.0 238,563.6 262,739.2 232,946.4
(0o o= T =T B 146,958.5 143,889.5 146,958.5 143,889.5
Lower Tier Il subordinated debt ..........cccceeveeeennneen. 176,506.1 155,206.3 176,506.1 155,206.3
Total Capital....cceciueiieiiecieieese e 842,732.5 750,722.3 828,355.1 738,129.2
Total risk weighted assets ........c.cccceeveevvieeeiieeeseeeenee, 4,986,835.6 4,618,042.1 4,419,435.0 3,985,857.8
CRAR (%0) tvveeureeiuieiiiiesieesieessieeereeesiaesssee e esveeenneeas 16.90% 16.26% 18.74% 18.52%
CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 11.50% 11.09% 12.80% 12.68%
CRAR - Tier Il capital (%) 5.40% 5.17% 5.94% 5.84%
Amount raised by issue of Innovative Perpetual
Debt Instruments (IPDI) during the year.................. — — —_ —
Amount raised by issue of upper Tier Il
Instruments during the year ......c..cccoeeiiiiiiiieciienns — — —_ —
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier Il
capital during the year .......ccccccevveiiieencieesiee e 38,000 16,000.0 38,000 16,000.0

Information about business and geographical segments

Business Segments
Pursuant to the guidelines issued by RBI on Accounting Standard 17-(Segment Reporting)- Enhancement of Disclosures
dated April 18, 2007, effective from year ended March 31, 2008, the following business segments have been reported.

° Retail Banking includes exposures which satisfy the four criteria of orientation, product, granularity and low value
of individual exposures for retail exposures laid down in Basel Committee on Banking Supervision document
“International Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital Standards: A Revised Framework”.

o Wholesale Banking includes all advances to trusts, partnership firms, companies and statutory bodies, which are
not included under Retail Banking.

° Treasury includes the entire investment and derivative portfolio of the Bank.

° Other Banking includes leasing operations and other items not attributable to any particular business segment.

Income, expenses, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with individual segments or are allocated to
segments on a systematic basis.

All liabilities are transfer priced to a central treasury unit, which pools all funds and lends to the business units at appropriate
rates based on the relevant maturity of assets being funded after adjusting for regulatory reserve requirements.

The transfer pricing mechanism of the Bank is periodically reviewed. The segment results are determined based on the
transfer pricing mechanism prevailing for the respective reporting periods.
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The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the business segment results on this basis.

< in million
For the year ended March 31, 2013
Retail Wholesale Treasury Other Total
Particulars Banking Banking Banking
Business
1 REVENUE ...ttt ettt 225,856.3 313,687.6 355,862.8 6,238.4 901,645.1
2 Less: Inter-segment revenue 417,432.1
3 Total revenue (1)—(2)...... 484,213.0
4  Segmentresults............ 9,545.5 66,188.6 36,539.2 1,693.6 113,966.9
B Unallocated expenses... —
6 Operating Profit (4)-(5) ...cccerverreereeeirsieseeseeeseeseeseens 113,966.9
7 Income tax expenses (including deferred tax)........... 30,712.2
8 Net profit (6)=(7) .......ccceeeieeereeiiee e 83,254.7
9 Segment assets........ 729,750.3 2,269,628.7 2,274,859.6 32,816.7 5,307,055.3
10 Unallocated assets’....... 60,891.5
11 Total assets (9)+(10)..... 5,367,946.8
12 Segment liabilities ........ 2,043,187.5 1,071,994.1 2,243,734.82 9,030.4 5,367,946.8
13 Unallocated liabilities ........... —
14 Total liabilities (12)+(13)..... 5,367,946.8
15 Capital expenditure .............. 4,426.2 1,188.2 10.8 21.1 5,646.3
16 DepPreciation .....ccccceeeeeeeeeeeeiiiirereeeeeaeaasisssseeeeeaaaeaaannnns 3,540.8 991.8 18.4 350.6 4,901.6
1. Includes tax paid in advance/tax deducted at source (net) and deferred tax asset (net).
2. Includes share capital and reserves and surplus. . o
< in million
For the year ended March 31, 2012
Retail Wholesale Treasury Other Total
Particulars Banking Banking Banking
Business
1 REVENUE ...ttt ste e sae e sne s enae e sne e sneesneeenns 197,112.7 261,713.1 301,414.2 2,821.8 763,061.8
2 Less: Inter-segment reVENUE ........cceeveeeeieeesieesiieennnne 352,607.7
& Total revenue (1)—(2) ...eeeeeeeeeeeciiiiieeeeeeeeeeecnrreeeee e e e e e 410,454.1
4 Segment results............ccccoeeiieieiie e 5,499.9 62,077.3 20,806.8 (349.7) 88,034.3
5 Unallocated eXPEeNnSES ......uueeviiieeeiiiuiiiieieiieeeesiiiineeeeens —
6 Operating profit (4)=(5) ..cccvveeeveenieieiie e eiee e 88,034.3
7 Income tax expenses (Including deferred tax)........... 23,381.7
8 Net profit (6)-(7) .......cceeeirerieiiee e 64,652.6
9 SEGMENT ASSELS c.veiurieieeiiesteeiieeie et 697,767.7 1,940,355.9 2,169,280.2 23,669.5 4,831,073.3
10  Unallocated assets’ .......cccceeeevveeeriieeeeesiieeeseinneeeenneens 59,614.7
11 Total assets (9)+(10)......cccceereereeiiiiirriiieee e, 4,890,688.0
12 Segment liabilities ......cccoevieeriiiiiiie i 1,766,275.9 876,508.2 2,237,806.9 10,097.0 4,890,688.0
13 Unallocated liabilities .....cccvveeievieeiiiiieeecieee e, —
14 Total liabilities (12)+(13) ......ccccvvvvvriiiriieeciee e 4,890,688.0
15 Capital expenditure .........ccocceeeereeierienee e 3,215.5 462.7 6.2 4.4 3,688.8
16 DepPreciation ..iiceiiccceeeeiiiseeeeeiiseeeseineeeeasseeeeessneeeannes 3,644.7 1,236.3 21.2 443.1 5,245.3
1. Includes tax paid in advance/tax deducted at source (net) and deferred tax asset (net).
2. Includes share capital and reserves and surplus.
Geographical segments
The Bank reports its operations under the following geographical segments.
° Domestic operations comprise branches in India
° Foreign operations comprise branches outside India and offshore banking unit in India.
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, geographical segment revenues. % in million
Year ended Year ended
oL March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Domestic operations 437,287.2 366,126.5
Foreign operations.................. 46,925.8 44,327.6
0 | PP PP 484,213.0 410,454.1
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, geographical segment assets.

< in million

At At

Assets March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
[DoYp g T=T: (ol o] o 1=T =1 1 o] o - PP PPPRPPN 4,371,958.3 3,956,024.2
[T g=TTe [ Te) 01T =1 o] o = S 935,097.0 875,049.1
0 0 PR 5,307,055.3 4,831,073.3

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, capital expenditure and depreciation thereon for the geographical
segments.

< in million

Capital expenditure incurred during Depreciation provided during
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Domestic operations ..........ccccceeenn. 5,566.3 3,616.0 4,863.2 5,211.8
Foreign operations ........cccccceveveeennnnn. 80.0 72.8 384 33.5
L | 5,646.3 3,688.8 4,901.6 5,245.3

Maturity pattern

e  Incompiling the information of maturity pattern, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the management.
e  Assets and liabilities in foreign currency exclude off-balance sheet assets and liabilities.

The following table sets forth, the maturity pattern of assets and liabilities of the Bank at March 31, 2013.

< in million
Loans & Investment Deposits' Borrowings'? Total foreign Total foreign
Maturity buckets Advances' securities' currency currency
assets liabilities
Day T 9,112.9 48,665.0 27,643.7 — 31,676.4 6,857.7
210 7 daYS «cooeeeeeeeieee e 17,209.7 216,271.1 88,557.0 156,492.0 57,443.0 24,006.9
810 14 daYS .uvvvveeeeeieieiei e 14,952.5 66,915.8 64,225.5 31,737.6 41,757.7 55,617.7
1510 28 days ...cvveeeeieiieeee e 56,985.4 117,812.7 78,776.1 8,271.2 29,492.2 25,583.6
29 days to 3 months..........cccccvuvininnes 185,648.6 98,700.0 303,018.0 84,903.6 84,484.9 107,712.0
3106 MoNthS....cceveeeeeeiiiiiiiicciiiiies 204,592.9 77,2421 265,480.7 126,686.4 71,474.5 151,527.4
6 months to 1 year .....cccccoevcvveeeeennns 319,463.0 158,405.5 459,085.7 158,589.4 59,533.2 199,375.4
T10 3 Years .ccccceiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeee e 1,185,745.7 241,872.3 442,488.6 208,659.0 206,040.3 212,432.6
3t0 B years oo 493,899.9 212,552.0 600,623.9 232,053.6 194,085.6 163,472.9
Above 5 years.......ccccoevciieeiiiiiiiiienene 414,883.8 475,499.5 596,237.1 446,022.1 249,487.3 189,654.3
Total ......ccvvviiiiiee e 2,902,494.4 1,713,936.0 2,926,136.3 1,453,414.9 1,025,475.1 1,136,240.5
1. Includes foreign currency balances.
2. Includes borrowings in the nature of subordinated debts and preference shares.

The following table sets forth the maturity pattern of assets and liabilities of the Bank at March 31, 2012.

< in million
Loans & Investment Deposits' Borrowings'? Total foreign Total foreign
Maturity buckets Advances' securities’ currency currency
assets liabilities
DAy T .cceeicciee e 7,738.5 35,284.9 19,792.9 — 30,222.0 2,688.8
210 7 daYS cceeiiieeeiee e 13,041.4 217,729.6 44,612.6 174,543.1 69,821.6 9,310.3
810 14 daYS eevvveeeeeiieeeiee e 13,191.0 49,505.7 54,744.2 2,543.6 10,671.6 7,216.8
1510 28 days ...ceeveeeieiiieee e 39,001.7 95,723.5 97,134.4 26,841.4 21,209.7 25,492.3
29 days to 3 months........ccccceeeenneenn. 142,209.3 77,392.4 273,131.8 80,937.6 67,038.9 114,905.9
310 6 MONthS.....cceeveiiieeieeieeeceees 188,828.5 87,627.9 288,254.6 141,606.5 73,969.8 129,864.6
6 months to 1 year ......ccceevveeeeiieennes 336,379.4 149,466.7 452,112.8 223,622.4 95,326.5 241,781.4
110 3 YEArS cocueee et 1,043,883.5 245,244.2 690,126.6 173,520.5 172,330.3 197,466.2
3105 YEArS ooeieiieee e 388,469.1 152,923.0 228,550.3 197,146.0 147,925.4 140,532.7
ADbOVeE 5 years.......cccoceeeeiiiiniee e 364,534.2 484,702.5 406,539.4 380,888.0 281,977.9 178,630.3
Total ....cooovveeeiiieeieeceeee e 2,537,276.6 1,595,600.4 2,554,999.6 1,401,649.1 970,493.7 1,047,889.3
1. Includes foreign currency balances.
2. Includes borrowings in the nature of subordinated debts and preference shares.
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6. Preference shares
Certain government securities amounting to ¥ 2,749.9 million at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: X 2,578.1 million) have
been earmarked against redemption of preference shares issued by the Bank, which fall due for redemption on April 20,
2018, as per the original issue terms.

7. Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

In terms of the ESOS, as amended, the maximum number of options granted to any eligible employee in a financial
year shall not exceed 0.05% of the issued equity shares of the Bank at the time of grant of the options and aggregate of
all such options granted to the eligible employees shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of the issued equity
shares of the Bank on the date(s) of the grant of options. Under the stock option scheme, eligible employees are entitled
to apply for equity shares. Options granted for fiscal 2003 vest in a graded manner over a three-year period, with 20%,
30% and 50% of the grants vesting in each year commencing from the end of 12 months from the date of grant. Options
granted from fiscal 2004 vest in a graded manner over a four-year period, with 20%, 20%, 30% and 30% of the grants
vesting in each year commencing from the end of 12 months from the date of grant. Options granted in April 2009 vest
in a graded manner over a five year period with 20%, 20%, 30% and 30% of grant vesting each year, commencing from
the end of 24 months from the date of grant. Options granted in September, 2011 vest in a graded manner over a five
years period with 15%, 20%, 20% and 45% of grant vesting each year, commencing from the end of 24 months from
the date of the grant. The options can be exercised within 10 years from the date of grant or five years from the date of
vesting, whichever is later. The exercise price of Bank’s options was the last closing price on the stock exchange, which
recorded highest trading volume preceding the date of grant of options. Hence, there was no compensation cost based
on intrinsic value of options.

In February, 2011, the Bank granted 3,035,000 options to eligible employees and whole-time Directors of ICICI Bank and
certain of its subsidiaries at an exercise price of I 967. Of these options granted, 50% would vest on April 30, 2014 and
the balance 50% would vest on April 30, 2015. The options can be exercised within 10 years from the date of grant or
five years from the date of vesting, whichever is later. Based on intrinsic value of options, compensation cost of X 21.0
million was recognised during the year ended March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: ¥ 21.0 million).

If ICICI Bank had used the fair value of options based on binomial tree model, compensation cost in the year ended
March 31, 2013 would have been higher by ¥ 1,865.9 million and proforma profit after tax would have been ¥ 81.39
billion. On a proforma basis, ICICI Bank’s basic and diluted earnings per share would have been ¥ 70.58 and X 70.32
respectively. The key assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year ended March 31,
2013 are given below.

RISK-TrEE INTEIEST FATE .uvuuuiiiiiiiiiriii e e et e et e e e e et e e e s e e et eaaa e e s e e seeaaa e e eeeeeeeasa s eeeeeenssanneeeeeennnnnnss 7.99% to 8.87%
e 0 1= Te (=T I 1= PP PPt 6.35 years
g 0 =T o3 (=Te IAVZo] F=1 ] 1 Y2 PNt 48.99% to 49.55%
Expected dividend Yield .....cccooieeiieiiiee e 1.52% to 1.96%
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ended March 31, 2013 is ¥ 434.91 (March 31, 2012: X
592.52).

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option plan.
T except number of options
Stock options outstanding
Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended March 31, 2012

Weighted Weighted

Particulars Number of Average Number of Average
options Exercise Price options Exercise Price

Outstanding at the beginning of the year ............occcuvveeeeen. 23,199,545 846.94 20,529,387 779.72
Add: Granted during the year .........ccccceeeeeeeeiiiiiiieeee e 4,450,200 844.53 4,060,600 1,104.82
Less: Lapsed during the year, net of re-issuance................. 802,019 929.35 448,372 798.77
Less: Exercised during the year .......cccccevveeeiieiiiiiiiecieeeee, 867,273 511.63 942,070 510.94
Outstanding at the end of the year...........oooovvveveiiiiiiieiiiennnns 25,980,453 855.18 23,199,545 846.94
Options eXercisable........ccuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 13,597,383 793.57 12,019,655 745.26

In terms of the Scheme, 25,980,453 options (March 31, 2012: 23,199,545 options) granted to eligible employees were
outstanding at March 31, 2013.
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The following table sets forth, the summary of stock options outstanding at March 31, 2013.

Weighted average Weighted average

Range of exercise price (I per share) Number of shares exercise price remaining contractual
arising out of options (X per share) life (Number of years)

T05-299 ...t 12,675 132.05 0.07
300-599 ...uviiiiiiiriee e aaares 5,229,338 470.26 3.35
B600-999 ....oeeiiiiiiriee e e e eanes 16,827,750 917.10 6.66
0010y L L 3,910,690 1,105.80 8.06

The following table sets forth, the summary of stock options outstanding at March 31, 2012.

Weighted average Weighted average

Range of exercise price (T per share) Number of shares exercise price  remaining contractual
arising out of options (X per share) life (Number of years)

105-299 ..o 28,925 132.05 1.07
L[U0HTE) rerrrrvrerrerrrrerorrere ey 6,048,620 471.10 4.35
600-999 ... 13,122,000 942.79 6.80
1,000-1,399 ..ot 4,000,000 1,106.03 9.04

The options were exercised regularly throughout the period and weighted average share price as per NSE price volume
data during the year ended March 31, 2013 was X 1,000.21 (March 31, 2012: ¥ 922.76).

Subordinated debt
During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank raised subordinated debt qualifying for Tier Il capital amounting to
% 38,000.0 million. The following table sets forth, the details of these bonds.

< in million
Particulars Date of Issue Coupon Rate (%) Tenure Amount
Lower Tier ... December 31, 2012 9.15% (annually) 10 years 38,000.0
Total ..o 38,000.0

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Bank raised subordinated debt qualifying for Tier Il capital amounting to
% 16,000.0 million. The following table sets forth, the details of these bonds.

< in million
Particulars Date of Issue Coupon Rate (%) Tenure Amount
Lower Tier Il March 16, 2012 9.20% (semi-annually) 6 years 16,000.0
Total.....cooecieeec e 16,000.0
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Repurchase transactions

The following tables set forth for the period indicated, the details of securities sold and purchased under repo and
reverse repo transactions respectively including transactions under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF).

< in million
Minimum Maximum Daily average Outstanding
outstanding outstanding outstanding balance at
balance balance balance March 31,
during the during the during the 2013
Year ended March 31, 2013
Securities sold under Repo and LAF
i) Government SECUNities .....ccvvvrrerereeeieeieieiiiiiiiinnns 1.1 189,003.7 93,603.4 150,003.7
ii)  Corporate Debt Securities........ccccccccvveeeeeiiiieenennnns — — — —
Securities purchased under Reverse Repo and LAF
i) Government SECUNtIeS .......ccvvvvevvereeiiiieieiieeeeeeeenns — 50,211.3 4,475.4 50,211.3
ii)  Corporate Debt Securities........cccceecuveeeeiiiieennnnnns — — — —
1. Amounts reported are based on face value of securities under repo, reverse repo and LAF.
< in million
Minimum Maximum Daily average Outstanding
outstanding outstanding outstanding balance at
balance balance balance March 31,
during the during the during the 2012
Year ended March 31, 2012
Securities sold under Repo and LAF
i) Government SECUTtieS .......ceevvvvvevvuiiiieieiieneeieeeens 1.3 169,551.0 67,461.6 169,551.0
ii) Corporate Debt Securities.........cccoceveeeiiieereecinnns — 645.0 5.3 —
Securities purchased under Reverse Repo and LAF
i) Government SECUTtIeS .......cevvvevveviniiiieieiieneeieeeens — 36,750.0 1,524.6 2,630.0
ii) Corporate Debt Securities..........ccoeveeiiiieereecinnes — — — —
1. Amounts reported are based on face value of securities under repo, reverse repo and LAF

LAF transactions were accounted as borrowing and lending transactions from the three months ended March 31, 2012.

Investments

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of investments and the movement of provision held

towards depreciation on investments of the Bank.

< in million

Particulars

At

March 31, 2013

At

March 31, 2012

1. Value of Investments
(i)  Gross value of investments

F= ) I [ T [ Yo L= N
Lo) IO 10 =] [o (=1 Vo = T

(i)  Provision for depreciation

F= ) I [ T [ e L= N
o) I @ TUT 4] [ L= TN [ o [ = TR RRROPPE

Net value of investments

(i)

Q) ININAIA ceeiiiiiiiie e
Lo) IO 10 {3 To [N 1T [ =

2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

(i) Opening DalanCe .......uouccuiiiiiiiiiiie e
(i)  Add: Provisions made during the year .........cccceccueeeeiiiiieeeeeicciieeeeenns
Less: Write-off/(write back) of excess provisions during the year....
Closing DalanCe .......ceoueiiiiiieiii s

(iii)
(iv)

1,663,577.2

77,981.8

(27,378.2)

(244.8)

1,636,199.0

77,737.0

26,003.2
1,925.3
(305.5)

27,623.0

1,639,777.2
81,826.4

(25,565.7)
(437.5)

1,614,211.5
81,388.9

20,064.1

8,129.7
(2,190.6)
26,003.2
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Investment in securities, other than government and other approved securities (Non-SLR investments)
i) Issuer composition of investments in securities, other than government and other approved securities

The following table sets forth, the issuer composition of investments of the Bank in securities, other than government
and other approved securities at March 31, 2013.

< in million

Sr. Amount Extent of  Extent of ‘below Extent of Extent of
"~ lIssuer private investment grade’ ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
No. 2 s N ]
placement securities securities® securities®

(a) (b) (c) (d)

1 PSUS. .ottt 59,394.0 42,261.8 — — 4.8

2 FIS it 42,987.8 S8I8255 — — —

3 Banks....coooicieiiei i 141,396.9 111,926.2 — — —

4 Private corporates .......cccccveeeeeeeieiiinnnnnn. 129,135.3 109,980.9 2,788.2 5,477.8 8,263.6

5 Subsidiaries/Joint ventures .................. 133,339.4 — — — —

6 Others® ... 303,717.9 95,849.9 20,343.0 — —

7 Provision held towards depreciation.... (26,372.9) — — — —
Total ..oooooooiiiiiiiii 783,598.4 393,344.3 23,131.2 5,477.8 8,268.4

1. Amounts reported under columns (a), (b), (c) and (d) above are not mutually exclusive.

2. Includes ¥ 26,075.7 million of application money towards corporate bonds/debentures and pass through certificates.

3. Excludes investments, amounting to % 4,738.4 million, in preference shares of subsidiaries and ¥ 5,381.2 million in subordinated
bonds of subsidiaries, namely ICICI Bank UK PLC and ICICI Bank Canada.

4. Excludes equity shares, units of equity-oriented mutual fund, units of venture capital fund, pass through certificates, security receipts,
commercial papers, certificates of deposit, Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) with original or initial maturity up to one year issued
by corporate (including NBFCs), unlisted convertible debentures and securities acquired by way of conversion of debt.

5 “Others” include deposits under RIDF/RHDF deposit schemes amounting to ¥ 201,983.2 million.

6. Excludes investments in non-Indian government securities by overseas branches amounting to X 6,574.7 million.

The following table sets forth, the issuer composition of investments of the Bank in securities, other than government
and other approved securities at March 31, 2012.

X in million

Sr. Amount Extent of  Extent of ‘below Extent of Extent of

" lIssuer private investment grade’ ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
No. 7 o - 1
placement securities securities* securities*:

(a) (b) (c) (d)

1 PSUS. .t 48,803.2 45,156.0 — — 9.6

2 FIS e 28,032.9 21,649.8 — — —

5 BanksS.....uueieieieieiiiiii e 118,691.4 107,676.0 809.4 — —

4 Private corporates ... .. 163,469.5 143,623.3 283.1 6,944.0 14,521.8

5 Subsidiaries/Joint ventures ................. 136,753.3 — — — —

6 Others 878 ... 250,651.9 39,950.8 25,568.7 — —

7 Provision held towards depreciation... (24,589.7) — — — —
Total ..coooeeeeeecrr e 721,812.5 358,055.9 26,661.2 6,944.0 14,531.4

1. Amounts reported under columns (a), (b), (c) and (d) above are not mutually exclusive.

2. Collateralised debt obligations securities have been included in the above data based on the arranger of such instruments.

3. Includes ¥ 2,619.0 million of application money towards corporate bonds/debentures.

4. Excludes investments amounting to X 7,086.1 million, in preference shares of subsidiaries and ¥ 5,092.1 million in subordinated
bonds of subsidiaries, namely ICICI Bank UK PLC and ICICI Bank Canada.

5 Excludes equity shares, units of equity-oriented mutual fund, units of venture capital fund, pass through certificates, security
receipts, commercial papers, certificates of deposit, unlisted convertible debentures and securities acquired by way of conversion
of debt.

6. Other investments include deposits under RIDF/RHDF deposit schemes amounting to ¥ 181,025.1 million.

7. Excludes investments in non-Indian government securities by overseas branches amounting to ¥ 4,402.4 million.

8. Others include non-SLR Indian government securities of ¥ 96.1 million.
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12.

13.

14.

ii) Non-performing investments in securities, other than government and other approved securities

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the movement in gross non-performing investments in
securities, other than government and other approved securities.

< in million

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

(O] 07T o] o [ o =1 F=1 o Tot =Y PP PP PPP 5,428.4 4,923.8
Additions dUring the YEAI ....c.uuiiii ittt ssbaae e 913.5 1,790.9
Reduction during the Year .........couo i (1,405.5) (1,286.3)
(03 o111 gVl o Y=1 F= Yo T = T 4,936.4 5,428.4
Total ProvisSion NEIA ........coeiiiiiiei e 4,661.4 4,606.3

Sales and transfers of securities to/from Held to Maturity (HTIM) category

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the value of sales and transfers of securities to/from HTM category (excluding
one time transfer of securities to/from HTM category with the approval of Board of Directors permitted to be undertaken
by banks at the beginning of the accounting year and sale to RBI under pre-announced Open Market Operation auctions)
have not exceeded 5% of the book value of the investments held in HTM category at the beginning of the year.

CBLO transaction

Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation (CBLO) is a discounted money market instrument, developed by The
Clearing Corporation of India Limited (CCIL) and approved by RBI, which involves secured borrowings and lending
transactions. At March 31, 2013, the Bank had outstanding borrowings amounting to Nil (March 31, 2012: Nil) and
outstanding lending of Nil (March 31, 2012: Nil) in the form of CBLO. The amortised book value of securities given as
collateral by the Bank to CCIL for availing the CBLO facility was ¥ 86,752.0 million at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012:
% 22,491.9 million).

Derivatives

ICICI Bank is a major participant in the financial derivatives market. The Bank deals in derivatives for balance sheet
management and market making purposes whereby the Bank offers derivative products to its customers, enabling them
to hedge their risks.

Dealing in derivatives is carried out by identified groups in the treasury of the Bank based on the purpose of the transaction.
Derivative transactions are entered into by the treasury front office. Treasury middle office conducts an independent
check of the transactions entered into by the front office and also undertakes activities such as confirmation, settlement,
accounting, risk monitoring and reporting and ensures compliance with various internal and regulatory guidelines.

The market making and the proprietary trading activities in derivatives are governed by the Investment Policy and
Derivative policy of the Bank, which lays down the position limits, stop loss limits as well as other risk limits. The Risk
Management Group (RMG) lays down the methodology for computation and monitoring of risk. The Risk Committee
of the Board (RCB) reviews the Bank’s risk management policy in relation to various risks including credit and recovery
policy, investment policy, derivative policy, ALM policy and operational risk management policy. The RCB comprises
independent directors and the Managing Director and CEOQ.

The Bank measures and monitors risk of its derivatives portfolio using such risk metrics as Value at Risk (VAR), stop
loss limits and relevant greeks for options. Risk reporting on derivatives forms an integral part of the management
information system.

The use of derivatives for hedging purposes is governed by the hedge policy approved by Asset Liability Management
Committee (ALCO). Subject to prevailing RBI guidelines, the Bank deals in derivatives for hedging fixed rate, floating
rate or foreign currency assets/liabilities. Transactions for hedging and market making purposes are recorded separately.
For hedge transactions, the Bank identifies the hedged item (asset or liability) at the inception of the hedge itself. The
effectiveness is assessed at the time of inception of the hedge and periodically thereafter.

Hedge derivative transactions are accounted for pursuant to the principles of hedge accounting. Derivatives for market
making purpose are marked to market and the resulting gain/loss is recorded in the profit and loss account. The premium
on option contracts is accounted for as per Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI) guidelines.

Derivative transactions are covered under International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master agreements
with the respective counter parties. The exposure on account of derivative transactions is computed as per RBI guidelines
and is marked against the credit limits approved for the respective counter-parties.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of derivative positions.

T in million
Sr At March 31, 2013
"~ Particulars Currency Interest rate
No. AP o]
derivatives derivatives
1 Derivatives (Notional principal amount)
a) For hedging 9,542.3 289,235.8
b) For trading 960,781.2 2,162,061.6
2 Marked to market positions®
@) ASSET (F) uurrririiiiiiiiieii it e et e e e e e e e e e e e aanaanrane 40,132.1 25,141.2
b) Liability (-) ........ (38,894.3) (21,768.6)
3 Credit exposure* 103,047.2 73,436.3
4 Likely impact of one percentage change in interest rate (100¥*PV01)°®
a) On hedging derivatives® .........cccciiiiiei e 211.7 13,248.2
b) On trading derivatiVes ........cueeieiiciiiiie e 364.8 1,060.9
5 Maximum and minimum of 100¥*PV01 observed during the year
a) On hedging®
1Y F= T 4 0T 0 RSP (44.4) (11,690.5)
Y0¥ 158 0T o (226.0) (14,194.8)
b) On trading
1Y/ =D 2 11U T o TS (243.9) 2,145.2
Y110 U T o PPNt (1,395.5) 796.1
1. Exchange traded and Over the Counter (OTC) options, cross currency interest rate swaps and currency futures are included in
currency derivatives.
2. Interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, swaptions and exchange traded interest rate derivatives are included in interest rate
derivatives.
8 For trading portfolio including accrued interest. Represents net positions.
4. Includes accrued interest and has been computed based on Current Exposure method.
3 Amounts given are absolute values on a net basis, excluding options.
6. The swap contracts entered into for hedging purpose would have an opposite and offsetting impact with the underlying on-balance

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the details of derivative positions.

sheet items.

< in million
Sr At March 31, 2012
N " Particulars Currency Interest rate
o. AP T
derivatives derivatives
1 Derivatives (Notional principal amount)
a) For hedging 5,062.2 312,533.7
b) For trading 1,214,603.2 2,446,693.6
2 Marked to market positions®
= A== A R 59,517.3 28,323.4
) IO I F=1 o 111 8V PSR (46,244.0) (26,520.7)
3 Credit eXPOSUIe? ..........ooiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e e 118,689.8 80,110.9
4 Likely impact of one percentage change in interest rate (100*PV01)°
a) On hedging derivatives® .........cooiiiiiiiieeie e 45.3 11,751.7
b) On trading derivatiVes .......cccueeiiiiiiiiii et 1,038.9 2,752.9
5 Maximum and minimum of 100¥*PV01 observed during the year
a) On hedging®
LAY/ =5 %] 2 1 1 T o TN (1.3) (9,523.0)
1Y/ 1T 011 LU o PP (50.8) (13,444.8)
b) On trading
Maximum (620.3) 2,956.8
Minimum (1,270.0) 1,899.8
1. Exchange traded and Over the Counter (OTC) options, cross currency interest rate swaps and currency futures are included in
currency derivatives.
2. Interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, swaptions and exchange traded interest rate derivatives are included in interest rate
derivatives.
28 For trading portfolio including accrued interest. Represents net positions.
4. Includes accrued interest and has been computed based on Current Exposure method.
3 Amounts given are absolute values on a net basis, excluding options.
6. The swap contracts entered into for hedging purpose would have an opposite and offsetting impact with the underlying on-balance

sheet items.
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The Bank has exposure in credit derivative instruments including credit default swaps (CDS), credit linked notes,
collateralised debt obligations and principal protected structures. The notional principal amount of these credit derivatives
outstanding at March 31, 2013 was Nil (March 31, 2012: Nil) in funded instrument and X 3,065.6 million (March 31, 2012:
% 10,349.9 million) in non-funded instruments. The profit and loss impact on the above portfolio on account of mark-to-
market and realised gain/losses during the year ended March 31, 2013 was net profit of ¥ 75.0 million (March 31, 2012:
net profit ¥ 561.0 million). At March 31, 2013, the total outstanding mark-to-market position of the above portfolio was
a net gain of ¥ 10.8 million (March 31, 2012: net loss of ¥ 59.6 million). Non Rupee denominated credit derivatives are
marked to market by the Bank based on counter-party valuation quotes, or internal models using inputs from market
sources such as Bloomberg/Reuters, counter-parties and FIMMDA. Rupee denominated credit derivatives are marked to
market by the Bank based on FIMMDA guidelines.

The Bank offers deposits to customers of its offshore branches with structured returns linked to interest, forex, credit or
equity benchmarks. The Bank covers these exposures in the inter-bank market. At March 31, 2013, the net open position
on this portfolio was Nil (March 31, 2012: Nil) with mark-to-market position of ¥ 13.9 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 24.8
million). The profit and loss impact on account of mark-to-market and realised profit and loss during the year ended
March 31, 2013 was a net loss of ¥ 18.7 million (March 31, 2012: net loss of ¥ 5.2 million).

The notional principal amount of forex contracts classified as non-trading at March 31, 2013 amounted to ¥ 526,615.8
million (March 31, 2012: X 745,722.2 million). For these non-trading forex contracts, at March 31, 2013, marked to market
position was asset of ¥ 2,855.4 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 22,528.9 million) and liability of X 6,652.4 million (March 31,
2012: % 12,843.6 million), credit exposure of ¥ 16,131.9 million (March 31, 2012: X 42,639.4 million) and likely impact of
one percentage change in interest rate (100¥PV01) was X 52.3 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 81.6 million).

The notional principal amount of forex contracts classified as trading at March 31, 2013 amounted to ¥ 2,311,888.1
million (March 31, 2012: X 2,814,328.7 million). For these trading forex contracts, at March 31, 2013, marked to market
position was asset of X 38,526.6 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 70,164.7 million) and liability of ¥ 32,462.9 million (March 31,
2012: X 66,449.6 million), credit exposure of ¥ 97,274.0 million (March 31, 2012: % 135,371.9 million) and likely impact of
one percentage change in interest rate (100*PV01) was % 58.9 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 90.1 million). The net overnight
open position at March 31, 2013 was % 573.8 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 299.1 million).

Exchange traded interest rate derivatives and currency options
Exchange traded interest rate derivatives
The Bank had no outstanding exchange traded interest rate derivatives March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: Nil).
Exchange traded currency options
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of exchange traded currency options.
< in million
At At
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Particulars

i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded currency options

undertaken during the Year........ii e 257,249.4 434,623.3
ii)  Notional principal amount of exchange traded currency options

(o 1] £ €= Yo o [ 13 o [PPSR 2,084.3 12,687.8
iii)  Notional principal amount of exchange traded currency options

outstanding and not “highly effective”..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiic e N.A. N.A.
iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded currency options outstanding

and not “highly effective” ... N.A. N.A.

Forward rate agreement (FRA)/Interest rate swaps (IRS)

The Bank enters into FRA and IRS contracts for balance sheet management and market making purposes whereby the
Bank offers derivative products to its customers to enable them to hedge their interest rate risk within the prevalent
regulatory guidelines.

A FRA is a financial contract between two parties to exchange interest payments for a 'notional principal’ amount
on settlement date, for a specified period from start date to maturity date. Accordingly, on the settlement date, cash
payments based on contract rate and the settlement rate, which is the agreed bench-mark/reference rate prevailing on
the settlement date, are made by the parties to one another. The benchmark used in the FRA contracts of the Bank is
London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) of various currencies.
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An IRS is a financial contract between two parties exchanging or swapping a stream of interest payments for a ‘notional
principal’ amount on multiple occasions during a specified period. The Bank deals in interest rate benchmarks like
Mumbai Inter-Bank Offered Rate (MIBOR), Indian government securities Benchmark rate (INBMK), Mumbai Inter Bank
Forward Offer Rate (MIFOR) and LIBOR of various currencies.

These contracts are subject to the risks of changes in market interest rates as well as the settlement risk with the
counterparties.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of the forward rate agreements/interest rate swaps.

T in million
Particulars s -
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
i) The notional principal of FRA/IRS .......cccuiiiiiiiieee e 2,368,069.4 2,603,143.0
ii) Losses which would be incurred if all counter parties failed to fulfil their
obligations under the agreement’ ..........ccoeeeiiii e e 24,232.5 31,219.3
i) Collateral required by the Bank upon entering into FRA/IRS ..........cccvevn.ne — =
IV)  Concentration of Credit FSK2 ........eiiiceceeeeeesesessesessssssssssesssssssssssssssessssssnes 1,971.2 3,261.6
V) The fair value of FRA/IRS? ....c.iiieieieieseseseeesessssasasssssasasasasasosssssssssssssssssssssnsens 21,530.0 25,235.5
1. For trading portfolio both mark-to-market and accrued interest have been considered and for hedging portfolio, only accrued
interest has been considered.
2. Credit risk concentration is measured as the highest net receivable under swap contracts from a particular counter party.
3. Fair value represents mark-to-market including accrued interest.
Advances

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross non-performing assets (NPAs),
net NPAs and provisions.

% in million
Particul Year ended Year ended
G ETES March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
i) Net NPAs (funded) to net advances (%) ......ccceeveveviiiiiieeeieeiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeens 0.77% 0.73%
ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a)  OPENING BAlANCE! ..........cooecuuiiiiiiiiiie et 94,753.3 100,342.6
b) Additions: Fresh NPAs during the year?........cccccocvveeeieeieeieesieseseseseee 35,870.6 29,861.2
ST o o] = I ) S 130,623.9 130,203.8
¢) Reductions during the year?
® UPGradationsS ........ueeeeieiiiiee e (6,600.8) (7,381.1)
* Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts) (11,486.7) (16,234.5)
LI Y =T o) 1 =P (16,458.9) (11,834.9)
YU o X o) 7= | I (34,546.4) (35,450.5)
d) Closing balanCe” (1-2)....ccccueiiiieieiiie et 96,077.5 94,753.3
iii) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance’ ...........ooiiiiiiie e 18,608.4 24,073.6
b) Additions during the year?..........ccceeeiiiieeiiiiee e 20,469.0 13,311.6
c) Reductions during the Year? .........ccccccueeiieeeeiieeciiee e eseeessee s saeeens (16,771.8) (18,776.8)
d)  Closing balanCe! .......ccuuiieiiiiiiiie e e 22,305.6 18,608.4
iv) Movement of provision for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
a)  Opening balanCe! .......ccciiiiiiiiiie i 76,1449 76,269.0
b) Addition during the year? 22,513.4 20,872.5
ST o o] = I ) S 98,658.3 97,141.5
c) Write-off/(write-back) of excess provisions?
* Write-back of excess provision on account of upgradations........ (1,543.3) (2,177.8)
* Write-back of excess provision on account of reduction in NPAs (7,072.7) (7,724.3)
¢ Provision utilised for Write-0ffS......cceeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeee e (16,270.4) (11,094.5)
YU o3 o) 7= | I 7 PRSP (24,886.4) (20,996.6)
d)  Closing balanCe! (1-2).....uueiiiiiieiee it e 73,771.9 76,144.9

N

Net of write-off.
2. For NPAs in credit cards, the difference between the opening and closing balances (other than accounts written off during the
year) is included in additions/(reductions) during the year.
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The revision in the policy for loan classification and provisioning for non-performing loans held at the overseas branches,
as detailed in Schedule 17 Significant Accounting Policies para 1a, does not have significant impact on the loan loss
provisions made by the Bank at March 31, 2013.

Provision on standard assets

The Bank has made provision amounting to X 1,439.1 million during the year ended March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: Nil)
as per applicable RBI guidelines.

The provision on standard assets held by the Bank at March 31, 2013 is ¥ 16,235.1 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 14,796.0
million).

Provision Coverage Ratio
The provision coverage ratio of the Bank at March 31, 2013 computed as per the extant RBI guidelines is 76.8%
(March 31, 2012: 80.4%).

Securitisation
The Bank sells loans through securitisation and direct assignment. The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated,
the information on securitisation and direct assignment activity of the Bank as an originator till May 7, 2012.

T in million, except number of loans securitised

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Total number of loan assets SECUNtISEd...........ciciviivrrrreiieieiee e — —
Total book value of loan assets securitised...........ccccccveeiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiieee e — —
Sale consideration received for the securitised assets ..........ccccceeeeiiiieereeiinns — —
Net gain/(loss) on account of securitisSation.........ccueeeiiiiiieeeieiiiiiee e siieeeeeesines (283.7) (2,016.2)

1. Includes gain/(loss) on deal closures, gain amortised during the year and expenses relating to utilisation of credit enhancement.
X in million

At At

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Outstanding credit enhancement (funded)...........cooeiiiiiieiiiiiiiiee s 4,970.4 5,228.0
Outstanding liquidity faCility............ooveeeiiiiiiiiii e — 327.1
Net outstanding servicing asset/(liability)..........ccueeriieiieeeriiiiiieer e (88.9) (92.4)
Outstanding subordinate CONtrDULIONS........oveiiiieiaiiie e e e s sneas 3,017.8 2,750.5

The outstanding credit enhancement in the form of guarantees amounted to X 8,234.1 million at March 31, 2013 (March
31, 2012: % 11,833.0 million).

Outstanding credit enhancement in the form of guarantees for third party originated securitisation transactions amounted
to ¥ 8,132.0 million at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: X 9,161.5 million) and outstanding liquidity facility for third party
originated securitisation transactions amounted to Nil at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: Nil).

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of provision for securitisation and direct assignment
transactions.

X in million

Particulars Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2013 31,2012

(O] 1T 1] T [ o= =1 o et SRS 1,786.7 2,363.8
Additions dUring the YEAI .......coii i 1,688.6 1,696.7
Deductions during the YEar .......uuuieiiiiiiiie et e e sanes (1,422.8) (2,273.8)
(O3 Lo X1 Te T o Y= F= T g Yot PP 2,052.5 1,786.7

The information on securitisation and direct assignment activity of the Bank as an originator as per RBI guidelines
“Revisions to the Guidelines on Securitisation Transactions” dated May 7, 2012.

a. The Bank, as an originator, had not sold any loan through securitisation after May 7, 2012.
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b. The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the information on the loans sold through direct assignment after

May 7, 2012.
X in million

. At
Particulars March 31, 2013
Total amount of assets sold through direct assignment during the year ended March 31, 2013 731.3
Total amount of exposures retained by the Bank to comply with
Minimum Retention Requirement (MRR)
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

LI Ty o Y= U —

LI O 1 1= U _
b) On-balance sheet exposures

I 1) o Y= PP —

LI O 1 1= = 73.1

Financial assets transferred during the year to securitisation company (SC)/reconstruction company (RC)
The Bank has transferred certain assets to Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARCs) in terms of the guidelines issued by
RBI governing such transfer. For the purpose of the valuation of the underlying security receipts issued by the underlying
trusts managed by ARCs, the security receipts are valued at their respective NAVs as advised by the ARCs.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of the assets transferred.
T in million, except number of accounts

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

N[0T g ] o T=T do) = TeT T o 10 | £ PR 4 2

Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 82.9 44.4

Aggregate CONSIAEratioN....uiuiiiiii e et e e e e e e e e e e e e enaaes 116.5 94.1

Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years? — —

Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book Value .........ccccueeiieiiiiieisiieeee e 33.6 49.7
1. Excludes accounts previously written-off.

2. During the year ended March 31, 2013, asset reconstruction companies have not fully redeemed any of the security receipts.

Gain/loss during the year ended March 31, 2013 amounted to Nil (March 31, 2012: net loss of ¥ 950.6 million).

Details of non-performing assets purchased/sold, excluding those sold to SC/RC

The Bank has not purchased any non-performing assets in terms of the guidelines issued by the RBI circular no. DBOD.
No.BPBC.16/21.04.048/2005-06 dated July 13, 2005. The Bank has sold certain non-performing assets in terms of the
above RBI guidelines.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of non-performing assets sold, excluding those sold to
SC/RC.
< in million, except number of accounts

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

N oo - Yoo o 10 | - 2 7
Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold, excluding those sold to SC/RC 78.8 642.0
PaXele [ g=Te b ) (=R oo T [0 L= =1 i o o PO PP 100.1 641.0
Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value 21.3 (1.0)
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24. Floating provision
Bank holds floating provision of ¥ 1.9 million at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: ¥ 1.9 million) taken over from erstwhile
Bank of Rajasthan on amalgamation.

25. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

U

(I

Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

< in million

At At

Concentration of deposits March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Total deposits of twenty largest depoSitors .......c.cccveeeieeiiiieeesiiieesie e 280,257.1 212,175.1

Deposits of twenty largest depositors as a percentage of total deposits

OF thE BANK..euteiiiiieieeiee ettt 9.58% 8.30%

< in million

At At

Concentration of advances' March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers (including banks)................ 1,095,316.4 1,032,621.4
Advances to twenty largest borrowers as a percentage of total advances

Of the BANK...eeiiiieeeiie et e e e e 15.44% 15.40%

1.  Represents credit exposure (funded and non-funded) including derivatives exposures as per RBI guidelines on exposure

norms.

R in million

Concentration of exposures'’ 5 Sl

P March 31,2013 March 31, 2012

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers (including banks) 1,126,427.8 1,066,030.1

Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers as a percentage of

total exposure of the Bank .........ccocceviiiiiiiiiiiieccee e 14.85% 14.94%
1.  Represents credit and investment exposures as per RBI guidelines on exposure norms.

T in million

. At At

I A March 31,2013 March 31, 2012

Total exposure’ to top four NPA aCCOUNTS ......ccuveeeeeeiiuieeeeeeiiieeeeeciieeeeeens 12,511.3 5,657.3

1. Represents gross exposure (funded and non-funded).
Sector-wise NPAs

Sr. Percentage of NPAs to total
no. Sector advam?es in that sector

At At
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Gross Net Gross Net
1. Agriculture and allied activities .........ccccecvvivieeiieeeciiee e 3.60% 0.75% 4.78% 1.25%
2. Industry (Micro & small, medium and large)......cc...ccccueeennne 2.28% 0.70% 2.02% 0.69%
3. Services 2.47% 1.05% 0.92% 0.24%
4. Personal loans?. 5.80% 0.56% 9.18% 1.26%
Total .......oovvvvvieeieiiieieeeees 3.22% 0.77% 3.62% 0.73%

1.  Represents loans towards agriculture and allied activities that qualify for priority sector lending.

2

business loans, developer financing and dealer funding.

Excludes retail loans towards agriculture and allied activities that qualify for priority sector lending. Excludes commercial
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(lll) Overseas assets, NPAs and revenue

% in million

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Total @SSets’ .....cccivieeiieiiiiee e 935,097.0 875,049.1
Total NPAs (net) 3,624.0 508.1
TOtaAl FEVENUE .. ..uuueeeereeieiiiiiieiiiiiiisieiiisiseeerereeeieeeeeeeieieiasansssnsseseeeeeeeeeeeeeeens 46,925.8 44,327.6

1. Represents the total assets and total revenue of foreign operations as reported in Schedule 18 notes to accounts note no. 4

on information about business and geographical segments, of the financial statements.

(IV) Off-balance sheet special purpose vehicles (SPVs) sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per

accounting norms)

(a) The following table sets forth, the names of SPVs/trusts sponsored by the Bank/subsidiaries which are consolidated.

ﬁ:')_ Name of the SPV sponsored"

A. Domestic
1. ICICI Eco-net Internet and Technology Fund
2. ICICI Equity Fund
3. ICICI Emerging Sectors Fund
4. ICICI Strategic Investments Fund
5. ICICI Venture Value Fund

B. Overseas
None

1.  The nature of business of the above entities is venture capital fund.

(b) The following table sets forth, the names of SPVs/trusts which are not sponsored by the Bank/subsidiaries and

are consolidated.

Sr. Name of the SPV'
No.

A. Domestic
1. Rainbow Fund
B. Overseas

None

1.  The nature of business of the above entities is venture capital fund.

26. Exposure to sensitive sectors

The Bank has exposure to sectors, which are sensitive to asset price fluctuations. The sensitive sectors include capital
markets and real estate.

F34

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the position of exposure to capital market sector.

X in million
At At
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Capital market sector

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible

debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds, the corpus of

which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt.........ccccevieiiiiiiiiiiiiieenns 16,345.8
Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on

clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs),

convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented

MUEUAL FUNAS oot nr e sa e e te e eneesnean 11,7915
Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or

convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken

AS PrIMANY SECUNILY teivviiiuriiiiieiteesiteesiteeesbeeesbae e sseeesseeesbeeessaeessseessteessessseeenseeanes 30,736.6

14,654.4

12,102.9

13,900.4
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T in million

At
March 31, 2013

At
March 31, 2012

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral

iv
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units
of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than
shares/convertible bonds/ convertible debentures/units of equity oriented
mutual funds does not fully cover the advances ........cccccveeienceiiiiecciecenne — —
v Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued
on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers ..........ccceccviiiieiiiieeniiee e, 40,716.7 40,623.6
vi Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares/bonds/
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
FESOUICES ..vuuvertenteseesseesesseeseessessessessessessessesseaseasessees e eaeese e s e e e neesbeasenneebeeneene e e nnnenes — —
vii Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues.............. — —
viii Underwriting commitments taken up by the Bank in respect of primary
issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual funNdS.........coceviiiieniiee e — —
iX  Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading — —
X All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) 9,415.4 9,608.7
DT O 1T YO 83,448.4 112,518.7
Total Exposure to Capital Market ...............c.cccocoveiieiieieiie e 192,454.4 203,408.7
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the summary of exposure to real estate sector.
< in million
At At

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Real estate sector

| DIreCt EXPOSUIE.......ceeiieieiieeiaiieeeeesessnreesessnnreessssnneeesessnneeesessnnreeesannnn 890,029.8 735,286.5
i) Residential MOrtgages........ocuuiieiiiiiiieeeeeiieee e 607,569.0 491,314.1
of which: individual housing loans eligible for priority sector advances 164,309.0 177,313.3
ii) Commercial real estate’ ...........ceuuveviiiiiiiiiieieieeeeee e e eeeaaes 278,036.8 237,900.1
iii) Investments in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and other
SECUNtISEA EXPOSUIE ..evieiiiiiiiieeieiieeeeeeeieteessesreeeessssbneeeseenssneeesannes 4,424.0 6,072.3
. Residential........ccceiiiiiiiiiiee e 4,424.0 6,072.3
b. Commercial real estate — =
] INAIreCt EXPOSUIE .....ccoieeeieeieeeie e e e e e e e e e nn 74,283.0 78,930.8
i) Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).................... 73,046.0 77,476.4
(L) IO 11 3 U= =T 1,237.0 1,454.4
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector............cccccceeviceieencccceeeenscccnnes 964,312.8 814,217.3
1. Commercial real estate exposure include loans to individuals against non-residential premises, loans given to land and building
developers for construction, corporate loans for development of special economic zone, loans to borrowers where servicing of
loans is from a real estate activity and exposures to mutual funds/venture capital funds/private equity funds investing primarily in
the real estate companies.
2. Excludes non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims.
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27. Risk category-wise country exposure
As per the extant RBI guidelines, the country exposure of the Bank is categorised into various risk categories listed in the
following table. The funded country exposure (net) of the Bank as a percentage of total funded assets for Singapore was
1.45% (March 31, 2012: 1.54%) and United Kingdom was 1.34% (March 31, 2012: 1.23%). As the net funded exposure
to Singapore and United Kingdom exceeds 1.0% of total funded assets, the Bank held a provision of ¥ 230.0 million on
country exposure at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: ¥ 240.0 million) based on RBI guidelines.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of exposure (net) and provision held by the bank.

% in million

Riskicategary Exposure (net) at Provision held at Exposure (net) at Provision held at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2013  March 31, 20712  March 31, 2012

Insignificant.........cocoeeeeiiiciiiieeceee e, 546,787.0 230.0 529,612.7 240.0
LOW ittt e 184,890.4 — 186,098.7 —
Moderate.....ccoeeeereeeiieeeeieiccieeee e ee e eeeeeeeeanas 41,721.0 —_ 23,462.4 —
High oo 1,906.7 — 0.1 —
Very High .o — — — —
Restricted.......ccoooiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeeeeee e — — — —
OFf-Credit .oveeeseeeeeiee e — — — —
Total ....cooeieeeiie e 775,305.1 230.0 739,173.9 240.0

28. Details of Single Borrower Limit and Borrower Group Limit exceeded by the Bank
During the year ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, the Bank has complied with the Reserve Bank of India
guidelines on single borrower and borrower group limit.

29. Unsecured advances against intangible assets
The Bank had not made advances against intangible collaterals of the borrowers, which are classified as ‘unsecured’ in
its financial statements at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: Nil) and the estimated value of the intangible collaterals was
Nil at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: Nil).

30. Fixed Assets
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the movement in software acquired by the Bank, as included in fixed assets.

X in million

Particulars o Al
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

At cost at March 31st of preceding Year ..........ccceeviiviiieiiiiie e 7,055.2 6,589.6
Additions dUring the YEAI ....c.uuiiii it eaae e 1,462.3 465.6
Deductions during the YEar ........eeiiccuiiiii et (9.5) —
Depreciation tO date ........uuiei i (6,379.5) (5,637.0)
NN F= ] oY o] S 2,128.5 1,418.2
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31. Description of contingent liabilities
The following table describes the nature of contingent liabilities of the Bank.

Sr.

no.

Contingent liability

Brief Description

1.

Claims against
the Bank, not
acknowledged as
debts

This item represents certain demands made in certain tax and legal matters against the
Bank in the normal course of business and customer claims arising in fraud cases. In
accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy and Accounting Standard 29, the Bank
has reviewed and classified these items as possible obligations based on legal opinion/
judicial precedents/assessment by the Bank.

Liability for partly paid
investments

This item represents amounts remaining unpaid towards purchase of investments.
These payment obligations of the Bank do not have any profit/loss impact.

Liability on account of
outstanding forward
exchange contracts

The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts in its normal course of business,
to exchange currencies at a pre-fixed price at a future date. This item represents the
notional principal amount of such contracts, which are derivative instruments. With
respect to the transactions entered into with its customers, the Bank generally enters
into off-setting transactions in the inter-bank market. This results in generation of a
higher number of outstanding transactions, and hence a large value of gross notional
principal of the portfolio, while the net market risk is lower.

Guarantees given on
behalf of constituents,
acceptances,
endorsements and
other obligations

This item represents the guarantees and documentary credits issued by the Bank in
favour of third parties on behalf of its customers, as part of its trade finance banking
activities with a view to augment the customers’ credit standing. Through these
instruments, the Bank undertakes to make payments for its customers’ obligations,
either directly or in case the customer fails to fulfill their financial or performance
obligations.

Currency swaps,
interest rate swaps,
currency options and
interest rate futures

This item represents the notional principal amount of various derivative instruments
which the Bank undertakes in its normal course of business. The Bank offers these
products to its customers to enable them to transfer, modify or reduce their foreign
exchange and interest rate risks. The Bank also undertakes these contracts to manage
its own interest rate and foreign exchange positions. With respect to the transactions
entered into with its customers, the Bank generally enters into off-setting transactions
in the inter-bank market. This results in generation of a higher number of outstanding
transactions, and hence a large value of gross notional principal of the portfolio, while
the net market risk is lower.

Other items for
which the Bank is
contingently liable

Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable primarily include the amount of
Government securities bought/sold and remaining to be settled on the date of financial
statements. This also includes the value of sell down options and other facilities
pertaining to securitisation the notional principal amounts of credit derivatives, amount
applied in public offers under Application Supported by Blocked Amounts (ASBA) and
the amount that the Bank is obligated to pay under capital contracts. Capital contracts
are job orders of a capital nature which have been committed.

32. Bancassurance
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of income derived from bancassurance business.

% in million
Sr. . Year ended Year ended
No. Nature of income March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
1. Income from selling life insurance Policies.........ccocvveeerverereeeeseseeeeeeeeseenns 3,786.6 3,004.1
2. Income from selling non life insurance policies .......cccccecveeeiiiciieeeiciiveenn. 466.0 369.1
3. Income from selling mutual fund/collective investment scheme products 1,004.3 693.1
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33.

F38

Staff retirement benefits
Pension

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, movement of the present value of the defined benefit obligation,

fair value of plan assets and other details for pension benefits.

% in million

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Opening obligations ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiie e s 9,602.7 8,842.9
=T Y/ e e 0T PSS 250.6 251.6
INTEIEST COST ..utiiiiiiiiiiiie i i ettt e ettt e et e e e e e e e ab e e s e s b e e e e s e snbeeeeaesnneaeeennnnnes 793.7 707.8
Actuarial (Gain)/lOSS ... .ueeieiiiieiie ettt e s e e ne e e e 2,017.8 2,329.8
Liabilities extinguished on settlement.............oooi i (1,960.1) (2,268.7)
LT a1 {1 € o 1o SRR (312.2) (260.7)
Obligations at the end of year.............cccooviiiiiiiiii e 10,392.5 9,602.7
Opening plan assets, at fair value.................cccooiiiiiii e, 9,379.5 8,467.4
Expected return on plan @sSets .......ooioieiciiiiiiiiiiiieiec e 728.5 652.9
Actuarial gain/(l0SS) . .uuueeiiiiiiiiiii ittt aane 102.3 51.7
Assets distributed on settlement..........cueieeiiiiiiiiiciccicc . (2,177.9) (2,413.5)
Contributions 1,806.6 2,881.7
Benefits paid (312.2) (260.7)
Closing plan assets, at fair value.............ccccoccuiieiiiiiii e 9,526.8 9,379.5
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year .........cccccoeeiiiiiiien i 9,526.8 9,379.5
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the year-............ 10,392.5 9,602.7
Amount not recognised as an asset (limit in Para 59(b)).......cccccevviiiiiiiiiiiinnennn. — —
ASSEL/(lIADIlItY) ...ooooveiiiiiee e (865.7) (223.2)
Cost for the year
S T=T Y/ o= o101 RN 250.6 251.6
(T (= T=] Ao oY) 793.7 707.8
Expected return on plan @sSets ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiier s (728.5) (652.9)
Y AXe (U E T T e F=T1 o) A Uo T RS 1,915.5 2,278.2
Curtailments & settlements (gain)/l0SS ......ceieicieeieiiiiiiiie e 217.8 144.8
Effect of the limit in para 5(D)......ccouiciiiiiiiiiiie s — —
VL T X 2,449.1 2,729.5
Actual return 0N Plan @SSELS ....ciiiiuiiiiiiiiiiie e 828.7 704.6
Expected employer’s contribution NEXt YEar.......ccccuveviieiiuieeniiiiiiiieeeesiieeee e 670.0 750.0
Investment details of plan assets
Insurer Managed FUNAS! ......ooociiiiii i 77.74% 78.93%
Government of INdia SECUIILIES......c.cciiiiiiiiiciieiee e 7.62% 8.59%
(OFeT 4 oToT - 110 =] o T F- N PP P RSP 9.31% 9.40%
L1 1= PSSR 5.33% 3.08%
Assumptions
LT =Y =] A = < TR 8.00% 8.35%
Salary escalation rate:
ON BASIC PAY ....eeeeiiiee et 1.50% 1.50%
On Dearness RElEf ... e e e 7.00% 7.00%
Estimated rate of return on plan @SSEtS .......cccevcueeiieeeriiiiriiiieeiieeesree e e seeens 8.00% 8.00%

1. Majority of the funds are invested in Government of India securities and corporate bonds.
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Estimated rate of return on plan assets is based on our expectation of the average long-term rate of return on investments

of the Fund during the estimated term of the obligations.
Experience adjustment

< in million

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Yearended

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
[ P Y Iz 1T Y= £ R 9,526.8 9,379.5 8,467.4 1,839.9 2,145.3
Defined benefit obligations.........cccovecveeeiiicciiiee e, 10,392.5 9,602.7 8,842.9 1,748.7 1,932.2
Amount not recognised as an asset (limit in para 59(b) — — — 7.7 51.2
SUrplus/(defiCit) .oeeeeivueeeiieiiiiie e (865.7) (223.2) (375.5) 83.5 161.9
Experience adjustment on plan assets........ccccceevuveen. 102.3 51.7 69.1 (130.7) 144.8
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities..................... 1,5625.2 2,692.3 689.7 7196.9 6.6
Gratuity

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, movement of the present value of the defined benefit obligation,

fair value of plan assets and other details for gratuity benefits. Z in million
. Year ended Year ended
FETEN A March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
Opening obligations..............c.uuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,247.2 5,082.7
Add: Adjustment for exchange fluctuation on opening obligations................ 3.8 5.8
Adjusted opening obligations 5,251.0 5,088.5
SErvice COSt ..iiviiiiiiiiiniiiiiieie e eeeeeeeeaanaaas 368.8 379.7
Interest COSt ..vvuvviiiriiiiiiiiiiiiees 428.1 419.5
Actuarial (gain)/10ss........ccceeeen... 267.2 (57.4)
Past SEIVICE COST ...iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeie e e ee e e eeeesissase e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeernsaa s 0.6 —
Liability assumed on acquisition/(settled on divestiture) ................. 4.1 70.1
Benefits paid ........coceiiiiiiiiiiie (676.7) (593.2)
Obligations at the end of the year 5,643.1 5,247.2
Opening plan assets, at fair value 5,027.4 5,182.4
Expected return on plan assets................. 375.8 395.5
Actuarial gain/(loss) 34.4 20.1
Contributions .......cccvvvvvvnnnnnnn. 764.6 12.8
Assets acquired on acquisition/(distributed on divestiture) ............. 5.0 9.8
Benefits paid ......oooiiiiiii e (676.7) (593.2)
Closing plan assets, at fair value.............cccccceeeenennnnn. 5,530.5 5,027.4
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5,530.5 5,027.4
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the year 5,643.1 5,247.2
Amount not recognised as an asset (limit in Para 59(b)) — —
ASSEL/(lTADIIITY) ... e e e e e e a e (112.6) (219.8)
Cost for the year
BT =Y VATt oo = P 368.8 379.7
INtErest COSt .uuvinniiiiiiiiieiiirnisee e eeeeee 428.1 419.5
Expected return on plan assets................ (375.8) (395.5)
Actuarial (gain)/l0Ss.......uuurieieiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnns 232.8 (77.5)
Past SErvice COSt .....ouvvvvrrrrmrenniiiieeeereeeenens 0.6 —
Exchange fluctuation loss/(gain) 3.8 5.8
Losses/(Gains) on “Acquisition/Divestiture”................. — 0.3
Effect of the limit in para 59(b) — —
Netcost..........oovervrrivniiciiinneeen 658.3 332.3
Actual return on plan assets 410.2 415.5
Expected employer’s contribution next year 403.9 253.6
Investment details of plan assets
Insurer Managed FUNAS ......uuuiiiiicieciiiii e 9.95% 50.70%
Government of India securities ................ 28.07% 7.77%
Corporate Bonds.........eeuieeieeieeeeeeeeeeennnnnns 27.81% 18.46%
Special Deposit schemes 5.26% 5.78%
EQUItY .eveeeieieieieeiieee e 12.89% 9.73%
L0 1 =T PP RPPPRPPPI 16.02% 7.56%
Assumptions
Interest rate.........coevveeveevnnnnnnnnn. 7.95% 8.30%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00%

Estimated rate of return on plan assets is based on our expectation of the average long-term rate of return on investments of the Fund

during the estimated term of the obligations.
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Experience adjustment
X in million

Year ended Year ended Year ended Yearended Yearended

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
[ P Y I 1T Y= £ 5,530.5 5,027.4 5,182.4 2,507.5 2,272.1
Defined benefit obligations..........cccccceeeeiiiiieeeecinns 5,643.1 5,247.2 5,082.7 2,310.5 2,195.7
Amount not recognised as an asset
(limit in para 59(b)) ..eeeevvveeeei i — — — 47.9 7.9
SUurplus/(deficit) .....ooovieiciiiiiiiiiire e (112.6) (219.8) 99.7 149.1 68.5
Experience adjustment on plan assets.................... 344 20.1 (63.2) 168.8 (118.0)
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities................ 153.6 44.1 79.0 (0.8) (4.1)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into consideration inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors.

Provident Fund (PF)

As there is no liability towards interest rate guarantee on exempt provident fund on the basis of actuarial valuation, Bank
has made no provision for the year ended March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: X 17.9 million).

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation for provident fund.
< in million

: Year ended
e March 31, 2013
(01611 0114 T o] o] [T F= 14 o) 4 -3 12,147.6
T Y[ oX oY1 PR 783.4
=T = o L= PSP 1,003.8
PN o (U E= T =TI (o F= Tl ) VAo Yo PRSPPI (26.4)
EMpPloyEees CONTIIDULION ....ciiiiiiiiii i s s e e snne s 1,380.7
E] oY [T W =TSR E-S U g Y=o o) = et 81714 o o PSS 104.8
21T 0 1= 11 €= o= | (o PSRN (1,674.4)
Obligations at end of the Year..................ooii e 13,719.5
(0o To 41Ty Yo o] F= T T ET 1 PR 12,129.8
Expected return 0N Plan @SSELS ....ciiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e s e e e e s e e e e e e e an e e e e e e aenanrnn, 1,017.2
ACTUANTAL GAIN/(IOSS) e nteeiee ettt ettt ettt et e e e e ettt e e e e e as e e e e e e s neeeeeeennbeeeeeannneeeeesnnneaaeeannnnen (22.0)
L=y a] o1 [0}V 2= oo o] a1 | o U o oI PPN 783.4
=0T 0] (o)== TR oTo T a1 | o TU £ [0 o I PP PPPPP P S 1,380.7
Assets acquired on Acquisition/(Distributed on DIVESTITUIe) .......cceeieeiiiiiiieiiiiiiiie e 104.8
21T 1= 1 €= o - [ Lo P PPN (1,674.4)
(0 [0 T T [ o] = 1 T E1=1 =) 13,719.5
Plan assets at the @Nd Of The YEAI........cciii i e e st e e e e e sba e e e s e e enbeeeeeeennns 13,719.5
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the year..........ccccoecviiiieiiiiiiiiee e, 13,719.5
Y=Y 4 (T o 1147 RSP —
Cost for the year
Y=Y [T o1 oY) PRSPPI 783.4
L LT = oo L= PR 1,003.8
Expected return 0N Plan @SSETS ......cuuiiiiiiiiiiei et ee e e et e e e e et e e e e e s e e e e s anne e e e e s anseeeesesannneeesaaannnneeeeannns (1,017.2)
Y AXe (U Va1 I (e F= 110 A Fo =T PP P PP (4.4)
)= T X PP 765.6
Actual RETUIN ON PlaN ASSEIS.....cciiiiiiii ittt e e e e s e e e s e e e e e e e nnn e e e e s ennneeeeeennneas 995.2
Expected employer's coNtribUtion NEXt YEAI ........eiiiiiiiiiie et e e 838.2
Investment details of plan assets
Government Of INAIA SECUITIES. ... .uiiiiieiiiiee ettt s e e e e s re e e s anr e e s ne e e e s nneesnneesnnes 39.20%
(0o T4 oToT - 110 o Yo To (- PRSP RP 50.14%
SpecCial dEPOSIT SCREIME ....uiiiiiiiiiiee et e st e e e st e e e e e st e e e e e sabae e e e e sanbaneeeesnnbanenaean 3.87%
(1 =T SRR 6.79%
Assumption
DTS oo TU ) - | (PSP 7.95%
Expected rate Of retUrn ON @SSETS......uuiiiiiiiiiieiieiitiee e et e e e st e e e e st e e e e seab e e e e e sabee e e s e snbaeeesensnsnneesannnns 8.45%
Discount rate for the remaining term to maturity of iINVeStMEeNts ..........cccovovviieiiiniiciecc e 8.05%
Average historic yield on the iINVESTMENT.........ccuuiiiiiiiii e 8.55%
Guaranteed rate Of FELUIN ......cuiiieieiisie ettt 8.50%
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Experience adjustment

% in million

. Year ended
ST March 31, 2013
e P = T Y=Y S 13,719.5
D=y T T=To [ o =T T=Y ko) o] [Te =T Ao} o TSP PR: 13,719.5
Amount not recognised as an asset (limit in para 59(b)) —
SUrplus/(defiCit) ..occuieeee e —
Experience adjustment 0N Plan @SSELS.....cuuuuiiiiiiurieiiiiiities ettt e s e st e e e st e e e s s st ee e e e ssnae e e e e snnaeeeeennnes (22.1)
Experience adjustment 0N Plan [1@ilitieS . .uuuuuuuuiiiiiiieiiiiirsrerreeeeeeeeerrsieieeiaaisnsssssssssseseereeeeereeamamanassnsnsssees (26.4)

Bank has contributed employer’s contribution of X 1,244.6 million to provident fund for the year ended March 31, 2013
(March 31, 2012: X 1,115.3 million), which includes compulsory contribution made towards employee pension scheme
under Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Superannuation Fund

Bank has contributed employer’s contribution of ¥ 100.5 million for the year March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: ¥ 114.8
million) to superannuation fund.

Movement in provision for credit card/debit card/savings account reward points

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, movement in provision for credit card/debit card/savings account
reward points.

T in million

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Opening provision for reward POINTS .......ciciceieerieiiieeee e e e 7125 462.5
Provision for reward points made during the year.........ccccoeeoeiiiieeniieescieecee 637.1 769.7
Utilisation/write-back of provision for reward points .........ccccccccveeeeiiiiiineecnnnes (603.7) (519.7)
Closing provision for reward POINtS’ .......cccciceeiiiiiiiiiisiieee e seee s e seee e 745.9 712.5
1. The closing provision is based on the actuarial valuation of accumulated credit/debit card/savings account reward points. This

amount will be utilised towards redemption of the credit/debit card/savings accounts reward points.

Provisions and contingencies
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of provisions and contingencies included in profit
and loss account.

< in million

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Provisions for depreciation of iNVESTMENTS ........ccccuvieiiiiiiiee i 1,261.8 4,132.0
Provision towards non-performing and other assets 13,948.4 9,931.8
Provision towards income tax 29,982.0 21,874.2
Deferred tax adjuStMENT ........oouueiieiiiiiiee et e e nanees 660.2 1,446.5
Provision towards Wealth taX...........uccuieeiiiiiiiiei i 70.0 61.0
Other provisions and CONtINGENCIES” ......cuviiiuieiiiiie e 2,815.2 1,766.6
Total provisions and cONtiNGENCIeS..............ccccuviiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieee e 48,737.6 39,212.1

1. Includes provision towards standard assets amounting to X 1,439.1 million (March 31, 2012: Nil)

Provisions for income tax
The provision for income tax (including deferred tax) for the year ended March 31, 2013 amounted to ¥ 30,642.2 million
(March 31, 2012: X 23,320.7 million).

The Bank has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents required by transfer pricing
legislation under section 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Finance Act, 2012 has enhanced the scope of transfer pricing
to specified transaction with domestic related parties. The Bank is of the opinion that all transactions with international
and domestic related parties are primarily at arm’s length so that the above legislation do not have material impact on
the financial statements.

Deferred tax
At March 31, 2013, the Bank has recorded net deferred tax asset of ¥ 24,793.0 million (March 31, 2012: X 25,453.2 million),
which has been included in other assets.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of deferred tax assets and liabilities into major items.
X in million
At At
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Deferred tax asset

Provision for bad and doubtful debts........c.cccuiiiiiiiiiiiniii e 27,146.3 27,348.8
(O o] | - | [0 1T PP PPPPRRP: 63.1 79.5
(@ 41T TSP 2,265.4 2,299.3
Total deferred tax @sset.............ceviiiiiiiiieii e 29,474.8 29,727.6
Deferred tax liability

Depreciation on fiXed @SSETS.......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4,682.5 4,275.1
Total deferred tax liability 4,682.5 4,275.1
Deferred tax asset/(liability) pertaining to foreign branches ...........ccccccoeeeneeee. 0.7 0.7
Total net deferred tax asset/(liability)..............ccccoeeiiiiiiiiiii e, 24,793.0 25,453.2

Dividend distribution tax

For the purpose of computation of dividend distribution tax on the proposed dividend, the Bank has reduced the dividend
received from its Indian subsidiaries, on which dividend distribution tax has been paid by the subsidiaries as per the
provisions of Section 115-0 of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Related Party Transactions
The Bank has transactions with its related parties comprising subsidiaries, associates/joint ventures/other related entities,
key management personnel and relatives of key management personnel.

Subsidiaries

ICICI Bank UK PLC, ICICI Bank Canada, ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company, ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company Limited', ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited?, ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company
Limited', ICICI Securities Limited, ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited, ICICI Home Finance Company Limited,
ICICI Venture Funds Management Company Limited, ICICI International Limited, ICICI Trusteeship Services Limited, ICICI
Investment Management Company Limited, ICICI Securities Holdings Inc., ICICI Securities Inc., ICICI Prudential Trust
Limited" and ICICI Prudential Pension Funds Management Company Limited".

1. Jointly controlled entities.

Associates/joint ventures/other related entities

ICICI Equity Fund’, ICICI Eco-net Internet and Technology Fund', ICICI Emerging Sectors Fund’, ICICI Strategic Investments
Fund', ICICI Kinfra Limited’, FINO PayTech Limited (formerly known as Financial Inclusion Network & Operations Limited),
TCWI/ICICI Investment Partners Limited, |-Process Services (India) Private Limited, NIIT Institute of Finance, Banking and
Insurance Training Limited, ICICI Venture Value Fund', Commm Trade Services Limited, ICICI Foundation for Inclusive Growth,
I-Ven Biotech Limited', Rainbow Fund, ICICI Merchant Services Private Limited, Mewar Aanchalik Gramin Bank, India Infradebt
Limited?.

1. Entities consolidated as per Accounting Standard (AS) 21 on ‘Consolidated Financial Statements'.

2. This entity was incorporated and identified as a related party during the three months ended December 31, 2012.

Key management personnel
Ms. Chanda Kochhar, Mr. N. S. Kannan, Mr. K. Ramkumar, Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal.

Relatives of key management personnel

Mr. Deepak Kochhar, Mr. Arjun Kochhar, Ms. Aarti Kochhar, Mr. Mahesh Advani, Ms. Varuna Karna, Ms. Sunita R. Advani,
Ms. Rangarajan Kumudalakshmi, Ms. Aditi Kannan, Mr. Narayanan Raghunathan, Mr. Narayanan Rangarajan, Mr. Narayanan
Krishnamachari, Mr. R. Shyam, Ms. R. Suchithra, Mr. K. Jayakumar, Mr. R. Krishnaswamy, Ms. J. Krishnaswamy, Ms. Sangeeta
Sabharwal.

The following were the significant transactions between the Bank and its related parties for the year ended March 31,
2013. A specific related party transaction is disclosed as a material related party transaction wherever it exceeds 10% of
all related party transactions in that category.
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Insurance services

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank paid insurance premium to insurance subsidiaries amounting to ¥ 969.6
million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 957.9 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were payment of
insurance premium to ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited amounting to X 871.8 million (March 31, 2012:
% 775.8 million) and to ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited amounting to ¥ 97.8 million (March 31, 2012: X
182.1 million).

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank’s insurance claims (including the claims received by the Bank on
behalf of key management personnel) from the insurance subsidiaries amounted to ¥ 503.6 million (March 31, 2012: %
411.5 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company Limited amounting to ¥ 444.3 million (March 31, 2012: X 355.2 million) and with ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company Limited amounting to ¥ 59.3 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 56.3 million).

Fees and commission income

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank received fees from its subsidiaries amounting to ¥ 4,726.6 million (March
31, 2012: ¥ 3,841.2 million), from its associates/joint ventures/other related entities amounting to ¥ 13.9 million (March
31, 2012: ¥ 19.9 million) and from relatives of key management personnel amounting to ¥ 0.1 million (March 31, 2012:
Nil). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company
Limited amounting to ¥ 3,860.1 million (March 31, 2012: X 3,077.0 million) and with ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company Limited amounting to ¥ 516.6 million (March 31, 2012: X 421.0 million).

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank received commission on bank guarantees from its subsidiaries
amounting to ¥ 41.8 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 32.4 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013
were with ICICI Bank UK PLC amounting to X 35.1 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 24.8 million) and with ICICI Bank Eurasia
Limited Liability Company amounting to X 5.6 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 5.6 million).

Lease of premises, common corporate and facilities expenses

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank recovered from its subsidiaries an amount of ¥ 1,099.3 million (March
31, 2012: ¥ 1,112.1 million), from its associates/joint ventures/other related entities an amount of ¥ 147.9 million (March
31, 2012: X 38.4 million) and from its key management personnel an amount of X 0.1 million (March 31, 2012: Nil) for
lease of premises, common corporate and facilities expenses. The material transactions for the year ended March 31,
2013 were with ICICI Home Finance Company Limited amounting to X 273.3 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 258.6 million),
ICICI Securities Limited amounting to ¥ 229.1 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 272.0 million), ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company Limited amounting to X 164.0 million (March 31, 2012: % 162.6 million), ICICI Bank UK PLC amounting to X 151.2
million (March 31, 2012: X 125.1 million), ICICI Merchant Services Private Limited amounting to I 147.9 million (March 31,
2012: X 38.4 million) and with ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited amounting to ¥ 143.6 million (March
31, 2012: ¥ 138.4 million).

Secondment of employees

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank recovered towards deputation of employees from its subsidiaries an
amount of ¥ 52.2 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 37.9 million) and from its associates/joint ventures/other related entities an
amount of ¥ 6.6 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 7.0 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were
with ICICI Investment Management Company Limited amounting to I 35.6 million (March 31, 2012: X 28.2 million), ICICI
Securities Limited amounting to ¥ 14.5 million (March 31, 2012: X 11.4 million) and with I-Process Services (India) Private
Limited amounting to X 6.6 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 7.0 million).

Purchase of investments

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank purchased certain investments from its subsidiaries amounting to
% 23,702.1 million (March 31, 2012: X 5,757.0 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were
with ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited amounting to ¥ 17,330.7 million (March 31, 2012: X 3,927.5 million), ICICI
Lombard General Insurance Company Limited amounting to ¥ 3,314.5 million (March 31, 2012: X 154.1 million) and with
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited amounting to < 3,056.9 million (March 31, 2012: X 1,675.4 million).

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank invested in the equity shares of India Infradebt Limited amounting to
3 900.0 million (March 31, 2012: Nil), in the share application money for equity shares of ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company Limited amounting to ¥ 740.0 million (March 31, 2012: Nil), in the share application money for equity shares of
Mewar Aanchalik Gramin Bank amounting to X 18.6 million (March 31, 2012: Nil) and in equity warrants of FINO PayTech
Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2012: X 40.0 million).
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Sale of investments

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank sold certain investments to its subsidiaries amounting to ¥ 12,119.1
million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 9,532.7 million) and to its associates/joint ventures/other related entities amounting to Nil
(March 31, 2012: X 48.7 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Securities
Primary Dealership Limited amounting to I 6,459.7 million (March 31, 2012: X 2,783.6 million), ICICI Prudential Life
Insurance Company Limited amounting to ¥ 4,088.0 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 5,097.7 million) and with ICICI Lombard
General Insurance Company Limited amounting to ¥ 1,321.2 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 1,560.3 million).

Investment in Certificate of Deposits (CDs)/bonds issued by ICICI Bank

During the year ended March 31, 2013, subsidiaries have invested in CDs/bonds issued by the Bank amounting to
% 1,914.0 million (March 31, 2012: X 4,622.5 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were
with ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited amounting to X 1,407.2 million (March 31, 2012: X 3,165.6 million)
and with ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited amounting to ¥ 506.8 million (March 31, 2012: % 1,002.5 million).

Redemption/buyback of investments

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank received a consideration from ICICI Bank UK PLC amounting to ¥ 5,428.5
million (equivalent to USD 100.0 million) (March 31, 2012: Nil) on account of buyback of equity/preference shares by ICICI
Bank UK PLC.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank received a consideration from ICICI Emerging Sectors Fund amounting
to Nil (March 31, 2012: % 1,396.8 million) on account of redemption of units and distribution of gain/loss on units by ICICI
Emerging Sectors Fund.

Reimbursement of expenses to subsidiaries

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank reimbursed expenses to its subsidiaries amounting to ¥ 29.6 million
(March 31, 2012: X 40.6 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Home
Finance Company Limited amounting to X 16.5 million (March 31, 2012: Nil), ICICI Bank Canada amounting to X 7.3 million
(March 31, 2012: X 6.7 million) and with ICICI Bank UK PLC amounting to ¥ 5.8 million (March 31, 2012: X 33.9 million).

Reimbursement of expenses to the Bank

During the year ended March 31, 2013, subsidiaries reimbursed expenses to the Bank amounting to ¥ 29.1 million
(March 31, 2012: ¥ 19.0 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Bank UK
PLC amounting to ¥ 18.0 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 13.4 million), ICICI Home Finance Company Limited amounting to X
6.1 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 0.2 million) and with ICICI Bank Canada amounting to ¥ 5.0 million (March 31, 2012: X 5.4
million).

Brokerage, fees and other expenses

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank paid brokerage, fees and other expenses to its subsidiaries amounting
to ¥ 557.3 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 491.5 million) and to its associates/joint ventures/other related entities amounting
to ¥ 2,653.2 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 1,832.5 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013
were with ICICI Merchant Services Private Limited amounting to ¥ 1,305.2 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 953.9 million),
I-Process Services (India) Private Limited amounting to I 1,045.2 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 606.5 million), ICICI Home
Finance Company Limited amounting to X 373.7 million (March 31, 2012: X 349.8 million) and with FINO PayTech Limited
amounting to Y 258.4 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 259.0 million).

Income on custodial services

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank recovered custodial charges from its subsidiaries amounting to
% 5.1 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 3.5 million) and from its associates/joint ventures/other related entities amounting to
% 0.9 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 1.4 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with
ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited amounting to ¥ 4.8 million (March 31, 2012: X 3.3 million) and with ICICI
Strategic Investments Fund amounting to ¥ 0.3 million (March 31, 2012: % 0.6 million).

Interest expenses

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank paid interest to its subsidiaries amounting to ¥ 390.9 million (March 31,
2012: X 336.4 million), to its associates/joint ventures/other related entities amounting to ¥ 272.5 million (March 31, 2012:
% 160.5 million), to its key management personnel amounting to ¥ 2.9 million (March 31, 2012: % 2.0 million) and to relatives
of key management personnel amounting to ¥ 1.7 million (March 31, 2012: X 1.1 million). The material transactions for
the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Securities Limited amounting to ¥ 184.5 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 111.6
million), Mewar Aanchalik Gramin Bank amounting to ¥ 162.4 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 128.9 million), ICICI Prudential Life
Insurance Company Limited amounting to X 148.4 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 129.1 million) and with India Infradebt Limited
amounting to ¥ 84.5 million (March 31, 2012: Nil).
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Interest income

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank received interest from its subsidiaries amounting to ¥ 1,781.2 million
(March 31, 2012: ¥ 1,686.8 million), from its associates/joint ventures/other related entities amounting to ¥ 95.1 million
(March 31, 2012: X 49.1 million), from its key management personnel amounting to ¥ 0.4 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 0.5
million) and from relatives of key management personnel amounting to ¥ 0.7 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 0.7 million). The
material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Home Finance Company Limited amounting to
% 1,202.0 million (March 31, 2012: X 1,181.4 million) and with ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company amounting to
% 245.9 million (March 31, 2012: X 210.9 million).

Other income

The Bank undertakes derivative transactions with its subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and other related entities.
The Bank manages its foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from these transactions by covering them in the
market. During the year ended March 31, 2013, the net gain of the Bank on forex and derivative transactions entered with
subsidiaries was % 304.5 million (March 31, 2012: net loss of ¥ 337.3 million). The material transactions for the year ended
March 31, 2013 were gain of ¥ 235.7 million (March 31, 2012: loss of ¥ 620.0 million) with ICICI Bank UK PLC, gain of
% 170.4 million (March 31, 2012: gain of ¥ 352.9 million) with ICICI Bank Canada, loss of ¥ 162.5 million (March 31, 2012:
gain of X 168.4 million) with ICICI Home Finance Company Limited and gain of X 31.6 million (March 31, 2012: loss of
% 242.2 million) with ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited.

While the Bank within its overall position limits covers these transactions in the market, the above amounts represent
only the transactions with its subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and other related entities and not the offsetting/
covering transactions.

Dividend income

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank received dividend from its subsidiaries amounting to 3 9,117.6 million
(March 31, 2012: ¥ 7,364.1 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Prudential
Life Insurance Company Limited amounting to X 3,271.5 million (March 31, 2012: X 2,321.7 million), ICICI Bank Canada
amounting to ¥ 1,666.2 million (March 31, 2012: X 283.0 million), ICICI Home Finance Company Limited amounting to
% 1,389.9 million (March 31, 2012: % 1,714.1 million) and with ICICI Bank UK PLC amounting to ¥ 1,307.3 million (March
31, 2012: % 1,216.9 million).

Dividend paid

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank paid dividend to its key management personnel amounting to
% 6.7 million (March 31, 2012: X 4.5 million). The dividend paid during the year ended March 31, 2013 to Ms. Chanda
Kochhar was % 5.1 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 3.8 million), to Mr. N. S. Kannan was X 1.2 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 0.7
million) and to Mr. K. Ramkumar was % 0.4 million (March 31, 2012: Nil).

Remuneration to whole-time directors

Remuneration paid to the whole-time directors of the Bank during the year ended March 31, 2013 was X 154.9 million
(March 31, 2012: X 111.3 million). The remuneration paid for the year ended March 31, 2013 to Ms. Chanda Kochhar was
% 54.2 million (March 31, 2012: % 37.7 million), to Mr. N. S. Kannan was % 32.2 million (March 31, 2012: X 25.0 million), to Mr.
K. Ramkumar was ¥ 42.7 million (March 31, 2012: X 25.4 million) and to Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal was ¥ 25.8 million (March 31,
2012: X 23.2 million).

Sale of fixed assets

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank sold fixed assets to its subsidiaries amounting to ¥ 2.1 million (March 31,
2012: X 18.4 million) and to its key management personnel amounting to ¥ 0.7 million (March 31, 2012: Nil). The material
transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013 were with ICICI Securities Limited amounting to ¥ 1.9 million (March
31, 2012: X 1.0 million), ICICI Venture Funds Management Company Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2012: X 14.7
million), ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2012: ¥ 2.7 million) and with
Mr. K. Ramkumar amounting to ¥ 0.7 million (March 31, 2012: Nil).

Purchase of fixed assets

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank purchased fixed assets from its subsidiaries amounting to X 2.6 million
(March 31, 2012: X 9.4 million). The material transactions for the year ended March 31, 2012 were with ICICI Venture
Funds Management Company Limited amounting to ¥ 1.8 million (March 31, 2012: Nil), ICICI Prudential Asset Management
Company Limited amounting to ¥ 0.8 million (March 31, 2012: Nil), ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited
amounting to Nil (March 31, 2012: X 4.6 million) and with ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited amounting to Nil
(March 31, 2012: X 4.2 million).
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Sale of gold coins
During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank sold gold coins to ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited
amounting to ¥ 1.7 million (March 31, 2012: X 45.4 million).

Donation
During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank has given donation to ICICI Foundation for Inclusive Growth amounting
to ¥ 80.0 million (March 31, 2012: X 239.7 million).

Purchase of loan
During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank purchased loans from ICICI Bank UK PLC amounting to Nil (March 31,
2012: % 12,870.5 million).

Sale of loan

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Bank sold a loan to ICICI Bank UK PLC amounting to ¥ 1,357.1 million (March
31, 2012: % 2,543.8 million).

Purchase of bank guarantees

Bank guarantees issued by ICICI Bank UK PLC on behalf of its clients were transferred to the Bank amounting to
% 12,221.2 million during the year ended March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: X 1,279.2 million).

Letters of Comfort

The Bank has issued letters of comfort on behalf of its banking subsidiaries. The details of the letters are given below.

On behalf of To Purpose
ICICI Bank UK PLC Financial Services Financially support ICICI Bank UK PLC to ensure that it
Authority, UK (‘FSA)  meets all of its obligations as they fall due.
ICICI Bank Canada Canada Deposit To comply with the Bank Act and the CDIC regulations
Insurance Corporation or by-laws thereunder and to indemnify CDIC against
(‘CDIC) all losses, damages, reasonable costs and expenses
arising from failure of ICICI Bank Canada in performing
the same.

The Bank has issued an undertaking on behalf of ICICI Securities Inc. for Singapore dollar 10.0 million (currently equivalent
to X 437.2 million) to the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS), has executed indemnity agreement on behalf of ICICI
Bank Canada to its independent directors for a sum not exceeding Canadian dollar 2.5 million (currently equivalent to
% 133.6 million) each, aggregating to Canadian dollar 15.0 million (currently equivalent to ¥ 801.6 million). The Bank has
furnished an undertaking on behalf of ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company, for an amount of US$ 19.0 million
(currently equivalent to ¥ 1,031.4 million) in relation to its borrowing. The aggregate amount of ¥ 2,270.2 million at March
31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: ¥ 915.2 million) is included in the contingent liabilities.

During the year, the Bank has issued an undertaking on behalf of ICICI Bank Eurasia LLC and to two independent directors
on behalf of ICICI Bank Canada.

As per the assessment done, there is no likely financial impact of the above letters issued to overseas regulators or of
the indemnity agreements at March 31, 2013.

In addition to the above, the Bank has also issued letters of comfort in the nature of letters of awareness on behalf
of banking and non-banking subsidiaries in respect of their borrowings made or proposed to be made and for other
incidental business purposes. As they are in the nature of factual statements or confirmation of facts, they do not create
any financial impact on the Bank.

The letters of comfort in the nature of letters of awareness that are outstanding at March 31, 2013 issued by the Bank
on behalf of its subsidiaries, aggregate to ¥ 18,640.5 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 24,238.9 million). During the year ended
March 31, 2013, borrowings pertaining to letters of comfort aggregating ¥ 5,598.4 million were repaid.

Related party balances
The following table sets forth, the balance payable to/receivable from subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates/other related
entities/key management personnel and relatives of key management personnel at March 31, 2013.
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T in million

Associates/ joint Key Relatives of Key Total

Items/Related party Subsidiaries ventures/other Management Management
related entities Personnel Personnel

Deposits with ICICI Bank......... 8,365.4 5,166.5 60.5 23.6 13,616.0
Deposits of ICICI Bank ........... 100.4 — — — 100.4
Call/term money lent.............. — — — — —
Call/term money
Borrowed .........cccocciiiiiiiiiiennns — — — — —
AdVanCes ........cceecciinnnninieneenns 18,982.0 305.5 5.7 6.9 19,303.1
Investments of ICICI Bank...... 133,339.4 3,862.3 — — 137,201.7
Investments of related parties
in ICICI Bank......ccooecuvveeiiininins 430.7 15.0 4.1 — 449.8
Receivables'.........ccccoevuviiiunennne 929.0 — — — 929.0
Payables’.......ccccevieiiiiencineenn. 56.5 1,199.9 — = 1,256.4
Guarantees/letter of credit/
indemnity .....ccooceeeeieiiieeneciinns 9,273.4 1,689.7 — — 10,963.1
Swaps/forward contracts
(notional amount)................... 133,492.5 — — — 133,492.5
Employee stock options
outstanding (Numbers).......... — — 3,172,500 — 3,172,500
Employee stock options
eXercised? .......oovveeriieeeiiiiennns — — 0.5 — 0.5
1. Excludes mark-to-market on outstanding derivative transactions.
2. During the year ended March 31, 2013, 54,000 employee stock options were exercised, which have been reported at face value.

The following table sets forth, the maximum balance payable to/receivable from subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates/
other related entities/key management personnel and relatives of key management personnel during the year ended
March 31, 2013.

% in million
Associates/ joint Key Relatives of Key Total
Items/ Related party Subsidiaries ventures/other = Management Management
related entities Personnel Personnel
Deposits with ICICI Bank........... 8,365.4 5,170.1 74.3 44.6 13,654.4
Deposits of ICICI Bank ............. 1,245.2 — — — 1,245.2
Call/term money lent................ 10,068.7 — — — 10,068.7
Call/term money borrowed...... — — — — —
VN0 \VZ: 0 [o1= 1 T 24,544.5 2,004.5 10.4 7.9 26,567.3
Investments of ICICI Bank........ 137,689.2 4,157.4 — — 141,846.6
Investments of related parties
in ICICI Bank™......c.cooeveeeiiiicinnnns 1,285.0 15.0 4.1 — 1,304.1
Receivables........ccccceveevevvvvnnnnnnn. 1,759.1 0.4' — — 1,759.5
Payables’.......cccccovviereiiiiienneennns 56.5 1,199.9 — — 1,256.4
Guarantees/letter of credit/
iNndemnity ....ccoceeeeiiieeeeeeiieennn 13,635.1 1,689.7 — — 15,324.8
Swaps/forward contracts
(notional amount) ........cceeeeeeennns 191,242.6 — — — 191,242.6
1. Maximum balances are determined based on comparison of the total outstanding balances at each quarter end during the

financial year.
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The following table sets forth, the balance payable to/receivable from subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates/other related
entities/key management personnel and relatives of key management personnel at March 31, 2012.

< in million

Associates/joint Key Relatives of Key Total

Items/ Related party Subsidiaries ventures/other Management Management
related entities Personnel Personnel

Deposits with ICICI Bank........... 11,536.6 2,089.8 41.0 19.8 13,687.2
Deposits of ICICI Bank ............. 717.9 — — — 717.9
Call/term money lent................ 4,568.7 — — — 4,568.7
Call/term money
Borrowed......ccccooveiiiiieiiiiiiieen — — — — —
AdVaNCES ....cevviiiiiiiieeiiiiiieee e 18,766.7 1,004.8 9.2 7.4 19,788.1
Investments of ICICI Bank........ 136,699.1 3,484.7 — — 140,183.8
Investments of related parties
in ICICI Bank........cccoveeeiiiinnennnn. 310.3 15.0 4.1 — 329.4
Receivables’........ccocoeviiiiinneennn. 637.0 0.2 — — 637.2
Payables’.......cccccceiiiieniciiiniennnn. 27.3 202.8 — — 230.1
Guarantees/letter of credit ....... 13,546.8 0.1 — — 13,546.9
Swaps/forward contracts
(notional amount) ..........ccccuvuneee 168,433.0 — — — 168,433.0
Employee stock options
outstanding (Numbers) ............ — — 2,701,500 — 2,701,500
Employee stock options
eXercised? ......cccceviiriiiieneiineen — — 0.9 — 0.9
1. Excludes mark-to-market on outstanding derivative transactions.
2. During the year ended March 31, 2012, 86,500 employee stock options were exercised, which have been reported at face value.

The following table sets forth, the maximum balance payable to/receivable from subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates/
other related entities/key management personnel and relatives of key management personnel during the year ended
March 31, 2012.

< in million
Associates/ joint Key Relatives of Key Total
Items/Related party Subsidiaries ventures/other Management Management
related entities Personnel Personnel
Deposits with ICICI Bank........ 11,536.6 3,150.6 64.0 27.3 14,778.5
Deposits of ICICI Bank ........... 3,375.0 — — — 3,375.0
Call/term money lent.............. 7,068.7 — — — 7,068.7
Call/term money borrowed.... 670.5 — — — 670.5
AdVancCes .......cccccevvvnnnnieieieenns 19,168.7 1,004.8 10.7 9.2 20,193.4
Investments of ICICI Bank...... 137,086.6 7,513.0 — — 144,599.6
Investments of related parties
in ICICI Bank’.........cccoeueeeeennnns 407.9 15.0 4.1 — 427.0
Receivables.........ccccceeeeveennneen. 2,941.9 154.1" — — 3,096.0
Payables’.........cccccevveeeiiieninneen. 84.8 266.7 — — 351.5
Guarantees/ letter of credit ... 13,649.2 0.1 — — 13,649.3
Swaps/forward contracts
(notional amount)................... 308,575.2 — — — 308,575.2
1. Maximum balances are determined based on comparison of the total outstanding balances at each quarter end during the financial year.
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Small and micro enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 which came into force from October
2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to enterprises covered under the Act. During the year ended
March 31, 2013, the amount paid after the due date to vendors registered under the MSMED Act, 2006 was X 6.0 million
(March 31, 2012: X 7.1 million). An amount of ¥ 0.2 million (March 31, 2012: ¥ 0.1 million) has been charged to profit &
loss account towards accrual of interest on these delayed payments.

Penalties/fines imposed by RBI and other banking regulatory bodies
The penalty imposed by RBI and other banking regulatory bodies during the year ended March 31, 2013 was X 3.1 million
(March 31, 2012: % 1.5 million).

During the the year ended March 31, 2013, RBI imposed a penalty of ¥ 66,000 through letter dated May 2, 2012, with
regard to bouncing of two Subsidiary General Ledger deals of the clients of ¥ 60.0 million and % 6.0 million on March 28,
2012. On October 9, 2012, a penalty of X 3.0 million was levied by RBI for non compliance with Know Your Customer
(KYC) directions issued by RBI. The Bank has paid these penalties to RBI.

Disclosure on Remuneration
Compensation policy and practices
(A) Qualitative disclosures
a) Information relating to the composition and mandate of the Remuneration Committee

The Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee (BGRNC) comprises three independent
Directors. The functions of the Committee include recommendation of appointments of Directors to the Board,
evaluation of the performance of the Managing Director & CEO (MD & CEO) and other wholetime Directors (WTDs)
on predetermined parameters, recommendation to the Board of the remuneration (including performance
bonus and perquisites) to WTDs, approval of the policy for and quantum of bonus payable to the members of
the staff, framing of guidelines for the Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) and recommendation of grant
of the Bank’s stock options to employees and WTDs of the Bank and its subsidiary companies.

b) Information relating to design and structure of remuneration processes and the key features and objectives
of remuneration policy

The Bank has under the guidance of the Board and the BGRNC, followed compensation practices intended to
drive meritocracy within the framework of prudent risk management. This approach has been incorporated in
the Compensation Policy approved by the Board on January 31, 2012, pursuant to the guidelines issued by RBI.

The key elements of the Bank’s compensation practices are:

* Effective governance of compensation: the BGRNC has oversight over compensation. The Committee
defines Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for wholetime Directors and equivalent positions and the
organisational performance norms for bonus based on the financial and strategic plan approved by the
Board. The KPIs include both quantitative and qualitative aspects. The BGRNC assesses organisational
performance as well as the individual performance for wholetime Directors and equivalent positions.
Based on its assessment, it makes recommendations to the Board regarding compensation for wholetime
Directors and equivalent positions and bonus for employees.

e Alignment of compensation philosophy with prudent risk taking: the Bank seeks to achieve a prudent
mix of fixed and variable pay, with a higher proportion of variable pay at senior levels and no guaranteed
bonuses. Compensation is sought to be aligned to both financial and non-financial indicators of performance
including aspects like risk management and customer service. In addition, the Bank has an employee stock
option scheme aimed at aligning compensation to long term performance through stock option grants that
vest over a period of time. Compensation of staff in financial and risk control functions is independent of
the business areas they oversee and depends on their performance assessment.

c) Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the remuneration
processes including the nature and type of the key measures used to take account of these risks.

The Board approves the risk framework for the Bank and the business activities of the Bank are undertaken
within this framework to achieve the financial plan. The risk framework includes the Bank’s risk appetite,
limits framework and policies and procedures governing various types of risk. KPIs of wholetime Directors
& equivalent positions, as well as employees, incorporate relevant risk management related aspects. For
example, in addition to performance targets in areas such as growth and profits, performance indicators
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d)

e)

f)

include aspects such as the desired funding profile and asset quality. The BGRNC takes into consideration
all the above aspects while assessing organisational and individual performance and making compensation-
related recommendations to the Board.

Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks to link performance during a performance measurement
period with levels of remuneration

The level of performance bonus, increments in salary and allowances and grant of stock options is determined
based on the assessment of performance as described above.

Discussion of the Bank’s policy on deferral and vesting of variable remuneration and the Bank’s policy and
criteria for adjusting deferred remuneration before vesting and after vesting

The quantum of bonus for an employee does not exceed a certain percentage (as stipulated in the compensation
policy) of the total fixed pay in a year. Within this percentage, if the quantum of bonus exceeds a predefined
threshold percentage of the total fixed pay, a part of the bonus is deferred and paid over a period. The deferred
portion is subject to malus, under which the Bank would prevent vesting of all or part of the variable pay in the
event of an enquiry determining gross negligence or breach of integrity. In such cases, variable pay already
paid out is also subject to clawback arrangements.

Description of the different forms of variable remuneration that the Bank utilises and the rationale for using
these different forms

The Bank pays performance linked retention pay (PLRP) to its front-line staff and junior management and
performance bonus to its middle and senior management. PLRP aims to reward front line and junior managers,
mainly on the basis of skill maturity attained through experience and continuity in role which is a key differentiator
for customer service. The Bank also pays variable pay to sales officers and relationship managers in wealth
management roles. The Bank ensures higher variable pay at senior levels and lower variable pay for front-line
staff and junior management levels.

(B) Quantitative disclosures
The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the details of quantitative disclosure for remuneration of WTDs
(including MD & CEOQ) and Presidents.

< in million, except numbers

. Year ended
FETHEN S March 31, 2013
Number of meetings held by the BGRNC ... st e e s s sbaee e e e enns 3
Remuneration paid to its members (Sitting fEES) ..uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 0.2
Number of employees having received a variable remuneration award ..........cccccceeeviiiieeeiiciineee s 7
Number and total amount of sign-on awards made Nil
Details of guaranteed bonus paid as joining/sign on bonus Nil
Details of severance pay, in addition to accrued benefits.........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiie e Nil
Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration at March 31, 2013
LT o PP 54.7
] = TR Nil
Shares-linked INSTrUMENTS! (MOS.) . .iiiiiiiiiiei i s e st e e e e s b e e e e e e eeabae e e e s esnsnneeesesnneeesan 2,533,000
Other fOrmMs ..ooeveivviiic e Nil
Total amount of deferred remuneration Paid OUL ......c.uueeiiiiiiiiee i e eanees Nil
Breakdown of amount of remuneration awards
D= PP 133.8
L2 LT o L= R 74.6
D= 1= =Y o RS 29.9
NN Fo] g B =1 =Y o T RN 44.8
Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and retained remuneration exposed to ex-post
explicit and/or implicit adjustments at March 31, 20713......cccceiiiiieiiiie e e 54.7
Total amount of reductions due to ex-post explicit adjustments.. Nil
Total amount of reductions due to ex-post implicit adjustments Nil
1. Pursuant to grant of options under ESOS. Of these options, 75,000 options granted to a President who retired subsequently, will

vest fully in one year from April 27, 2012.
2. Fixed pay includes basic salary, supplementary allowances, superannuation, contribution to provident fund and gratuity fund by

the Bank.
&, Variable pay for the year ended March 31, 2013 was awarded in the month of April 2013 and is subject to approval from RBI.

4. In lin

e with the Bank’s compensation policy, the stipulated percentage of performance bonus is deferred.
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Disclosure of complaints

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the movement of the outstanding number of complaints.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year..........cccccceivevinieenn. 3,837 3,024
b) No. of complaints received during the year .........cccccceveeiiiieeiceiiiiee e 101,408 155,115
c) No. of complaints redressed during the year .........cccoeceeiiiieeiciensiiee e 102,617 154,302
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year ........ccccoccvviiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnns 2,628 3,837
1. Does not include complaints redressed within 1 working day.
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of awards during the year.
Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

a) No. of unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year .........cccccoeeuus —
b) No. of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsmen during the year........... -
c) No. of awards implemented during the year ........cccccvcvveeciiivcee e, —_
d) No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year..........ccccceeeivciieeiininns —

Drawdown from reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: Nil).

Comparative figures
Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped to conform to the current year presentation.

Signatures to Schedules 1 to 18

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FOR S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP K. V. KAMATH SRIDAR IYENGAR
Firm's Registration no.: 301003E Chairman Director = Managing Director & CEO

Chartered Accountants

SHRAWAN JALAN N. S. KANNAN K. RAMKUMAR
Partner Executive Director & CFO Executive Director

Membership no.: 102102

SANDEEP BATRA RAKESH JHA
Place : Mumbai Group Compliance Officer & Deputy Chief
Date : April 26, 2013 Company Secretary Financial Officer

CHANDA KOCHHAR

RAJIV SABHARWAL
Executive Director
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Statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, relating to subsidiary companies

Net aggregate amount of profits/ | Net aggregate amount of profits/
(losses) of the subsidiary so far as it | (losses) of the subsidiary so far as
concerns the members of ICICI Bank | it concerns the members of ICICI
and is not dealt with in the accounts | Bank dealt with or provided for in
'E:tenttoff of ICIC! Bank ' the accounts of ICICI Bank ?
Sr. . Financial year of the | No. of equity shares held by ICICI Bank and/or its nominees in MG P -
No. NamelofitielsUbsidiaylcompany subsidiary ended on the subsidiary at March 31, 2013 "I]C(I:glpgzrléf Kiini000s Riini000s
subsidiary For the previous |  For the For the previous
For the financial | financial years financial financial years
yearended | of the subsidiary | year ended | of the subsidiary
March 31, 2013 | since it became [ March 31, | since it became a
a subsidiary 2013 subsidiary
1 |ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited March 31, 2013 15,634 equity shares of ¥ 100,000 each fully paid up 100.0% 618,861 7,170,901 598,001 7,838,045
2 |ICICI Securities Limited March 31, 2013 805,353,500 equity shares of X 2 each, fully paid up 100.0% 381,903 1,765,140 300,236 4,166,637
3 |ICICI Securities Holdings Inc.? March 31, 2013 16,640,000 common stock of USD 1 each fully paid up held by — (1,356) (143,892) Nil Nil
ICICI Securities Limited
4 [ICICI Securities Inc.2 March 31, 2013 12,980,000 common stock of USD 1 each fully paid up held by — (37,768) (515,837) Nil 15,635
ICICI Securities Holdings Inc.
5 |ICICI Venture Funds Management Company Limited March 31, 2013 1,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 100.0% 183,335 2,529,859 15,000 4,310,979
6 |ICICI International Limited* March 31, 2013 90,000 ordinary shares of USD 10 each fully paid up 100.0% 2,060 36,938 Nil 15,782
7 |ICICI Home Finance Company Limited March 31, 2013 1,098,750,000 equity shares of 10 each fully paid up. 100.0% 812,270 3,906,775 1,389,919 6,067,308
8 |ICICI Trusteeship Services Limited March 31, 2013 50,000 equity shares of X 10 each fully paid up 100.0% 472 3,099 Nil Nil
9 |ICICI Investment Management Company Limited March 31, 2013 10,000,700 equity shares of X 10 each fully paid up 100.0% 8,976 43,459 Nil Nil
10 |[ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited March 31, 2013 1,055,310,907 equity shares of X 10 each fully paid up 73.9% 7,776,304 (11,549,004)| 3,271,207 2,321,255
11 |ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited March 31, 2013 320,635,518 equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 73.4% 2,243,475 (2,351,759) Nil 2,117,208
12 (ICICI Bank UK PLC* March 31, 2013 495,000,000 ordinary shares of USD 1 each and 50,002 ordinary 100.0% (527,266) 7,057,798( 1,309,626 1,879,480
shares of 1 GBP each
13 [ICICI Bank Canada®® December 31, 2012 839,500,000 common shares of Canadian Dollar (CAD) 1 each 100.0% 631,093 3,684,956 1,691,620 862,361
14 |ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company #¢ December 31,2012 |Not Applicable # 100.0% 316,011 209,951 Nil 425,517
15 |ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited ~ |March 31, 2013 9,002,573 equity shares of X 10 each, fully paid up 51.0% 240,483 833,404 321,527 1,432,029
16 [ICICI Prudential Trust Limited March 31, 2013 51,157 equity shares of X 10 each, fully paid up 50.8% 793 1,985 639 3,222
17 |ICICI Prudential Pension Funds Management Company  |March 31, 2013 27,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up held by — (769) (468) Nil Nil
Limited 7 ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited

#  The shares in the authorised capital of ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company are registered without issue of equity shares due to the legal form of the subsidiary.

1. The above companies (other than ICICI Bank UK PLC, ICICI Bank Canada, ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company, ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited, ICICI Prudential Trust Limited and ICICI Prudetial Pension Funds
Management Company Limited) which were subsidiaries of erstwhile ICICI Limited have become subsidiaries of the Bank consequent to the merger of erstwhile ICICI Limited with ICICI Bank.

OO

The amount received by erstwhile ICICI Limited upto March 29, 2002 as dividend has also been included in the reserves of ICICI Bank.
ICICI Securities Holdings Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of ICICI Securities Limited. ICICI Securities Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of ICICI Securities Holdings Inc.

The prafits of ICICI Bank UK PLC and ICICI International Limited for the year ended March 31, 2013 have been translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of 1 USD = ¥ 54.3940.

The profits of ICICI Bank Canada for the year ended December 31, 2012 have been translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of 1 CAD = X 54.5174.

The profits of ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company for the year ended December 31, 2012 have been translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of 1 RUB = % 1.7310.

ICICI Prudential Pension Funds Management Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited, was incorporated on April 22, 2009.
The information furnished for ICICI Bank Canada and ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company is for the period January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012, being their financial year.

The key financial parameters of the following companies at March 31, 2013 and their movement from December 31, 2012 are given below.

 in"000s
Particulars ICICI Bank Canada® ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company®
At March 31, 2013 At December 31, 2012 Movement At March 31, 2013 At December 31, 2012 Movement
Fixed assets 68,393 74,546 (6.153) 44,105 47,512 (3,407)
Investments 59,345,067 61,156,518 (1,811,451) 653,655 676,238 (22,583)
Advances 215,097,241 224,742,586 (9,645,345) 9,075,794 9,169,977 (94,183)
Borrowings® 97,171,422 92,031,662 5,139,760 6,386,125 6,973,728 (587,603)

a. Since it is not possible to identify the amount borrowed to meet the current liabilities, the amount shown above represents the total borrowings. The borrowings include subordinate debts and exclude preferred shares.
b. The financial parameters of ICICI Bank Canada have been translated into Indian Rupees at 1 CAD = X 53.4375 at March 31, 2013 and 1 CAD = ¥ 55.2600 at December 31, 2012.
c.  The financial parameters of ICICI Bank Eurasia Limited Liability Company have been translated into Indian Rupees at 1 RUB =% 1.74908 at March 31, 2013 and 1 RUB = X 1.79392 at December 31, 2012.

Place: Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2013
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independent auditors’ report

0 IcICI Banlk  To the Board of Directors of ICICI Bank Limited on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of ICICI Bank Limited and its Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ICICI Bank Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures (the ‘ICICI Group’), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and
the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors and branches auditors on separate
financial statements and other financial information of the components, and the consideration of the un-audited financial
statements, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) inthe case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2013;
(b) in the case of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c) inthe case of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of 3 610,074
million as at March 31, 2013, total revenue of X 76,855 million and cash flows amounting to ¥ 31,828 million for the year then
ended. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on the report of other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements of Singapore, Bahrain, Hong Kong, Dubai, Qatar, Sri Lanka and New York-USA
branches, whose financial statements reflect total assets of I 1,270,195 million as at March 31, 2013, the total revenue of
% 60,882 million for the year ended March 31, 2013 and net cash flows amounting to ¥ 84,228 million for the year ended
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March 31, 2013. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors, duly qualified to act as auditors in the
country of incorporation of the said branches, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on
the report of other auditors.

We have also relied on the un-audited financial statements of certain subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, whose
financial statements reflect total assets of ¥ 28,372 million as at March 31, 2013, total revenues of ¥ 7,460 million and net cash
flows amounting to ¥ (1,221) million for the year then ended.

We have jointly audited, with other auditor, the financial statements of subsidiary which reflect total assets of ¥ 753,501 million
as at March 31, 2013, total revenue of ¥ 173,760 million and cash flows amounting to ¥ 475 million for the year then ended.
For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, we have relied upon the work of other auditors.

The actuarial valuation of liabilities for life policies in force is the responsibility of the ICICI Group's life insurance subsidiary’s
appointed actuary (the Appointed Actuary). The actuarial valuation of these liabilities as at March 31, 2013 has been duly
certified by the Appointed Actuary and in his opinion the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance with the guidelines
and norms issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development authority (‘IRDA’) and the Actuarial Society in concurrence
with the IRDA. The statutory auditors of ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited have relied upon appointed Actuary’s
certificate in this regard.

The actuarial valuation of liability in respect of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR’) and those incurred but not enough
reported ('IBNER’) are the responsibility of the ICICI Group’s general insurance subsidiary’s appointed actuary (the Appointed
Actuary). The actuarial valuation of these liabilities as at March 31, 2013 has been duly certified by the Appointed Actuary and
in his opinion the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the IRDA and the
Actuarial Society in concurrence with the IRDA. The statutory auditors of ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited
have relied upon appointed Actuary’s certificate in this regard.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 301003E

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2013
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consolidated balance sheet

0[0,0, Bank at March 31, 2013

(X in ‘000s)

Schedule 31.03.20':\3E 37.03.20?5
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
(070 Y1 - | 1 11,536,362 11,527,683
Employees stock options outstanding .......ccccceviecimeensiccieneenseesinnes 44,835 23,854
Reserves and SUIPIUS ....eeeeieieeieiiiisieiicscssssssssnssseeereeeeessessssssssssansnnnes 2 676,042,933 601,213,423
MiINOrity INTEreSt uvivierieiiiiree e 2A 17,057,595 14,277,247
[ 1T o Y0 1] | £ PN 3 3,147,705,357 2,819,504,736
BOITOWINGS .eeiiiiiiiireirie it 4 1,728,882,194 1,612,966,218
Liabilities on policies in fOrCe .....ccuuiierrmerrieeieee e 689,105,371 662,294,640
Other liabilities and ProviSions .........cccccccvieiiiieeee i 5 477,842,496 471,061,155
TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES ........cccoooiiiiie e 6,748,217,143 6,192,868,956
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India .......cccccoviuriiennnnnne 6 193,062,020 207,281,806
Balances with banks and money at call and short notice ............. 7 300,646,550 204,281,077
INVESTMENTS .eovuriieiiieirre e 8 2,556,666,786 2,398,640,912
N0 V7= (o= 9 3,299,741,265 2,921,254,179
FIXE@ @SSELS ..irviririirieiririiiiiree e 10 54,734,587 54,319,822
(01 1T g 111 £ 11 343,365,935 407,091,160
TOTAL ASSETS ...t 6,748,217,143 6,192,868,956
Contingent liabilities .......cverieriiinir s 12 9,139,712,204 10,375,591,283
L2111 ES3 o g oo | T=T o7 1o o 124,534,781 76,129,947
Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts ......cc...c..... 17 & 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our Report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FOR S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP K. V. KAMATH SRIDAR IYENGAR CHANDA KOCHHAR
Firm’'s Registration no.: 301003E Chairman Director = Managing Director & CEO
Chartered Accountants

SHRAWAN JALAN N. S. KANNAN
Partner Executive Director & CFO
Membership no.: 102102

K. RAMKUMAR
Executive Director

RAJIV SABHARWAL
Executive Director

SANDEEP BATRA
Group Compliance Officer &
Company Secretary

RAKESH JHA
Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2013
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consolidated profit and loss account

for the year ended March 31, 2013

I INCOME

Interest earned ............cocuveeee.
Other income ..........cceeevecnnnnns
TOTAL INCOME .....................

Il. EXPENDITURE

Interest expended ..................
Operating expenses ..............

Provisions and contingencies (refer note 18.7) ....cc.ccccoueeen..

TOTAL EXPENDITURE ..........

lll. PROFIT/(LOSS)

Net profit for the year ............
Less: Minority interest ...........
Net profit after minority interest
Profit/(loss) brought forward
TOTAL PROFIT/(LOSS) .........

IV. APPROPRIATIONS/TRANSFERS
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
Transfer to Reserve Fund ......

Transfer to Capital Reserve

Transfer to/(from) Investment Reserve Account ...................

Transfer to Special Reserve

Transfer to Revenue and other reserves ..........cccccceeeeccnvnnnnns
Dividend (including corporate dividend tax) for the
previous year paid during the year ........cccoccoeeiiiiiieiiieee.

Proposed equity share dividend

Proposed preference share dividend .........cccccoociieeiiiiinnnnn.n.

Corporate dividend tax .........

Balance carried over to balance sheet .......cccccoeeeeveevevieeennnnn,

1RO P2V 5 rerrerrrerrerrrerrerreerrerreeeen

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts ..................

Earnings per share (refer note 18.1)
Basic () .eeevveiiieeiiiieieeeeveniennnn,

Diluted () ..oooeveviiiiirrirereeeeeens
Face value per share ) .................

Schedule

Year ended

(X in ‘000s)

Year ended

31.03.2013 31.03.2012
13 448,845,894 379,948,587
14 293,198,074 286,634,177

742,043,968 666,582,764
15 282,854,093 250,132,455
16 302,070,495 295,520,458
55,820,531 41,553,508
640,745,119 587,206,421
101,298,849 79,376,343
5,262,724 2,946,988
96,036,125 76,429,355
68,048,685 40,077,613
164,084,810 116,506,968
20,820,000 16,170,000
27,775 10,665
330,000 380,000
8,041,000 7,020,000
4,556,213 1,877,920
2,491 4,284
23,072,271 19,020,400
35 35
3,940,400 3,257,185
103,294,625 68,766,479
164,084,810 116,506,968
17 & 18
83.29 66.33
82.84 66.06
10.00 10.00

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.

As per our Report of even date.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm’'s Registration no.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

SHRAWAN JALAN
Partner
Membership no.: 102102

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2013

K. V. KAMATH
Chairman

N. S. KANNAN
Executive Director & CFO

SANDEEP BATRA
Group Compliance Officer &
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SRIDAR IYENGAR
Director

K. RAMKUMAR
Executive Director

RAKESH JHA
Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

CHANDA KOCHHAR
Managing Director & CEO

RAJIV SABHARWAL
Executive Director
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consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended March 31, 2013

"ICICI Bank

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit DEfOre taXES ..ueeiiiiieiiei et
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation ..........cccoceeiiieiiiienniiic e
Net (appreciation)/depreciation on iNVESTMENTS .........cccceeeeiiiiieeeciiiiieneen,
Provision in respect of non-performing assets ........ccccccevveeiniiniiienisiiennnns
Prudential provision on standard asSets .........cccccveeiiiieieiiiiieneesciiieeees s
Provision for contingencies & Others .........ccccviiiiiiiiiiiie e
(Profit)/loss on sale of fixed @SSELS .......ccevvveuruiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeees
Employee stock Options grants .......ccccevieeceeieesieiiiieessssiriee s ee e sseee e

Adjustments for :

(Increase)/decrease in INVESIMENTS .......ceveeieieiieeeiiieiiiiiiiiirnrerreeeereeeeeeeeeseeans
(Increase)/decrease in @dVANCES .....cccccvvrereereeeeieereeieieisiiisssssssreerreeereeeeeeeans
Increase/(decrease) in dePOSItS ...ccccccuururiuiiriiiiiieii e scrsrrr e e e e e
(Increase)/decrease in Other ASSELS .......ccceueereiiiiiieiieiiiieiiererrre e e s e e s eaeeeens
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities and provisions ..........cccccceecvieeennenns

Refund/(payment) of direCt taXes .....cccvveviueieeiiiiiiiieei e
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities .............cccceccrrrieerrecnn.
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fiXed @SSELS ...icicccieriiriiiiniiesiiciere e e scnre e s e e s e e s e ssnn e e s e nnn e e e e ans
Proceeds from sale of fiXed aSSets ........cccercerrriierriieisiee e
(Purchase)/sale of held to maturity SECUNItieS .....ccerreeicrreriecieeeee e
Net cash used in investing activities ............ccccoooooiiiiiciincce e,
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital (including ESOPS) .......ccccccvrieerieernnen.
Net proceeds/(repayment) of DOrroWiNgs ......occeevriieirieeinieesssie e
Dividend and dividend tax Paid ......cccceeeieeeomreereesimee e
Net cash generated from financing activities...........cc.cccccceriiciiieniccieneen.
Effect of exchange fluctuation on translation reserve..............ccccccceeeen.
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)+(D)......
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year ..............cccceene.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ...........ccccccviiiiriceniiennees

Year ended

(X in ‘000s)

Year ended

31.03.2013 31.03.2012

130,904,932 103,919,499

7,309,535 7,546,097

4,964,954 7,773,019

15,513,824 10,510,044

1,349,872 279,057

2,370,283 2,100,543

(339,276) 37,180

98,647 93,240
162,172,771 132,258,679

53,888,779 (126,076,483)
(394,857,560) (335,829,069)
328,200,621 228,444,687

19,276,308 (24,703,198)

43,960,881 83,850,256

50,469,029 (174,313,807)

(37,702,018) (26,082,984)

(A) 174,939,782 (68,138,112)
(6,249,292) (6,054,398)

700,038 180,758

(185,928,901) (206,755,330)

(B) (191,478,155) (212,628,970)
447,515 591,128

114,579,019 312,815,320
(22,194,629) (19,013,434)

(C) 92,831,905 294,393,014
(D) 5,852,155 4,084,332
82,145,687 17,710,264

411,562,883 393,852,619
493,708,570 411,562,883

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts (refer schedule 17 & 18).

Refer item no. 12 in schedule 17 significant accounting policies.

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our Report of even date.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP K. V. KAMATH
Firm’s Registration no.: 301003E Chairman
Chartered Accountants

SHRAWAN JALAN N. S. KANNAN

Partner Executive Director & CFO

Membership no.: 102102

SANDEEP BATRA
Group Compliance Officer &
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2013
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SRIDAR IYENGAR
Director

K. RAMKUMAR
Executive Director

RAKESH JHA
Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

CHANDA KOCHHAR

Managing Director & CEO

RAJIV SABHARWAL
Executive Director



forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

(X in ‘000s)

SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL

Authorised capital

1,275,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each

(March 31, 2012: 1,275,000,000 equity shares of T 10 each) .....cccccccccveeveevcunnennn.

15,000,000 shares of T 100 each

(March 31, 2012: 15,000,000 shares of T 100 each) ........cccccurrvrrereeeeeeeeereeeeiinnnns

350 preference shares of ¥ 10 million each

(March 31, 2012: 350 preference shares of ¥ 10 million each)? ...........cc.cuuuee..

Equity share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

1,152,714,442 equity shares of ¥ 10 each
(March 31, 2012: 1,151,772,372 equity shares)

Add: 867,273 equity shares of ¥ 10 each (March 31, 2012: 942,070 equity shares)
issued pursuant to exercise of employee stock OPtioNS .........cevveviiieeiiiiiiienee e

Less: Calls unpaid ......ccccveeeiiiiiieneiinnns

Add: 111,603 equity shares of ¥ 10 each forfeited

(March 31, 2012: 111,603 equity shares)

TOTAL CAPITAL ..o

1. These shares will be of such class and with such rights, privileges, conditions or restrictions as may be determined by
the Bank in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank and subject to the legislative provisions in force for

the time being in that behalf.

At At
31.03.2013 31.03.2012
12,750,000 12,750,000

1,500,000 1,500,000
3,500,000 3,500,000
11,527,144 11,517,723
8,673 9,421
11,535,817 11,527,144
(225) (231)

770 770
11,536,362 11,527,683

2. Pursuant to RBI circular no. DBOD.BPBC